
 

REGULAR MEETING OF WASHINGTON, MISSOURI CITY COUNCIL 

MONDAY, MAY 2, 2022 - 7:00 P.M. 

COUNCIL CHAMBER, 405 JEFFERSON STREET, WASHINGTON, MISSOURI 
 
               SUGGESTED 

1. INTRODUCTORY ITEMS:          COUNCIL ACTION 
 
Roll Call / Pledge of Allegiance 

Approval of the Minutes from the April 18, 2022 Council Meetings         Need Motion/Mayor                  Memo 
 
Approval and Adjustment of Agenda including Consent Agenda        Need Motion/Mayor                  Memo 

a. Collector’s/Treasurer’s Report Summary – December 2021 

b. Monthly Investment Report – December 2021 

c. Final Payment Request – Lions Lake Pavilions 

d. Final Payment Request – Old Bathhouse and City Auditorium Electrical Services 

e. Liquor License Renewals 

f. Microfilm & Disposal of Records - Finance  

g. Fireworks Display 
 

2. PRIORITY ITEMS:         

Mayor’s Presentations, Appointments & Re-Appointments 

a. Proclamation – Historic Preservation Month         Mayor 

b. Proclamation – National Travel and Tourism Week        Mayor 

c. Proclamation – Bicycle Safety Week          Mayor 

d. Proclamation – National Police Week         Mayor 

e. 2022 Council Committee Liaison Assignments        Approve/Mayor      Memo 
          

3. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
 

4. CITIZENS COMMENTS: 
 

5. UNFINISHED BUSINESS: 
 

6. REPORT OF DEPARTMENT HEADS: 
          

7. ORDINANCES/RESOLUTIONS: 

a. An ordinance authorizing and directing the execution of an Agreement by and between the City of  

Washington, Missouri and Environmental Systems Research Institute, Inc. for ArcGis Software and 

Services.             Read &Int/Read/Vote/Mayor      Memo 

b. An ordinance authorizing and directing the execution of an STP-Urban Program Agreement by and 

between the City of Washington, Missouri and the Missouri Highways and Transportation Commission 

for the Front Street ADA Improvements Project STP-4940(607).       Read &Int/Read/Vote/Mayor      Memo 



c. An ordinance amending the 2022 Budget of the City of Washington, Missouri.    Read &Int/Read/Vote/Mayor      Memo 

d. An ordinance authorizing and directing the City of Washington, Missouri to accept the Bid from NOC 

Technology for the purchase of 48 New Dell Optiplex Desktop Computers, Computer Monitors and Stands 

including Setup and Installation.          Read &Int/Read/Vote/Mayor      Memo 

e. An ordinance amending the 2021-2022 Budget of the City of Washington, Missouri and authorizing 

payment to the Washington Community Fire Protection District for entering into an Agreement with 

ESCI for a Long Range Master Plan for the Washington Fire Department Serving the City and District. Read &Int/Read/Vote/Mayor      Memo 

f. An ordinance authorizing and directing the execution of a Contract Agreement by and between the 

City of Washington, Missouri and DJM Ecological Services, Inc. for Highway 100 Median Bed 

Landscaping Services.           Read &Int/Read/Vote/Mayor      Memo 

g. An ordinance authorizing and directing the execution of an Agreement by and between the City of 

Washington, Missouri and the Washington School District for Three (3) School Resource Officers 

to be assigned to duty for the Washington School District.       Read &Int/Read/Vote/Mayor      Memo 
       

8. COMMISSION, COMMITTEE AND BOARD REPORTS: 
 

9. MAYOR’S REPORT: 
 

10. CITY ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT:      
 

11. COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
 

12. CITY ATTORNEY’S REPORT:   

Public Vote on whether or not to hold a closed meeting to discuss personnel, legal and real estate  

matters pursuant to Section 610.021 RSMo (2000).        Roll Call Vote 
 

13. INFORMATION: 

a. General Sales Tax Report 

b. Capital Improvement Sales Tax 

c. Transportation Sales Tax 

d. Local Option Use Tax 

e. Budget Report 

f. Rabies Clinic – May 12 & 19, 2022 

g. 46th Annual Bicycle Safety Rodeo – May 21, 2022 
 

14. ADJOURNMENT:     

 

NOTICE: COPIES OF THE PROPOSED ORDINANCES ON THIS AGENDA ARE AVAILABLE FOR PUBLIC INSPECTION 

PRIOR TO THE TIME THE BILL IS UNDER CONSIDERATION BY THE CITY COUNCIL. 

POSTED BY SHERRI KLEKAMP, CITY CLERK, APRIL 28, 2022 



MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
CITY OF WASHINGTON, FRANKLIN COUNTY, MISSOURI 

MONDAY, APRIL 18, 2022 

INTRODUCTORY ITEMS: 
The Regular Meeting of the City of Washington, Missouri, City Council was held on Monday, 
April 18, 2022, at 7:00 p.m. in the Council Chamber. Mayor Sandy Lucy opened the meeting 
with roll call and Pledge of Allegiance. 

Mayor: Sandy Lucy Present 
Council Members: Ward I Steve Sullentrup Present 

Duane Reed Present 
Ward II Mark Wessels Present 

Mark Hidritch Present 
Ward III Jeff Patke Present 

Greg Skornia Present 
Ward IV Gretchen Pettet Present 

Joe Holtmeier Present 

Also Present: City Attorney Mark Piontek 
City Administrator Darren Lamb 
City Clerk Sherri Klekamp 
Economic Development Director Sal Maniaci 
Police Chief Ed Menefee 
Public Works Director John Nilges 
Library Director Nelson Appell 
Street Superintendent Tony Bonastia 
Fire Chief Tim Frankenberg 
Parks Director Wayne Dunker 
Finance Director Mary Sprung 

Originals and/or copies of agenda items of the meeting, including recorded votes are available on 
record in the office of the City Clerk. Each ordinance is read a minimum of twice by title, unless 
otherwise noted. 

Approval of Minutes: 
* Approval of the Minutes from the April 4, 2022 Council Meeting 

A motion to accept the minutes as presented made by Councilmember Holtmeier, seconded 
by Councilmember Hidritch passed without dissent. 

Approval and Adjustment of Agenda 
A motion to accept and approve the agenda including the consent agenda accordingly made 

by Councilmember Patke, seconded by Councilmember Holtmeier, passed without dissent. 

Page 1 
April 18, 2022 



CITIZENS COMMENTS 
* None 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
* Certification of April 5, 2022 Election results by the Verification Board 

Election Summary Report 
GENERAL MUNICJP AL ELECTION 
FRANKLIN COUNTY, MISSOURI 
TUESDAY, APRIL 5, 2022 
ELECTION RESULTS 
OFFICIAL RESULTS 

WASHINGTON MAYOR 

Number of Precincts 
Precincts Reporting 
Vote for 1 
Total Votes 

STEVE SULLENTRUP 
KARI KLENKE 
NATHAN R. KRAUSCH 

DOUG HAGEDORN 
WRITE IN 

WASHINGTON CITY ATTORNEY 

Number of Precincts 
Precincts Reporting 
Votefor 1 
Total Votes 

MARKC. PIONTEK 
WRITE IN 

WASHINGTON COUNCIL, WARD 1 

Number of Precincts 
Precincts Reporting 
Vote for 1 

5 
5 100.00% 

3,199 

1,087 33.98% 

499 15.60% 
26 0.81% 

1,580 49.39% 
7 0.22% 

5 
5 100.00% 

2,528 

2,471 97.75% 
57 2.25% 

2 

2 100.00% 

Page2 
April 18, 2022 



Total Votes 670 

ALLAN BEHR 361 53.88% 

BRANDON RODRIGUEZ 85 12.69% 

JR. JONES 224 33.43% 

WRITE IN 0 0% 

WASHINGTON COUNCIL, WARD 2 

Number of Precincts 2 

Precincts Reporting 2 100.00% 

Vote for 1 

Total Votes 847 

MARK D. HIDRITCH 631 74.50% 

STEVEN A. LANDING 211 24.91% 

WRITE IN 5 0.59% 

WASHINGTON COUNCIL, WARD 3 

Number of Precincts 2 

Precincts Reporting 2 100.00% 

Vote for 1 

Total Votes 754 

CHAD M BRIGGS 259 34.35% 

KEVIN BLACKBURN 150 19.89% 

SARA SCARBOROUGH 73 9.68% 

HALEY BESTE 47 6.23% 

DONKLUBA 224 29.71% 

WRITE IN 1 0.13% 

WASHINGTON COUNCIL, WARD 4 

Number of Precincts 2 

Precincts Reporting 2 100.00% 

Vote/or 1 

Total Votes 719 

MICHAEL COULTER 284 39.50% 

GRETCHEN AUBUCHON PETTET 246 34.21% 

MIKE JOHNS 189 26.29% 

WRITE IN 0 0% 

Page3 
April 18, 2022 



A motion to accept the election results was made by Councilmember Holtmeier, seconded by 
Councilmember Hidritch, passed without dissent. 

PRIORITY ITEMS 
Mayor's Presentations, Appointments & Re-Appointments 
* Resolution - Thank You - Gretchen AuBuchon Pettet 

THANK YOU 
GRETCHEN AUBUCHON PETTET 
WHEREAS, Gretchen AuBuchon Pettet served the City of Washington, Missouri as Ward IV 
Councilperson from April 2018 through April 2022; and 
WHEREAS, during her term of office she has given her time and effort to serve the citizens of the 
City of Washington, Missouri; and 
WHEREAS, she has served fai(lifully in many capacities as Councilperson and has played a vital 
role in the important work in the community; and 
WHEREAS, she has been an influence for good in the growth and progress of our community; 
and 
WHEREAS, Gretchen AuBuchon Pettet is entitled to just recognition for these efforts. 
NOW, THEREFORE, I SANDY LUCY by virtue of the authority vested in me as Mayor and 
speaking on behalf of the entire City Council and all our citizens do hereby tender to 
GRETCHEN AUBUCHON PETTET this Resolution extending our deep appreciation for her 
distinguished service as Ward IV Councilperson for the City of Washington. We wish her 
success in all future endeavors and order this Resolution spread upon the records of the City of 
Washington, Missouri and a copy thereof delivered to GRETCHEN AUBUCHON PETTET. 
Sandy Lucy 
Mayor 
Sherri Klekamp 
City Clerk 
04-18-22 

* Resolution - Thank You - Greg Skornia 
THANK YOU 
GREG SKORNIA 
WHEREAS, Greg Skornia served the City of Washington, Missouri as Ward III Councilperson 
from April 2013 through April 2022; and 
WHEREAS, during his term of office he has given his time and effort to serve the citizens of the 
City of Washington, Missouri; and 
WHEREAS, he has served faitlifully in many capacities as Councilperson and has played a vital 
role in the important work in the community; and 
WHEREAS, he has been an influence for good in the growth and progress of our community,· and 
WHEREAS, Greg Skornia is entitled to just recognition for these efforts. 
NOW, THEREFORE, I SANDY LUCY by virtue of the authority vested in me as Mayor and 
speaking on behalf of the entire City Council and all our citizens do hereby tender to GREG 
SKORNIA this Resolution extending our deep appreciation for his distinguished service as Ward 
III Councilperson for the City of Washington. We wish him success in all future endeavors and 

Page 4 
April 18, 2022 



order this Resolution spread upon the records of the City of Washington, Missouri and a copy 
thereof delivered to GREG SKORNIA. 
Sandy Lucy 
Mayor 
Sherri Klekamp 
City Clerk 
04-18-22 

* Resolution -Thank You - Steve Sullentrup 
THANK YOU 
STEVE SULLENTR UP 
WHEREAS, Steve Sullentrup served the City of Washington, Missouri as Ward I Councilperson 
from April 2010 through April 2022; and 
WHEREAS, during his term of office he has given his time and effort to serve the citizens of the 
City of Washington, Missouri; and 
WHEREAS, he has served faithfully in many capacities as Councilperson and has played a vital 
role in the important work in the community; and 
WHEREAS, he has been an influence for good in the growth and progress of our community; and 
WHEREAS, Steve Sullentrup is entitled to just recognition for these efforts. 
NOW, THEREFORE, I SANDY LUCY by virtue of the authority vested in me as Mayor and 
speaking on behalf of the entire City Council and all our citizens do hereby tender to STEVE 
SULLENTRUP this Resolution extending our deep appreciation for his distinguished service as 
Ward I Councilperson for the City of Washington. We wish him success in all future endeavors 
and order this Resolution spread upon the records of the City of Washington, Missouri and a 
copy thereof delivered to STEVE SULLENTRUP. 
Sandy Lucy 
Mayor 
Sherri Klekamp 
City Clerk 
04-18-22 

* Resolution -Thank You - Mayor Sandy Lucy 
WHEREAS, Sandy Lucy, the first woman to be elected Mayor in the history of Washington, 
Missouri, served.from 2010 to 2022 and was the first Mayor to be elected for three consecutive 
terms since Mayor A. Roy Pearson. She has diligently served the City of Washington with 
professionalism, respect, honor and integrity; and 
WHEREAS, the City of Washington desires to recognize and express its sincerest gratitude to one 
such individual who has so unselfishly given of her time and efforts in service to the public with 
her many years of involvement, and who has done so with a caring heart and a thoughtful mind; 
and 
WHEREAS, Sandy Lucy demonstrated her unwavering commitment and willingness to serve the 
residents of Washington by being Past Chairs of the Washington Chamber of Commerce and the 
Washington Historic Preservation Commission, and was one of the original members of the 
Washington Tourism Committee. As well as serving on the Missouri Main Street Board, the East 
Central College Foundation Board, and the Mercy Foundation Board and is a member of 
Women with a Mission. Sandy has also been an integral supporter of the continued City 
campaign with Franklin County Area United Way; and 

Page 5 
April 18, 2022 



WHEREAS, key developments during Sandy's tenure included receipt of the Great American 
Main Street Award, expansion of WEG (CG Power Systems) and Melton Machine & Control 
Company, acquisition of the new Oldenburg Industrial Park, construction of Route 47 Missouri 
River Bridge, redevelopment of Downtown Washington and the International Shoe Factory, 
expansion of the Rotary Riverfront Trail, construction of the new Agnes Nolting Aquatic 
Complex, Half-Cent Capital Improvement Sales Tax Propositions and was instrumental with the 
largest transition of key staff including City Administrator, City Clerk, Economic Development 
Director, Human Resources Manager, Police Chief, Communications Director, Public Works 
Director, Parks Director, Building Official and Street Superintendent; and 
WHEREAS, Sandy has been a highly dedicated and respected member of the City Council and 
has le.ft a legacy that is, and will continue to be, cherished by her many colleagues over the 
years; past, present and future Mayors, Council, City employees, and her constituents. Sandy is 
known as the "cheerleader" to all those she meets. Her unwavering commitment, willingness 
and ability to understand and respond to the concerns of the residents of Washington, has made 
a substantial contribution to the betterment of the City of Washington. 
NOW, THEREFORE, the City of Washington does hereby tender to Sandy Lucy this Resolution 
extending our deep appreciation for her time-honored legacy of dedication, enthusiasm and 
outstanding public service given to the Washington Community and order this resolution be 
made a part of the official records of the City of Washington, Missouri, and a copy thereof 
delivered to Sandy Lucy. 
Darren Lamb, City Administrator 
Sherri Klekamp, City Clerk 
04-18-22 

COUNCIL COMMENTS 
* Councilmember Holtmeier thanked Mayor Lucy for her years of service and a job well done. 

ADJOURNMENT 
With no further business to discuss, a motion to adjourn made at 7:28 p.m. by Councilmember 
Pettet, seconded by Councilmember Sullentrup passed without dissent. 

Adopted: 

Attest: 
City Clerk 

Passed: 

Attest: 
City Clerk 

Page 6 
April 18, 2022 

President of City Council 

Mayor of Washington, Missouri 



MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
CITY OF WASHINGTON, FRANKLIN COUNTY, MISSOURI 

April 18, 2022 

INTRODUCTORY ITEMS: 
Oath of Office - Newly Elected Officials: Mark Piontek, City Attorney; Allan Behr, Ward 1 
Councilman; Mark Hidritch, Ward 2 Councilman; Chad Briggs, Ward 3 Councilman; Michael 
Coulter, Ward 4 Councilman. 

The Special Meeting of the City of Washington, Missouri, City Council was held on Monday, 
April 18, 2022, at 7:40 p.m. in the Council Chamber. Mayor Doug Hagedorn opened the meeting 
with roll call and Pledge of Allegiance. 

Mayor: Doug Hagedorn Present 
Council Members: Ward I Al Behr Present 

Duane Reed Present 
Ward II Mark Hidritch Present 

Mark Wessels Present 
Ward III Chad Briggs Present 

Jeff Patke Present 
Ward IV Mike Coulter Present 

Joe Holtmeier Present 

Also Present: City Attorney Mark Piontek 
City Administrator Darren Lamb 
City Clerk Sherri Klekamp 
Police Chief Ed Menefee 
Fire Chief Tim Frankenberg 
Public Works Director John Nilges 
Economic Development Director Sal Maniaci 
Street Superintendent Tony Bonastia 
Parks Director Wayne Dunker 
Library Director Nelson Appell 

Originals and/or copies of agenda items of the meeting, including recorded votes are available on 
record in the office of the City Clerk. Each ordinance is read a minimum of twice by title, unless 
otherwise noted. 

Approval and Adiustment of Agenda including Consent Agenda: 
* Collector's Treasurer's Report Summary- November 2021 
* Investment Report- November 2021 
* FinaJ Payment Request - American Electric & Data Inc. - Lions Lake Pavilions 
* Final Payment Request - Landscape tructures- Phoenix Park Playground 
* Liquor License Renewals 

Page 1 
Special Meeting April 18, 2022 



* Taxicab Business License Renewals 
* Rabies Clinic - May 12 & 19, 2022 
* Street Closure Request - May 7. 2022 Firefighters of MO Convention Parade 
* Item 3c Public Hearing for Planned Development Distr.ict; Item 3d Planned Development 

District Ordinance 
* Item 8a Preliminary Plat Approval for Highland Meadows Plat 6; Item 8b Ordinance for 

Final Plat Approval for Highland Meadows Plat 6: Item 8c Preliminary Plat Approval for 
Highland Meadows Plat 7 
A motion to accept and approve the agenda including the consent agenda accordingly made 

by Councilmember Patke, seconded by Councilmember Holtmeier, passed without dissent. 

PRIORITY ITEMS: 
City Council Elections: 
* Election of Mayor Pro Tern 

Councilmember Holtmeier nominated Councilmember Patke, seconded by Councilmember 
Briggs. 
Councilmember Reed nominated Councilmember Hidritch, seconded by Councilmember 
Wessels. 
With no further nominations the motion to elect Jeff Patke as Mayor Pro Tern passed on the 
following 5 to 4 roll call vote; Behr-aye, Briggs-aye, Coulter-nay, Hidritch-nay, Holtmeier
aye, Patke-aye, Reed-nay, Wessels-nay, Hagedorn-aye. 
The motion to elect Mark Hidritch as Mayor Pro Tern died. 

* Election of Council Member to P&Z Commission 
Councilmember Reed nominated Councilmember Hidritch, seconded by Councilmember 
Patke. 
Councilmember Holtmeier nominated Councilmember Wessels, motion died. 
With no further nominations the motion to elect Mark Hidritch to the Planning and Zoning 
Commission passed on the following 8-0 roll call vote; Behr-aye, Briggs-aye, Coulter-aye, 
Hidritch-aye, Holtmeier-aye, Patke-aye, Reed-aye, Wessels-aye. 

* Election of Council Member to 353 Redevelopment Corporation 
Councilmember Hidritch nominated Councilmember Behr, seconded by Councilmember 
Reed. 
With no further nominations the motion to elect Al Behr to the 353 Corporation passed on 
the following 8-0 roll call vote; Behr-aye, Briggs-aye, Coulter-aye, Hidritch-aye, Holtmeier
aye, Patke-aye, Reed-aye, Wessels-aye. 

* Election of Board of Health 
Councilmember Patke nominated Councilmember Behr, Councilmember Hidritch, 
Councilmember Briggs and Councilmember Coulter, seconded by Councilmember 
Holtmeier. 
With no further nominations the motion to elect Al Behr, Mark Hidritch, Chad Briggs and 
Mike Coulter to the Board of Health passed on the following 8-0 roll call vote; Behr-aye, 
Briggs-aye, Coulter-aye, Hidritch-aye, Holtmeier-aye, Patke-aye, Reed-aye, Wessels-aye. 

Page2 
Special Meeting April 18, 2022 



Mayor's Presentations, Appointments & Reappointments: 
* Police Department Reappointments 

April 18, 2022 
City Council 
City of Washington 
Washington, Missouri 
Dear Council Members: 
I herewith submit for your approval the following for reappointment to the Police Department: 

NAME 
Daniel Day 
Police Officer 
Doug Tollison 
Police Officer 
Respectfully Submitted, 
James D. Hagedorn 
Mayor 

APPOINTED 
April 23, 2022 

May 03, 2022 

TERM 
EXPIRES 
April 23, 2023 

May 03, 2023 

A motion to accept and approve the reappointments made by Councilmember Holtmeier, 
seconded by Councilmember Hidritch, passed without dissent. 
PUBLIC HEARINGS 
* Special Use Permit - 1807 East Fifth Street 

April 12, 2022 
Mayor & City Council 
City of Washington 
Washington, MO 63090 
RE: File No. 22-0401-Special Use Permit-1807 E. Fifth Street-Indoor Shooting Range 
Mayor & City Council 
At their regularly scheduled meeting of the Planning and Zoning Commission held on April 11, 
2022 the Commission voted to recommend approval of the above Special Use Permit request 
with a unanimous vote. 
Sincerely, 
Thomas R. Holdmeier 
Commission Chairman 

Maniaci: Good Evening Council. On your agenda tonight is a request for a Special Use Permit 
for an Indoor Shooting Range at 1807 East Fifth Street. This is formally Nick's Gun and Pawn, 
if your familiar with it just east of former Patke's here on Fifth Street. The property is zoned C-2 
General Commercial. 

Half of you will remember in 2019, we actually had a request on this same property for 
an Indoor Shooting Range. At that time, they were actually proposing to do an expansion and 
then put in a shooting range, at that time it did go to Planning and Zoning Commission and City 
Council and passed both boards. 

Our City Code requires all Special Use Permits to receive occupancy and commence use 
within one year of approval or else they expire. In this case, they never did get the occupancy 

Page3 
Special Meeting April 18, 2022 



and commence use so it expired. They mentioned at the Planning and Zoning meeting last week 
that the shortage in ammunition shorted that out. It wasn't worth it to open a shooting range if 
they couldn't find ammunition, so that pushed it back further than a year. That's why they're 
back here tonight. 

The only thing that changed, this application, they're actually not proposing an expansion 
at this time. They are going to be rehabbing the existing building and putting all of the lanes in 
the existing building. 

It's the same recommendation as it was in 2019, this corridor Fifth Street varies from 
commercial to multi-family to actually light industrial. Right across the street here, you have 
light industrial. They have to show on the building permit that they're going to have sufficient 
equipment in the building to catch all of the bullets, and then our noise ordinance is in affect for 
all commercial uses that they have to make sure that it's all contained inside the building. We 
don't see any detriment to the surrounding properties. 

Planning and Zoning voted again last week on this unanimously in favor and staff also 
recommends approval. 
Patke: We have those such regulations in our code? 
Maniaci: It's not that specific to a shooting range. We have a noise ordinance that for 
commercial uses that all commercial uses have to meet. 
Patke: Right, so the way they build it they, as long as the noise is contained, they don't have to 
have a special wall inside or anything like that? As long as the noise is contained? 
Maniaci: The Building Department may have for occupancy. They did have on their 
application that they were going to have reinforced walls to catch the bullets. 
Patke: We talked about that in 2019, but we never went forward with the final so we never 
knew how it was built. Did we add anything in our code for that? 
Nilges: As a specific detail of the building code, I wouldn't know that off the top of my head, 
anything specific to shooting ranges. I do not think there is a code section for that in the building 
code. 
Maniaci: That would be reviewed prior to occupancy and not on the zoning. Unless there is 
something that, like in the fire code, the Fire Chief has jurisdiction to have extra requirements on 
a case-by-case basis. I don't know if the Building Department can have that prior occupancy as 
well. 
Nilges: I mean authority and jurisdiction has the ability to basically put in a requirement on 
there that they need to, but I can't think of a specific code section for shooting ranges. That 
being said, I haven't looked for one. We will review that once it comes in. 
Wessels: Sal, in the notes there, it seems to me that there was something in there about steel 
plates and concrete, etc. and also that it was going to comply with similar facilities used by 
Police Departments and others. I would think maybe when they bring forth specific plans, that 
we could some way make sure that it will indeed be safe. 
Maniaci: Correct, that was volunteered by the applicant. This was for the zoning use, when it 
comes time for the actual occupancy, the Building Department reviews all that to make sure it 
meets safety protocols. 
Patke: Okay. 
Wessels: Thank you. 

Page 4 
Special Meeting April 18, 2022 



Hidritch: And again, for everybody, there was no residents objected to this at all. Nobody 
showed, nobody was objected to this. 
Patke: At Planning and Zoning Mark, you're saying? 
Hidritch: Yes, as last time when this thing got brought up in 19, that time there was nobody. At 
Planning and Zoning there was nobody. 
Lamb: I think there were a few people at the previous one. 
Nilges: Yeah, at the last one. 
Hidritch: Oh, not that I can remember. 
Hagedorn: This will be the first one of its kind in town, won't it? 
Maniaci: Correct, we do not have this use currently. Any other questions for me? 
Hagedorn: Any of questions of Sal you guys? 
Maniaci: Thank you. 
Hagedorn: Okay. I'll entertain a motion. 
Lamb: You've got to open it up for Public Hearing. Go ahead and ask anyone from the crowd. 
Hagedorn: Public Comments. If anyone is interested in commenting, please come forward. 
Dr. J. Freeman: Good Evening Council. My name is Dr. J. Freeman; I'm the owner of Titan 
Hill Armory formally Nick's Gun & Pawn. I simply want to make myself available to answer 
any questions that you may have. 
Hagedorn: Thank you. 
Wessels: That's what my reference was. You will butt a residential neighborhood ... 
Dr. J. Freeman: Correct. 
Wessels: I don't know what kinds of weapons will be used in the shooting range, but I'm 
obviously concerned that we don't have something that's able to go through a wall into a 
neighbor's yard and so forth. 
Dr. J. Freeman: Right. 
Wessels: That's why I'm saying, when it comes time to actually do it, be it our buildings, Police 
Department, whoever, that someone is able to assure that kind of thing won't happen. 
Dr. J. Freeman: Certainly, and safety is the number one concern. The construction of the range 
has a couple of different mechanisms to stop any bullets in the back. First and foremost is over a 
thousand pounds of recycled rubber. That's actually the primary catch followed by a AR500 
Steel that's bullet resistant and concrete around it. The concrete actually surrounds the entire 
range area that will prevent rickashays, random shots, etc. and direct them down range to the 
bullet traps. 
Patke: So you know everything we're talking about, we just don't have it in the City Code to be 
specific about it 
Dr. J. Freeman: Right. 
Patke: Let it be a learning curve through the process, that's all I'm asking. Yeah, that's fine. 
Nilges: I've never permitted issued in Engineering before so it will take a little bit of effort to 
get caught up to that, but. .. 
Dr. J. Freeman: Right. 
Nilges: Any commercial development in town actually requires signed and sealed engineering 
plans, architect plans so we will be able to work through these things. 
Dr. J. Freeman: Right. 

PageS 
Special Meeting April 18, 2022 



Patke: Inaudible ... the questions of safety concerns, no doubt so thank you. 
Dr. J. Freeman: Absolutely. 
Patke: I appreciate you being here. 
Dr. J. Freeman: And one of the comments that was made was the reference in the Zoning and 
Planning Committee of about law enforcement utilization and similarity there. The equipment 
that we are using is from a company called Meggitt, they actually provide all of the mobile 
portable shooting ranges to the FBI and several other law enforcement agencies. It's industrial 
strength in design for safety as the number one concern. 
Patke: Thank you. 
Wessels: Thank you. 
Dr. J. Freeman: Any other questions? Thank you. 
Hagedorn: Any other comments you guys or from the public? Okay. 

With no further discussion, a motion to accept this item into the minutes made by 
Councilmember Patke, seconded by Councilmember Holtmeier, passed without dissent. 
Bill No. 22-12565, Ordinance No. 22-13521, an ordinance granting a Special Use Permit at 
1807 East Fifth Street for an Indoor Shooting Range in the City of Washington, Franklin 
County, Missouri. 
The ordinance was introduced by Councilmember Holtmeier. 

With no further discussion, the ordinance was read a second time and approved on the 
following vote; Wessels-aye, Reed-aye, Patke-aye, Hidritch-aye, Holtmeier-aye, Behr-aye, 
Briggs-aye, Coulter-aye. 

* Planned Residential Code Amendment 
April 18, 2022 
Honorable Mayor and City Council 
City of Washington 
Washington, MO 63090 
RE: Planned Residential Code Amendment 
Dear Mayor and City Council Members: 
The following ordinance, regarding the PDR District, has been reviewed and approved by the 
Planning and Zoning Commission. The goal of the amendment is meant to simplify the density 
requirements in the Planned Districts. The current code contradicts the intent of the district to 
allow for flexible densities by stating the development must match an underlying zoning district 
density. The intent is for the developer to propose a density and each project is reviewed and 
approved separately based on its fit into the surrounding area. 
Please let me know if you have any questions. 
Respectfully submitted, 
Sal Maniaci, AICP 
Community and Economic Development Director 

Hagedorn: Okay Sal, go ahead. 
Maniaci: Thank you. John, if you don't mind scrolling up, I don't have a PowerPoint, I actually 
have what was in the packet. 
Nilges: All the way to the top? 
Maniaci: Yes, please. 

Page 6 
Special Meeting April 18, 2022 



Maniaci: This was something that we discussed internally with staff a few months ago, and then 
brought to Pla1U1ing and Zoning Commission at their last meeting. 

Currently, we have what's known as PD Districts, Pla1U1ed Districts and they can go into 
three categories: PDR for Pla1U1ed Residential, PDC for Planned Commercial or PDM for 
Pla1U1ed Mix. The intent of that section of code is to be able to allow a developer or property 
owner to ask for a very specific zoned district where essentially, when it's a Pla1U1ed District, 
when they ask for the reason of zoning, they have to have their engineered and civil design plans 
all done up front. Staff, Pla1U1ing and Zoning and City Council and the Public have the right then 
to comment on that and it can be amended and then that plan is actually adopted with the zoning. 

The reason for that and the intent of that section of code is for the capability of allowing 
case-by-case developments if there's something unique or peculiar about the site that they can't 
fit into a regular zoned district. It basically allows for some flexibility for a developer to propose 
something that's a little bit more unique that they could fit into that again, they wouldn't be 
asking for eight variances. They are just saying hey, this is what I'm proposing, here's the plans 
upfront and then it goes through the whole process. That specific plan is adopted, meaning that 
the zoning is not wide open, unlike a General Commercial. That property once it's ordinance is 
passed, it's only allowed for that use and that design of the plan. 

We have a couple of examples of that. The International Shoe Factory, utilized that. 
Obviously, that building was up to the property lines. There was no setbacks on that, and then 
with having an existing three-story building, the density of that wouldn't have met our existing 
zoning code, so they went to Planned Residential. 

Another example of that was, Locust Valley. The McBride Workforce Development. 
We worked with them two years ago. The way that property sloped down and the development 
agreement we did with them needed a certain amount of homes that they needed to get narrower 
lots and shallower setbacks on the front, so they had 20 foot instead of 25. With them donating 
the land for the trail, that scooted all of the lots up. So, just to give you a little bit of background 
there. 

Our current code, the code that was written in 2017, our consultants PGA V, wrote this for 
us. We always had Planned Districts in our City Code but they kind of redefined it and actually 
brought in some language from other communities that they thought would maybe fit better. 
We've only had those two developments since this passed. 

The issue that staff sees with this, is that in this Pla1U1ed District, the requirements when it 
talks about density, it says that the developer has to pick an underlined district to set the density 
with. Meaning they have to pick another zoned district and have to match that density, which 
really contradicts the whole purpose of having flexibility because like the Shoe Factory, they 
could go R-3. So, if you had to pick the underlined density of R-3 to match, they wouldn't be 
able to build what they wanted to build. Same thing with the other development. 

So, with both of those they had to ask for variances of this portion when it got approved. 
Darren, John and myself were sitting down and talking about this and we realized that the whole 
intent of this is allowing for flexibility is to be able to allow for these developments to get 
approved on a case-by-case basis. There is staff review, there's Pla1U1ing and Zoning review and 
there's City Council review multiple times. It's not, they have to do a preliminary review and 
final review. So, there's ample time for all of us to look at this and comment if it fits into the 

Page 7 
Special Meeting April 18, 2022 



neighborhood that they're wanting to develop in, or if there's really a reason why they can't just 
go for a regular rezoned district. 

So, what you see here crossed out in red, there is a lot crossed out here, on this PDR it 
talks about again, the density of a residential development shall be consistent with the intent of 
the original underlined Residential District. Well again, we don't necessarily have an underlined 
district. This isn't an Overlay District, it's setting up its own district to be approved on a case
by-case basis. 

So, we took out this entire section on density and how they calculated and put in this 
paragraph that the density of a planned residential development shall be approved per the 
submitted plan. The Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council shall be determined if 
the proposed density exceeds what is necessary and appropriate for the surrounding area. 
Whoever fails to comply with the general standards set forth in Section G. 

I want to point out that that Section G really outlines these general standards. If the 
project creates inadequate or unsafe situation for the neighborhood, then we have the authority to 
recommend denial anyway. I think it's kind of, we already have the catchall here to say hey 
look, this development is too dense or you have, the setbacks are too shallow or whatever it is, 
we have the authority to say, if it has inadequate or detriment to the surrounding property, that 
kind of gives us the catchall there. 

That is what we are proposing to replace the density requirement with this. Again, that 
would just allow the same type of project we saw at the Shoe Factory and at Locust Valley. This 
is not necessarily opening up for a free for all; every single planned development is approved on 
a case-by-case basis. That allows us to review it and if it doesn't fit in, we can still make the 
same recommendation we would have prior. 

This did go to Planning and Zoning Commission for review last week and they did vote 
unanimously to approve the change. I'll take any questions. 
Hagedorn: Any other questions you guys of Sal? 
Patke: So, you're not really looking to copycat everything else that we already have, you're just 
looking to streamline this to meet an individual project? 
Maniaci: Correct, it's to allow a truly case-by-case review. 
Patke: Okay. 
Maniaci: Because ... 
Patke: I had it as we want to keep things the same as we did here and we do there, but this is 
just a case-by-case basis? 
Maniaci: It would be really hard for me to find, to imagine a situation where someone would 
come in with a Planned Residential District and say they're going to pick an underlined zoning 
density because if they could meet that underlined zoning density, then they wouldn't be coming 
for a Planned District. 
Patke: Right. 
Maniaci: They would just be going to that zoned district. So, I'm not going to lie, when this 
was approved, when PGAV wrote this we just kind of said okay, you're the consultant and now 
after we've had two developments go through, it's really, it doesn't meet our intent of what we 
want. 

Page 8 
Special Meeting April 18, 2022 



Nilges: Mark, real quick, if a plan comes in, City Council has the ability to comment on that 
plan and then require things on that plan as well, correct? 
Piontek: Yes, correct. 
Nilges: I just want to make sure that's clear to everyone. 
Piontek: Yes. 
Wessels: I called Sal because I found the thing kind of confusing and it also looked like just a 
way to open up, if you don't like the way we do some things, here's how you can get around it 
so, I called Sal and he explained it. Pointing out that those are the only two that we have. I can 
remember we spent a lot of time on each of those looking at specifics ... 
Maniaci: Yes. 
Wessels: And they, I felt a lot more comfortable knowing how it's set up. 
Maniaci: There is, if we meet with a developer and we feel after hearing the proposal that 
there's, we'll let them know if there's not a reason they need to go to a Planned District for two 
reasons. One, if it's really trying to get around regulations, we can say look we're not going to 
recommend approval of this. Two, there's a lot of risk for a developer to go to a Planned District 
where City staff is already going into it with recommendation of denial because they have to pay 
for the engineering and civil plans up front before they turn in their application. That could be 
thousands of dollars for their application when they know that they're going to get a 
recommendation denial upfront. 

So, that's why there's a lot of meetings before hand where we kind of say hey look, we 
think that you can meet an existing zoned district say if the Shoe Factory had the room and could 
have gone to regular R-3 Regular Multi-Family, we would have recommended that first before 
they went through the hoops of a Planned District. 

The Planned District is meant, we're taking out some requirements here but the process is 
still the same. It's a rigorous process, there's multiple reviews, you have to have a preliminary 
review by Council and then you have to come back with finalized plans and have a final set 
approved by Council. It has to be a pretty significant development that the developers is 
confident to take their risk in. 
Lamb: One other example that you had was and it was prior to these code changes in 17 was the 
MacArthur Park when they redid the Brown Shoe Factory. At that time, we had a Senior 
Community District at that time we removed that in 2017. It had language very similar to this 
that allowed that development to go through so, it's kind of reverting back to those unique 
developments that would have never been able to go ahead and reuse those buildings if we 
wouldn't have recognized that. 
Maniaci: That's a good point. It's actually reflecting closer to what would have been R-4 back 
in 2016. 
Hagedorn: Other discussion? Do we need a motion? 
Lamb: No, it's still a Public Hearing so see if the public has any comments. 
Hagedorn: Anyone in the public care to comment? 
Kari Klenke: Hi, I'm Kari Klenke. Do you need my address? 
Klekamp: I have it. 
Kari Klenke: I just have a couple of questions that I think we need to consider, and I am not an 
expert in Planning and Zoning by any stretch of the imagination; however, it appears to me that 

Page 9 
Special Meeting April 18, 2022 



this is opening it up to let there be less restriction for more high density housing in the City. I 
just will urge Council to consider what all is involved when you bring in multiple high-density 
housing developments what that does for the economy. It might bring in people, it might bring 
in lower income or lower price point housing but, it's just another way of getting around because 
what you're telling us, what I'm hearing is that the developments that I believe were good 
MacArthur ... 
Lamb: Park. 
Kari Klenke: Locust and then the Shoe Factory were positive things but they were still able to 
do them, it just took more legwork. It sounds to me like this is just opening it up to make it 
easier for more high-density housing. That's my comment. 
Hagedorn: Anyone else want to comment? Okay. 

With no further discussion, a motion to accept this item into the minutes made by 
Councilmember Holtmeier, seconded by Councilmember Patke, passed without dissent. 
Bill No. 22-12566, Ordinance No. 22-13522, an ordinance amending Section 400.115 of the 
Code of the City of Washington, Missouri relating to Planned Development Districts. 
The ordinance was introduced by Councilmember Patke. 

With no further discussion, the ordinance was read a second time and approved on the 
following vote; Wessels-aye, Reed-aye, Patke-aye, Hidritch-aye, Holtmeier-aye, Behr-aye, 
Briggs-aye, Coulter-aye. 

CITIZENS COMMENTS 
* Hawkins Farr 2201 Ashton Hills Court, congratulated the new members of the City Council 

for winning the election and addressed Mayor Hagedorn on a letter that was written. 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
* None 

REPORT OF DEPARTMENT HEADS 
* Public Works Director John Nilges updated Council on paving projects. A brief discussion 

ensued regarding the waterline at North Goodes Mill and South Point Road. 

ORDINANCES/RESOLUTIONS 
Bill No. 22-12567, Ordinance No. 22-13523, an ordinance authorizing and directing the 
execution of a Professional Services Agreement with H3 Studio and the City of 
Washington, Missouri and amend the 2022 Budget. 
The ordinance was introduced by Councilmember Holtmeier. 

After discussion, the ordinance was read a second time and approved on the following vote; 
Wessels-aye, Reed-aye, Patke-aye, Hidritch-aye, Holtmeier-aye, Behr-aye, Briggs-aye, Coulter
aye. 
Bill No. 22-12568, Ordinance No. 22-13524, an ordinance authorizing and directing the 
City of Washington, Missouri to accept the Proposal with Dude Solutions for the purchase 
of Building and Permitting Software. 
The ordinance was introduced by Councilmember Patke. 

Page 10 
Special Meeting April 18, 2022 

' 



After discussion, the ordinance was read a second time and approved on the following vote; 
Wessels-aye, Reed-aye, Patke-aye, Hidritch-aye, Holtmeier-aye, Behr-aye, Briggs-aye, Coulter
aye. 

Bill No. 22-12569, Ordinance No. 22-13525, an ordinance authorizing and directing the 
execution of an Easement Deed by and between the City of Washington, Missouri and 
Gerald H. and Betty M. Parmentier. 
The ordinance was introduced by Councilmember Holtmeier. 

After discussion, the ordinance was read a second time and approved on the following vote; 
Wessels-aye, Reed-aye, Patke-aye, Hidritch-aye, Holtmeier-aye, Behr-aye, Briggs-aye, Coulter
aye. 

COMMISSION, COMMITTEE AND BOARD REPORTS 
* Preliminary Plat Approval - Highland Meadows Plat 6 

April 12, 2022 
Mayor & City Council 
City of Washington 
Washington, MO 63090 
RE: File No. 22-0402 & 0403-Preliminary Plat approval for Highland Meadows Plat 6 & 7 
Mayor & City Council: 
At their regularly scheduled meeting of the Planning and Zoning Commission held on April 11, 
2022 the Commission voted to recommend approval of the above preliminary plat request with a 
unanimous vote. 
Sincerely, 
Thomas R. Holdmeier 
Commission Chairman 
After discussion, a motion to accept and approve this item made by Councilmember Patke, 

seconded by Councilmember Holtmeier, passed without dissent. 
Bill No. 22-12570, Ordinance No. 22-13526, an ordinance approving the final plat of 
Highland Meadows Plat 6, in the City of Washington, Franklin County, Missouri. 
The ordinance was introduced by Councilmember Patke. 

With no further discussion, the ordinance was read a second time and approved on the 
following vote; Wessels-aye, Reed-aye, Patke-aye, Hidritch-aye, Holtmeier-aye, Behr-aye, 
Briggs-aye, Coulter-aye. 

* Preliminary Plat Approval - Highland Meadows Plat 7 
April 12, 2022 
Mayor & City Council 
City of Washington 
Washington, MO 63090 
RE: File No. 22-0402 & 0403-Preliminary Plat approval for Highland Meadows Plat 6 & 7 
Mayor & City Council: 

Page 11 
Special Meeting April 18, 2022 



At their reguiarly scheduled meeting of the Planning and Zoning Commission held on April 11, 
2022 the Commission voted to recommend approval of the above preliminary plat request with a 
unanimous vote. 
Sincerely, 
Thomas R. Holdmeier 
Commission Chairman 
After discussion, a motion to accept and approve this item made by Councilmember Patke, 

seconded by Councilmember Holtmeier, passed without dissent. 

MAYOR'S REPORT 
* Looking forward to working with everyone. 

CITY ADMINISTRATOR'S REPORT 
* None 

COUNCIL COMMENTS 
* Discussion on motions and votes regarding ordinances and resolutions. 

CITY ATTORNEY'S REPORT 
Public vote on whether or not to hold a closed meeting to discuss personnel, legal and real estate 
matters pursuant to Section 610.021 RSMo (2000) passed at 9:07 p.m. on the following roll call 
vote; Wessels-aye, Reed-aye, Patke-aye, Hidritch-aye, Holtmeier-aye, Behr-aye, Briggs-aye, 
Coulter-aye. 

The regular session reconvened at 9:51 p.m. 

ADJOURNMENT 
With no further business to discuss, a motion to adjourn made at 9:51 p.m. by Councilmember 
Holtmeier, seconded by Councilmember Wessels passed without dissent. 

Adopted: 

Attest: 
City Clerk President of City Council 

Passed: 

Attest: 
City Clerk Mayor of Washington, Missouri 

Page 12 
Special Meeting April 18, 2022 



CITY OF WASHINGTON 
CITY COLLECTOR'S/TREASURER'S REPORT SUMMARY 
DECEMBER 2021 

City Collector"s Report 

CASH BALANCE 

ASOf' RECEIPTS DISBURSEMENTS 

12/01/2021 

I CAIIH_, 

GEHEIIAL FUND ~ 1651 ,085.60) 1,307,095.154 (958 849.26) 

LI8RARYFUND @ 288,275.89 54,880.38 (55,922.931 

VOLUNTHR FIRE FUND 1 597 808.35 132,655.43 (47,668.75) 
VENICLE & EQUll'MENT @ 
REPLACl!M~NT FUND 1 .235,408.09 538.53 0.00 
STORM WATER IMPROVE-MENT 

FUND 3 467,359.59 1"" ""1.03 (23,784.98) 
CAPITAL IMP-ROVEMENT SALES 

TAX FUND 1 ,079,336.66 261,958.74 (71,758.33) 

:::SPORTATION SALES TAX ® 
1315,141.541 313,770.78 (216,725.57) 

D9T URVICE C.0 ,P, FUND 4136 445.96 1 803,14 o.oo 
DOWNTOWN TIF RPA-1 FUND 923414.78 25,523.54 (5,832.50) 

FRONT & MAIN Tlf ltl'A-3 FUND 80,851.24 18 926.05 0.00 

RHINE ltlVER TIF Rl'Ml FUND 379.56 31,144.81 o.oo 
WATER FUND 1 136,046.89 170,686.02 1382 874.651 

RWAGE TREATMBfT FUND 589,030.78 211.205.03 (282,696.77) 

SOLID WASTE FUND 4 199,694.23 196 948.66 (213,769.88) 

PHOENIX CENTER II CID FUND 5 758.18 57,220.49 (62,353.451 

TOTALS $ 17,773,583.06 $ 2,906,578.27 $ (2,322,237.07) 

DELINQUENT CITY RE & PP TAXES COLLECTED THIS MONTH: $ 4,256.15 

J) = Resolution No- 11-108680 15% =Fund Balance Reseived For General Operating Fund 

CMH IIAUIICI! 
AIIDP 

LESS RESTRICTED CASH 
12/JtlZDat 

(302.1139.22) (68,401.29) 

287 """.34 (175,214.211 

1,""'7911.03 o.oo 

t.235 Me,112 0.00 

3;;5115 7115.64 o.oo 

1,ZU.537,07 o.oo 

(218,098.33) o.oo 
4,138,249. t 0 11 ,853,338.391 

1143,105.82 0 .00 

99 777.29 0.00 

31 524.37 0.00 

1123,858.2ll 0.00 

51t,531.D4 o.oo 

4, 182.an.01 16,681 418.79) 

825.22 0.00 

• 18,357~ $ (8,778,372.88) 

?tArfa-

~ OJ~ 
DATE 

25% - Fund Balnace Reseive For Enterprise Funds (Water, Sewer, and Solid Waste) 

Adjusted Cash Position 

C ... H INVESTMENTS 
LESS RESERVED UNRESTRICTED ... OF 

C ... H 1Z/31/2021 

(8 891.021 (380,131.531 2 .029,002.22 

(54,033.14) 57 985.99 0.00 

(24 343.281 1,658 451.75 o.oo 

0.00 1 235,1146.152 0.00 

o.oo 3 ,565,795.64 353,676.00 

0.00 1,269 537 .07 o.oo 

o.oo (218,096.33) o.oo 
0.00 2,284 11 o. 71 o.oo 
0.00 943,105.82 0 .00 

0.00 911,777.29 0.00 

0.00 31 ,524.37 0.00 

o.oo 923,858.26 0.00 

0 .00 517,539,04 o.oo 

o.oo (2,498,545.78) 0.00 

0.00 625.22 o.oo 
-

$ (87,267.44) S 9,492;284.M .2,382.8'78.2Z 

@ = Annually in October, Transfers for debt service and subsidy allocations are done which may result in a negative cash balances until tax revenues come in at calendar year end, 

LESS DEBT ~ LESS -SERVICE 15%/2S% IU-111 
RESERVE DESI GNAT ED -2021-2022 

o.oo 11 ,612,887.301 3"-"""'.SSI 

o.oo 0 .00 5711115.99 

0.00 o.oo 1,8SB,451.75 

o.oo 0.00 t c- - - -
0.00 o.oo 3,111 IA71-Jl4 

0.00 0.00 1,2111,537.07 

o.oo o.oo (21LD9L331 

11 834,300.001 o.oo 450 610.71 

0.00 o.oo 1143105.82 

0.00 o.oo 99777.29 

o.oo o.oo 31,524.37 

1365,400.001 (397,743.50) 180714.78 

(1 ,447,100.00) (581 ,544.75) (1,511 ,105.711 

o.oo 1796,010.751 l!l.2M.5~1 

0.00 o.oo 1125.22 

$(3,846,800.00) S (3,388, 1811,30) $ 4,839,978.06 

.1." 



~ 
INVESTMENT 

' ' . ' DECEMBER 2021 CATE 

\ ~ ; .I 

GOVERNMENT BONDS: 

FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK BONDS 06/08/2021 

FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK BONDS lt/15/2019 

IBN: BONO TOTALS: 

CERTIFICATES OF DEPOSITS: 
CAPITAL ONE BANK USA NA CO 02/08/2017 

KS STATE BANK CO 02/09/2018 

ENERBANK USA CO 09/27/2019 

STATE BANK OF INDIA CO 02/25/2019 

IBN: CERTIFICATE OF DEPOSIT TOTAL: 

FIRST INTERNET BANK INDIANA CD 02/01/2021 

FIVE POINTS BANK CO 02/0112021 
MIDLAND STATES BANK CD 0210112021 

VISION BANK CO 06/30/2021 

AMERICAN: CERTIFICATE OF DEPOSIT TOTAL: 

CERTIFICATE OF DEJ>OSITS TO'{AlS: 

MONEY MARKETS: 

IBN:MONEY MARKET 

AMERICAN : MONEY MARKET 

MONEY MARKET TOTALS: 

GRAND TOTALS: 

ALLOCATIONS OF AJNDS: 

PRINCIPAL· GENERAL FUND ACCT_- 001-103000 

INVESTMENT GENERAL FUND- GAIN(LOSS) 

YEAR END MARKET VALUE ADJUSTMENT-SEPT 

TOTAL GENERAL FUND: 

PRINCIPAL - STORMWATER FUND ACCT.- 250-103000 

TOTAL STORMWATER FUND: 

1,500,000.00 

529,002.22 

353,676.00 

INTEREST 

PERCENT 

2.125% 

2.250% 

2 300% 

2-450% 

1.950% 

3_050% 

0.650% 

1 000% 
0750% 

0750% 

TOTAL MARKET VALUE OF INVESTMENTS: 

~~ ,~(\ 
MARY J. SPRUNG, CP f ANCE DIJ El • 

- f'S ·r uvv 

$_ 

I 

CITY OF WASHINGTON MONTHLY INVESTMENT REPORT 

MATURITY BEGINNING ADJUSTED REVENUE EXPENSE SOLD/REINVESTED ENDING 

DATE ADJUSTED GAINJ(LOSS) 10/01/21 -09/30/22 ADJUSTED 

COST COST 

09/14/2029 $ 241 014_94 (807 54) . $ . $ 240.207 40 
12/08/2023 $ 496.233-36 (2.19816) 5.400.00 . s 494.03520 

s 737,248 .. JO $ (3,005,70\ $ 5,400.00 $ 734,242.80 

02123/2022 S 2~1.219_00 (482 34) s 240,736.66 

02/09/2023 $ 53.302.50 (11664) 104 71 . $ 53,185,86 

03/27/2023 $ 1.16,379.00 (22MOJ 182 71 $ 116,152.20 

02/28/2024 $ 253_056.48 (905.281 $ 252,15120 

$ 663.956 98 (1,731 .06) 287 42 $ 662,225.92 

08/02/2022 $ 245_000_00 s 245.ooo_oo 

02/02/2025 $ 245.000.00 s 245,000.00 
02/02/2024 $ 245.000.00 $ 245,000.00 

06/2312023 $ 245.000.00 $ 245,000.00 

$ 980.000_00 0.00 0.00 $ 980,000_00 

$ 1,643,956.98 s (1,731 .061 S 287.42 s . s 1.642.225.92 

$ 499,01 - - 5,687 42 $ 6 ,186.43 

$ 23.27 0 00 0.00 o oo s 23 27 

s 522.28 s 6,209.70 

$ 2,381,727.R s (4731.781 $ 11,887.42 $ 2,382,678.22 

NOTE: Market Value Adjustment done with annual audit adjustments in September. 

2,029,002.22 

353,676.00 

2,382,678 .22 

L.f(,~h;)_ 
DAJ. 

q u3~1-'J-
DATE 

db 



405 Jefferson Street, Washington, MO 63090 

May 2, 2022 

Honorable Mayor and City Council 
City of Washington 
405 Jefferson St. 
Washington, MO 63090 

RE: Final Payment Request - Fry & Associates, Inc. 

Honorable Mayor and City Council: 

636-390-1080 www.washmo.gov 

The Parks and Recreation Department is asking for final payment for the Lions Lake 
Pavilions. The project is completed per the specifications and documents, and as such, 
I am asking that you consider granting Fry & Associates, Inc request for final payment in 
the amount of $81,746.00. 

As always, if you have any questions, concerns or need additional information, please 
advise. 

Respectfully submitted, 

wrv~ 
Wayne Dunker MA, CPRP 
Director of Parks & Recreation 

Attachment - 1 

ic 



FINAL PAYMENT REQUEST 

TO: City Council 

NAME OF PROJECT: Lions Lake Pavilions 

OWNER: CITY OF WASHINGTON 

CONTRACTOR: Fry and Associates, Inc. 

THE FOLLOWING FINAL PAYMENT IS HEREBY REQUESTED TO BE MADE TO THE 
CONTRACTOR: 

Original Contract Price ... ............. .. .... .. .. .. ... ........... .. . .. .. .. .... ... .. . $186,097.00 
Contingency .... ... ... .... .. .... ... . ..... . ... .. ... .... ... . .. ....... .. .............. . .. . $0. 00 
New Contract Amount. ... .. ....... .. ..... . ... ......... ........... . .. ... ........ .. ... $0.00 
Previous Payments ..... ...... .... ..... ...... ... . ..... ............................ ... $104,351.00 
Final Payment. .... ..... .. .......... .. ........... . ..... . .. ............................. $81,746.00 

Approval: 

Date: -------

City of Washington, Missouri 

By: -------

Title: --------



r 
Fry & Associates, Inc. 
101 E 15th Ave 

Invoice 
,; t 

North Kansas City, MO 64116 
(816) 221-4825 
acctg@fryinc.com 
www.fryandassociates.com 

BILL TO 

City of Washington, MO 
Parks Dept. 
1120 South Lakeshore Dr. 
Washington, MO 63090 

INVOICE# 
·--

32911 

SALES REP 
Dave Holaway 

ACTIVITY 

Install 
Shelter Installation 

DATE 
-·· -· -~ 

04/11/2022 

roTAL DUE 

$81,746.00 

Includes Installation of 3 shelters and footings. 

Install 
CANCELLED 
Stone Wrap Installation 

DUE DATE 

SHIP TO 

Parks Dept. 

Lions Lake Park 
Grand Ave. & Veteran's Or. 
Washington, MO 63090 

TERMS 
---~- - - -- ---- --

\ 04/21/2022 Net 10 

QTY 

0 

The Scope of Work includes the supplies and installion of (22) 20"x 20"x 42" 
Natural Dimensional 
Stone Post bases with 21" x 4" stone caps. 

· CANCELLED 

Invoice balance is CASH/Check price unless otherwise stated. 
Payment Options: 
1. Mail Check to address listed above. 
2. ACH - click on the e-mail link. 

3. Credit Card: Contact acctg@fryinc.com to enable e-mailed invoice to 
receive payment by credit card. Balance is subject to a 3.5% (of total due) 
convenience fee (if not already added). 

BALANCE DUE 

ENCLOSED 

RATE 

81,746.00 

33,770.00 

AMOUNT 

81,746.00 

0.00 

$81,746.00 

Payment in Full is required by the Terms set forth above. The seller retains full interest of items purchased under this invoice until full payment has been 
received. Invoice not paid by the due date are subject to a 1.5% finance charge per month, 



405 Jefferson Street, Washington, MO 63090 

May 2, 2022 

Honorable Mayor and City Council 
City of Washington 
405 Jefferson St. 
Washington, MO 63090 

636-390-1080 www.washmo.gov 

RE: Final Payment Request - American Electric & Data Inc. 

Honorable Mayor and City Council : 

The Parks and Recreation Department is asking for final payment for electrical services 
at the Old Bathhouse and City Auditorium. The project is completed per the 
specifications and documents, and as such, I am asking that you consider granting 
American Electric & Data's request for final payment in the amount of $55,850.00. 

As always, if you have any questions, concerns or need additional information, please 
advise. 

Respectfully submitted, 

u)rv~ 
Wayne Dunker MA, CPRP 
Director of Parks & Recreation 

Attachment - 1 



TO: 

NAME OF PROJECT: 

OWNER: 

CONTRACTOR: 

FINAL PAYMENT REQUEST 

City Council 

Electric Services Work - Old Bathhouse & Auditorium 

CITY OF WASHINGTON 

American Electric & Data Inc. 

THE FOLLOWING FINAL PAYMENT IS HEREBY REQUESTED TO BE MADE TO THE 
CONTRACTOR: 

Original Contract Price ... .... .. ... ..... . ....... .... . ......... ........ .............. $55,850.00 
Contingency .......... ... ............. .... .. ............................. ........... . .. $0.00 
New Contract Amount.. .................................. .. .............. .. ......... $0.00 
Previous Payments ..... .................................................... ......... $0.00 
Final Payment. ........... ......... .. ................ ...... ....... ..... ...... .......... $55,850.00 

Approval: 

Date: -------
City of Washington , Missouri 

By: -------

Title: --------



AMERlCAN ELECTRIC & DATA, INC. 
PO BOX 340 

Bill To 

112 ST. CHARLES STREET 
NEW MELLE, MO. 63365 
OFFICE (636) 398-881 l 
WWW.AEDI-MO.COM 

Cl rY OF WASllINGTON 
/\TTN: CHAO OWENS 
405 JEFFERSON STREE'I 
WASHINGTON MO 63090 

P.O. No. Terms 

Invoice 
Date Invoice# 

4/27i2022 15 I 44 

Project 

Net 30 M[SC-2-0007-00-NX I er I Y OF '.VASIi BATH 1-lOliS 

Item 

Conlrn~L CosL 

Contrnct Cost 

C'onrract Cnst 

·111ank rou l<H your liu~incss. 

Description 

CITY OF WASHINGTON BATI I IIOUSF·:/1\L;DITORll/M NEW SERVICE 
BlLLED DATE 11/12/22 (Rlf.LING F'OR. 100% OF BASE BIO) 

CITY Of' WASHIJ\U'J'ON BATH HOU.%/A lJDITORIUM NEW SERVICE 
BILI F,D DATE 4/12/22 (BILLING FOR 80% OF ALTERNATE HID) 

CITY OF WAS! IINCi I ON BATII HOUSl:t/\UDlTClRllJM NEW SERVICE 
UI LLJN(i FOR ro JA i ' R[MAJNINC Hi\L.-\NCJ-. OF CON'I RACT 

Total 

Amount 

18.200 OD 

.JO, 120.llO 

7. 530 Oil 

1:55.S50.00 

Payments $0 .00 

Balance Due 
'j;~'i.85U 01) 



405 Jefferson Street, Washington, MO 63090 

April 27, 2022 

Re: Liquor License Renewals 

Sherri Klekamp, City Clerk 
City of Washington 
405 Jefferson St 
Washington, MO 63090 

Dear Sherri 

636-390-1000 www.washmo.gov 

Enclosed is a list of businesses that are applying for renewal of their City of Washington liquor 
license. The list includes: the name of the business and owner, the business location, fees paid, 
and the type of sale requested. All fees have been paid and the required paperwork has been 
submitted to the Collector's Office. The applicants have asked that their application go before 
the City Council at the May 2, 2022 meeting. 

Sincerely, 

Heather Parker 
Accounts Specialist I 
City of Washington 



1. Old Bridge Brewing Inc. 
DBA: Old Bridgeview Brewing 
Eric Earls 
16 E Front St. 
Manufacture Intoxicating Liquor of All Kinds 
$150.00 
Mon - Sat Sale of Intoxicating liquor of all kinds by the drink 
$300.00 
Sunday Sales 
$200.00 
Wholesale Intoxicating Liquor of All Kinds 
$100.00 

2. Kalbhairav LLC 
DBA: All in One Liquor & Smoke House 
Sharlin Patel 
305 E ath St. 
Mon - Sat Sale of Intoxicating liquor of all kinds in original package 
$100.00 
Sunday Sales 
$200.00 

3. Walgreens 
Robbin Griffith 
890 Washington Corners 
Mon - Sat Sale of Intoxicating liquor of all kinds in original package 
$100.00 
Sunday Sales 
$200.00 

4. Veterans Of Foreign Wars 
DBA:VFW 
Charles Wickles 
813 Jefferson St. 
Mon- Sat Sale of Intoxicating liquor of all kinds by the drink 
$300.00 

5. Walmart Supercenter #172 
James Emanuel Jr. 
1701 A Roy Dr. 
Mon - Sat Sale of Intoxicating liquor of all kinds in original package 
$100.00 
Sunday Sales 
$200.00 
Tasting Fee 
$25.00 



6. Vino Di Lafayette 
Toni Cavin 
309 Lafayette St. 
Mon - Sat Sale of Malt Liquor and Light Wines 
$50.00 
Sunday Sales 
$200.00 

7. Big Muddy Barbeque, LLC 
OBA: Sugarfire Smokehouse 
512 W Front St. 
Mon - Sat Sale of Intoxicating liquor of all kinds by the drink 
$300.00 
Sunday Sales 
$200.00 

8. Oremor Hospitality, LLC 
OBA: Pulque Mexican Restaurant 
Saul Rougro 
3051 Phoenix Center Dr. 
Mon - Sat Sale of Intoxicating liquor of all kinds by the drink 
$300.00 
Sunday Sales 
$200.00 

9. Midwest Petroluem Co #78 
James McNutt 
1000 E 5th St. 
Mon - Sat Sale of Intoxicating liquor of all kinds in original package 
$100.00 
Sunday Sales 
$200.00 

10. Casey's Marketing Company 
Henry Dowen Ill 
1501 High St. 
Mon - Sat Sale of Intoxicating liquor of all kinds in original package 
$100.00 
Sunday Sales 
$200.00 

11 . Mid River Restaurants LLC 
OBA: Applebee's Neighborhood Grill 
Lorene Williams 
1960 Washington Crossing 
Mon- Sat Sale of Intoxicating liquor of all kinds by the drink 
$300.00 
Sunday Sales 
$200.00 



12. Creek Side Enterprises of Washington Missouri LLC 
DBA: The Creek Grill & Sports Bar 
Donald Grahl 
2000 Phoenix Center Dr. 
Mon- Sat Sale of Intoxicating liquor of all kinds by the drink 
$300.00 
Sunday Sales 
$200.00 

13.lmo's 
Craig Mueller 
1104 Washington Square 
Mon - Sat Sale of Malt Liquor by Drink 
$50.00 

14.Murphy USA#7416 
Lorene Williams 
1645 A Roy Dr. 
Mon - Sat Sale of Intoxicating liquor of all kinds in original package 
$100.00 
Sunday Sales 
$200.00 

15. Streber Events LLC 
DBA: Oak and Front LLC 
120 W Front St. 
Mon - Sat Sale of Intoxicating liquor of all kinds by the drink 
$300.00 
Sunday Sales 
$200.00 



405 Jefferson Street, Washington. MO 63090 

April 25, 2022 

Honorable Mayor and City Council 
City of Washington 

405 Jefferson Street 
Washington, Mo. 63090 

RE: Microfilm and Disposal of Records 

Honorable Mayor and Council Members: 

I request authorization to dispose of the records listed on the attached sheets. Our procedures are 

compliant and follow the guidelines of the State of Missouri Statutes. 

Respectfully submitted, 

vf\\~~ 
Mary J. Sprung, PA 
Finance Director 

cc: Record Retention File 
Enclosure 



LOCAL RECORD PROGRAM 
DISPOSITION LIST 

CITY OF WASHINGTON IN FRANKLIN COUNTY MISSOURI 

The following list of records has met their retention schedule and are recommended for disposal under RSMo 109.230 
subsection 4. The officeholder with jurisdiction over these records may elect to take the following action: Store the 
records, destroy the records or deaccession the records. If the records are destroyed or donated to a local historical 
agency, the action should be recorded in the minutes of the City Council with the record series and inclusive dates. 

76 Boxes for Disposal 
Prepared by Nicholas Tope 5/2/2022 - Dispose or Microfilm 

QUANTITY CONTENTS OF BOX INCLUSIVE DATES RECORD SERIES RETENTION 
13 boxes 

Accounts Payable Records 2014-2016 GS007,GS009 5 yrs 

3 boxes 

Open Payable Report 2014-2016 GS007 5 yrs 

Open Encumbrance Report 2014-2016 GS007 5 yrs 

Fiscal Year Close Register 2014-2016 GS007 5 yrs 

Check Register 2014-2016 GSOl0,0703 5 yrs 

Payable Register 2014-2016 GS007 5 yrs 

Encumbrance Report 2014-2016 GS007 5 yrs 

Disposed Asset Master Register 2014-2016 GS054 5 yrs 

Fixed Asset Transfer Register 2014-2016 GS007 5 yrs 

Fixed Asset Depreciation Register 2014-2016 GS054,0713 5 yrs 
Fixed Asset Master 2014-2016 GS054 5 yrs 
Fixed Asset Auditor Report 2014-2016 GS054,0713 5 yrs 
Bank Transaction Report 2014-2016 GSOlO 5 yrs 
Payment Register 2015-2016 GS007 5 yrs 
Vendor Master Report 2015-2016 GS034 5 yrs 
1099 Forms, Registers, Working Papers 2010-2011 GS034 5 yrs 

5 boxes 

Gas Recap 2012-2016 GS008 5 yrs 
Landfill Tickets 2013-2016 GS008 5 yrs 

3 boxes 

Payroll/Direct Deposit Register 2014-2015 GS068 s yrs 
Payroll Distribution 2014-2015 GS068 5 yrs 
Payroll Summary 2014-2015 GS068 5 yrs 
Deduction Register 2014-2015 GS068 5 yrs 
Detail Register 2014-2015 GS068 5 yrs 
Benefits & Deductions 2014-2015 GS068 5 yrs 

17 boxes 

Daily Receipt Packets 2016-2017 GSOll Completion of Audit 
1 box 

Daily Receipt Forms 2012-2015 GS076 Completion of Audit 

if 



6 boxes 

4 boxes 

3 boxes 

7 boxes 

1 box 

2 boxes 

1 box 

1 box 

LOCAL RECORD PROGRAM 

DISPOSITION LIST 

CITY OF WASHINGTON IN FRANKLIN COUNTY MISSOURI 

Business License Applications 2013-2019 GS050 

Cigarette License Applications 2003-2015 GSOSO 

Liquor License Applications 1994-1998 GS050 

Liquor License Applications 2015-2016 GSOSO 

Postage Usage Working Papers 2013-2015 GS015 

Cigarette Tax Reports 2011-2015 0734a 

Franchise Tax Reports 2001-2015 0734a 

Public Surplus Receipts 2010-2013 

Tourism Tax Reports 2005-2015 0734a 

Motor Fuel Tax 2006-2015 GS008 

Accounts Receivable Payment Reports 2012 GS008 

Business License Payment Reports 2012 GS050 

Utility Update Payment Reports 2012 GS008 

Bank Statements 2012-2016 GSOlO 

Journal Entry Source Documents 2011-2016 0717 

Monthly Treasurer's Reports 2005 - 2015 GS005 

End of Day Journal Register 2012 GS011 

Interest Schedule 2010 - 2013 GS005 

Outstanding Checks 2011 - 2013 GSOlO 

Collector's Annual Report 2006- 2011 GS002 

Delinquent Tax Lists 2011 - 2014 0745 

Treasurer's Reports Worksheets 2013 - 2016 

Sales Tax Report Worksheets 2009 - 2015 0753 

Unclaimed Property 2011- 2015 GS087 

Property Tax Allocation 2006- 2007 0747 

Property Tax Allocation 2014 - 2015 0747 

353 Corp Loan JE's & Worksheets 

2 yrs 

2 yrs 

2 yrs 

2 yrs 

1 yr 

5 yrs 

5 yrs 

5 yrs 

Completion of Audit 

Completion of Audit 

3 yrs 

Completion of Audit 

5 yrs 

5 yrs 

Permanent - Microfilm 

Completion of Audit plus 

1 year 

Permanent - Microfilm 

Completion of Audit plus 

1 year 

Permanent - Microfilm 

6 yrs 

6 years 

1 year after turning over 

to State Treasurer 

6 years 

6 years 



1 box 

1 box 

1 box 

4 boxes 

2 boxes 

LOCAL RECORD PROGRAM 
DISPOSITION LIST 

CITY OF WASHINGTON IN FRANKLIN COUNTY MISSOURI 

Budget Worksheets & Backup 2014 GS004 

Budget Worksheets & Backup 2015 GS004 

Monthly Receipt Listing 2012 -2014 GSOll 

CID Financial Reports 2007 - 2012 GS002,GS073 

2011- 2015 GS002,GS073 

Annual Comprehensive Financial Reports 

Budget 2013 - 2015 GS003 

Budget Amendments 2013 - 2015 GS003 

Budget Reports 2013 - 2015 GS003 

Audit-Close Fiscal Year 2013 - 2015 GS002 

Balance Sheet 2013 - 2015 GS002 

Income Statement 2013 - 2015 GS002 

Trial Balance 2013 - 2015 GS002 

Single Audit Report 2013 - 2015 GS002 

Real Estate Tax Books 2013 - 2015 0747 

Personal Property Tax Books 2013 - 2015 0747 

Utility Customer Move In and Out 2015 - 2016 1602 

paperwork 

Authorizing Signature 

Completion of Audit 

Completion of Audit 

Completion of Audit plus 

1 year 

Permanent - Microfilm 

Permanent - Microfilm 

Permanent - Microfilm 

Permanent - Microfilm 

Permanent - Microfilm 

Permanent - Microfilm 

Permanent - Microfilm 

Permanent - Microfilm 

Permanent - Microfilm 

Permanent - Microfilm 

6 years 

6 years 

5 years 

4 J5/µ~ 



April 20, 2022 

Honorable Mayor and City Council 
405 Jefferson Street 
Washington, MO 63090 

Re: Fireworks Display Permit Request 

Dear Honorable Mayor and City Council, 

636-390-1010 www.washmo.gov 

The Washington American Legion Post 218 is requesting permission to discharge 
fireworks on July 4, 2022 at 9:30 PM with a rain date of Julys; 2022 at 9:30 PM. 
The Pyre technician will be Fazz Holdings again this year. They are requesting 
permission to launch from the ball field at the fairgrounds. 

The issuance of this permit is contingent upon all paperwork and approvals by all 
departments and weather conditions being favorable. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Tom Neldon 
Building Official 



J-{istoric Preservation :M.ontfi 
May 2022 

)VJ-{'.E'R'.E..'A.S, The National Trust for Historic Preservation established May as Historic 
Preservation Month in 1973 as a way to promote historic places for the purpose 
of instilling national and community pride, promoting heritage tourism, and 
showing the social and economic benefits of historic preservation; and 

'WJ-{'.E'R'.E.'AS, the historic houses and buildings of Washington help make our City unique and 
provide links with aspirations and attainment of the City's pioneers and their 
descendants; and strengthens the enduring bond between past and present; and 

)VJ-{'.E'R'.E.'AS, Historic Preservation is an effective tool for managing growth and sustainable 
development, revitalizing neighborhoods, fostering local pride and maintaining 
community character while enhancing livability; and 

)VJ-{'.E'R'.E.'AS, Historic Preservation is relevant for communities across the nation, both urban 
and rural, and for Americans of all ages, all walks of life and all ethnic 
backgrounds; and 

)VJ-{'.E'R'.E.'AS, it is important to celebrate the role of history in our lives and the contributions 
made by dedicated individuals in helping to preserve the tangible aspects of the 
heritage that has shaped us as a people; and 

)VJ-{'.E'R'.E.'AS, the theme for 2022 "People Saving Places" is a national high-five to everyone 
doing the great work of saving places, in ways big and small, and inspiring others 
to do the same. 

NOW, 'l':Jf'.E'R'.E:fO'R'.E, I, James D. Hagedorn, Mayor of Washington, Missouri, do hereby 
proclaim May 2022 to be 

Jfistoric Preservation :Jvt.ontfi 
in the City of Washington, Missouri, and call upon the people of Washington to join their fellow 
citizens across the United States in recognizing and participating in this special observance. 

In 'Witness YVfiereof1 have hereunto set 

my hand and caused to be affixed the Seal of the City of 
Washington, Miss ri this 2nd day of May 2022. 



National Travel and Tourism Week 
9rf.ay 1-7, 2022 

Wliereas, travel, hospitality and recreation reflect The Power of Travel and our community's 

economic prosperity in Washington, Missouri; and 

Wliereas, the Coronavirus.Pandemic devasted the travel industry with staggering lows in 2020 

compared to 2019; ahd 

Wfiereas, Washington's hospitality and travel industry continues to recover with the return of 

business and leisure travel, meetings and events and the utilization of the Amtrak 

Missouri River Runnner; and 

Whereas, our hospitality and tourism businesses are a representation of small businesses, are the 

foundation that make Washington an unforgettable destination and are dependent and 

grateful for our community's steadfast supp01t; and 

Whereas, Washington continues to thrive with a blend of historical nature as well as a modern 

touch throughout our comm1.1nity, and portrays an ever-growing and lively downtown 

district that offers amusement for out-of-town-guests; and 

Wliereas, visitors enjoy Washington as the Heart of Missouri Wine Country overlooking the 

Missouri River, experiencing the BBQ & Bluesfest, Art Fair & Winefest, Cajun 

Festival, Town & Country Fair, Fall Festival of the Arts & Crafts, Holiday Parade of 

Lights, hiking and biking trails, and numerous live music events; and 

Wliereas, Washington offers unique and incomparable opportunities for recreation with 

outstanding parks, breathtaking views, e~ceptional dining, shopping, tasting rooms and 

museums; and 

Wliereas, the power of travel and tourism will revive Washington, Missouri and is imperative to 

move us forward to a more prosperous future. 

Now 'lnerejore, I, James D. Hagedorn, Mayor of the City of Washington, Missouri, do hereby 

proclaim May 1~1. 2022 as National Travel and Tourism Week in the City of 
Washington and urge all of our citizens to join me in this special observance. 

21, 



'BicycCe Safety Week 
:M.ay 15-21, 2022 

'WJf'.E'.R'.E..'AS, the bicycle is a viable and environmentally sound form of transportation and an 
excellent form of recreation; and 

'WJf'.E'.R'.E..'A.S, millions of Missourians will experience the joys of bicycling during the month of 
May through educational programs, races; commuting events, trail work days, 
helmet promotion, charity events or just getting out and going for a ride; and 

'WJf'.E'.R'.E..'A.S, creating bicycle-friendly communities has been shown to improve citizens' 
health, well-being and quality of life, to boost community spirit, to improve 
traffic safety, reduce pollution arid congestion and wear and tear on our streets 
and roads; and 

'WJf'.E'.R'E..'A.S, the education of bicyclists and motorists as to the proper an:d safe operation of 
bicycles is important to ensure the safety and comfort of all users; and 

'WJf'.E'.R'E..'A.S, the Washington Police Department together with other members of the 
community will host the 46th Annual Bicycle Safety Rodeo on May 21, 2022 to 
promote greater public awareness of bicycle operation and safety education in 
an effort to reduce collisions, injuries and fatalities and improve health and 
safety for everyone on the road . 

.'.NOW, 'I'Jf'E'.R'.EJO'.R'.E in recognition that the health, safety and welfare of its residents are the 

most valuable asset of any City, I, James D. Hagedorn, Mayor, proclaim May 15-21, 2022 as 

'Bicyc(e Safety Week 
in the City of Washington and encourage all residents to enjoy the benefits of bicycling, recognize 

the importance of bicycle safety and be more aware ~f cyclists on our streets. 

~ .' .•. 
', fill) ';'! 

1• -,;'\ 
\ ,, 

\ 
\ 

·:, 1 
I, ,., ,., 'l,\I , ' 

II 

I 
I 

,. 
1· 

I I 

I 

'{ 

In Witness Wfiereof, I have hereunto set 

my hand and caused to be affixed the Seal of the City of 
Washington, Missouri this 2nct day of May 2022 . 

. ~~~i~ 
Mayor 



a/II~~~ 
CITY OF WASHINGTON, MISSOURI 

.May 15-21, 2022 
W~, in 1962 President John F. Kennedy signed a proclamation which designated May 

15th as Peace Officers' Memorial Day and the week in which it falls as National 
Police Week; and 

W~, the members of the law enforcement agency of the City of Washington play an 
important role in safeguarding the rights and freedoms of the citizens of our 
community; and 

w~' it is important that all citizens know and understand the duties, responsibilities, 
hazards and sacrifices of their police department, and that members of our 
department recognize their duty to serve the people by safeguarding life and 
property, by protecting them against violence and disorder and by protecting the 
innocent against deception and the weak against oppression; and 

W~, the Police Department of the City of Washington has grown to be a modem and 
scientific law enforcement agency which unceasingly provides a vital public 
service; and 

W~, U.S. flags are to be flown at half-staff on Peace Officer's Memorial Day May 15th 
in tribute to those peace officers that have made the ultimate sacrifice in the line of 
duty . 

.N<J.Ut fl~, I, James D. Hagedorn, Mayor of the City of Washington, Missouri call 
upon all citizens of Washington and upon all patriotic, civic and educational organizations to 
observe the week of May 15-21, 2022 as National Police Week with appropriate ceremonies and 
observances in which all our citizens may join in commemorating police officers past and present, 
who by their faithful and loyal devotion to their responsibilities have rendered a dedicated service 
to this community and in doing so have established for themselves a desirable and enduring 
reputation for preserving the rights and security of all citizens. 

I further call upon all citizens of Washington, Missouri to observe May 11 , 2022 as Peace Officers ' 
Memorial Day in honor of those peace officers who through their courageous deeds have lost their 
lives or have become disabled in the performance of duty. 

J n Wit.ne6,., w~ I have hereunto set my hand 
and caused to be affixed the Seal of the City of Washington, 
Missouri, this 2nd d of May 2022. 



2022 COUNCIL COMMITTEE LIAISON ASSIGNMENTS 

Traffic Committee Tree Board 

Chad Briggs Mark Hidritch 
Mark Wessels 

Fire Department Historic Preservation Commission 

Jeff Patke Joe Holtmeier 
Mark Hidritch Al Behr 

Downtown Core Library 

Mike Coulter Chad Briggs 
Mark Wessels Mike Coulter 

353 Redevelopment Tourism Commission 

Al Behr Mark Wessels 
Joe Holtmeier 

Washington Transportation Committee Finance Committee 

Joe Holtmeier Mark Wessels 
Chad Briggs 

Airport Public Works 

Joe Holtmeier Duane Reed 
Al Behr Mike Coulter 

Storm Water Committee Solid Waste 

Duane Reed Jeff Patke 
Jeff Patke Al Behr 

Emergency Services Committee Parks 

Duane Reed Jeff Patke 
Al Behr 

Safety Committee Community Relations Board 

Joe Holtmeier Mark Wessels 
Duane Reed 

2e 



BILL NO. INTRODUCED BY 

follows: 

--------- ------ ---

ORDINANCE NO. - ----------

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING AND DIRECTING THE 
EXECUTION OF AN AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEEN THE 
CITY OF WASHINGTON, MISSOURI AND ENVIRONMENTAL 
SYSTEMS RESEARCH INSTITUTE, INC. FOR ARCGIS 
SOFTWARE AND SERVICES 

Be It Ordained by the Council of the City of Washington, Missouri, as 

SECTION 1: The Mayor is hereby authorized and directed to execute and 

enter into an Agreement by and between the City of Washington, Missouri and 

Environmental Systems Research Institute, Inc. for ArcGIS Software and Services in an 

amount totaling Forty Five Thousand Dollars and Zero Cents ($45,000.00). A copy of 

said agreement is attached hereto and marked as Exhibit A. 

SECTION 2: All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are 

hereby repealed. 

SECTION 3: This ordinance shall take effect and be in full force from and 

after its passage and approval. 

Passed: ----------

ATTEST: - --------
President of City Council 

Approved: ______ _ _ _ 

ATTEST: ---------
Mayor of Washington, Missouri 



esri· J 

April 15, 2022 

John Nilges 
City of Washington 
405 Jefferson St 

THE 
SCIENCE 
OF 
WHERE" 

Washington, MO 63090-2607 

Dear John, 

Exhibit A 

The Esri Small Local Government Cloud-Based Enterprise Agreement (SGCBEA) is a three-year agreement that 
will grant your organization access to Esri term license software. The EA will be effective on the date executed and 
will require a firm, three-year commitment. 

Based on Esri's work with several organizations similar to yours, we know there is significant potential to apply 
Geographic Information System (GIS) technology in many operational and technical areas within your 
organization. For this reason, we believe that your organization will greatly benefit from an Enterprise Agreement 
(EA). 

An EA will provide your organization with numerous benefits including: 

• A lower cost per unit for licensed software 
• Substantially reduced administrative and procurement expenses 
• Complete flexibility to deploy software products when and where needed 

The following business terms and conditions will apply : 

• All current departments, employees, and in-house contractors of the organization will be eligible to use 
the software and services included in the EA. 

• If your organization wishes to acquire and/or maintain any Esri software during the term of the agreement 
that is not included in the EA, it may do so separately at the Esri pricing that is generally available for 
your organization for software and maintenance. 

• The organization will establish a single point of contact for orders and deliveries and will be responsible 
for redistribution to eligible users. 

• The organization will establish a Tier 1 support center to field calls from internal users of Esri software. 
The organization may designate individuals as specified in the EA who may directly contact Esri for Tier 
2 technical support. 

• The organization will provide an annual report of installed Esri software to Esri. 

• Esri software and updates that the organization is licensed to use will be automatically available for 
downloading. 

380 New York Street 

Redlands, California 92373-8100 USA 

909.793.2853 

info@esri.com 

esri.com 



Small Local Government Cloud-Based Enterprise Agreement 

• The fee and benefits offered in this EA proposal are contingent upon your acceptance of Esri's Small 
Local Government Cloud-Based EA terms and conditions. 

• Licenses are valid for the term of the EA. 

This program offer is valid for 90 days. To complete the agreement within this time frame, please contact me 
within the next seven days to work through any questions or concerns you may have. 

To expedite your acceptance of this EA offer: 

1. Sign and return the EA contract with a Purchase Order or issue a Purchase Order that references this EA 
Quotation and includes the following statement on the face of the Purchase Order: 

"THIS PURCHASE ORDER IS GOVERNED BY THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE ESRI 
SMALL LOCAL GOVERNMENT CLOUD-BASED EA, AND ADDITIONAL TERMS AND 
CONDITIONS IN THIS PURCHASE ORDER WILL NOT APPLY." 

Have it signed by an authorized representative of the organization. 

2. On the first page of the EA, identify the central point of contact/agreement administrator. The agreement 
administrator is the party that will be the contact for management of the software, administration issues, 
and general operations. Information should include name, title (if applicable), address, phone number, and 
e-mail address. 

3. In the purchase order, identify the "Ship to" and "Bill to" information for your organization. 

4. Send the purchase order and agreement to the address, email or fax noted below: 

Esri 
Attn: Customer Service SGCB-EA 
380 New York Street 
Redlands, CA 92373-8100 

e-mail: service@esri.com 
fax documents to: 909-307-3083 

I appreciate the opportunity to present you with this proposal, and I believe it will bring great benefits to your 
organization. 

Thank you very much for your consideration. 

Best Regards, 

Marcus Kitchens 



• I THE esrl• ~c,fENCE 

WHERE" 

Environmental Systems Research Institute, Inc. 
380 New York St 
Redlands, CA 92373-8100 
Phone: (909) 793-2853 Fax: (909) 307-3049 
DUNS Number: 06-313-4175 CAGE Code: OAMS3 

To expedite your order, please attach a copy of 
this quotation to your purchase order. 
Quote is valid from: 4/15/2022 To: 7/14/2022 

Material 

168362 

Qty Term 

Year1 

Quotation # Q-468694 

Date: April 15, 2022 

Customer # 602240 

City of Washington 
Public Works Dept 

Contract# 

405 Jefferson St 
Washington, MO 63090-2607 

ATTENTION: John Nilges 
PHONE: 636-390-1015 
EMAIL: jnilges@washmo.gov 

Unit Price 

$15,000.00 

Population of Oto 15,000 Small Local Government Cloud-Based Term Enterprise Agreement 

168362 Year 2 $15,000.00 

Population of Oto 15,000 Small Local Government Cloud-Based Term Enterprise Agreement 

168362 Year3 $15,000.00 

Population of Oto 15,000 Small Local Government Cloud-Based Term Enterprise Agreement 

Subtotal: 

Sales Tax: 

Estimated Shipping and Handling (2 Day Delivery) : 

Contract Price Adjust: 

Total : 

Esri may charge a fee lo cover expenses related to any customer requirement ta use a proprietary vendor management, procurement, or invoice program. 

For questions contact: 
Marcus Kitchens 

Email: 
mkitchens@esri.com 

Phone: 
636-949-6620 x5581 

Total 

$15,000.00 

$15,000.00 

$15,000.00 

$45,000.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$45,000.00 

The items on this quotation are subject to and governed by the terms of this quotation, the most current product specific scope of use document 
found at hllos://assels esrj com/contenUdam/esrisites/media/legallproduct-soecific-tem1s-of-use/e300,ru!f, and your applicable signed agreement 
with Esri. If no such agreement covers any item quoted, then Esri's standard terms and conditions found at ~flgQ.&§[h@.m{M8ES apply to your 
purchase of that item. If any item is quoted with a multi-year payment schedule, then unless otherwise stated in this quotation, Customer is required 
to make all payments without right of cancellation . Third-party data sets included in a quotation as separately licensed items will only be provided 
and invoiced if Esri is able to provide such data and will be subject to the applicable third-party's terms and conditions. If Esri is unable to provide 
any such data set, Customer will not be responsible for any further payments for the data set. US Federal government entities and US government 
prime contractors authorized under FAR 51 .1 may purchase under the terms of Esri's GSA Federal Supply Schedule. Supplemental terms and 
conditions found at bllps;/iWww.esri.com/en-us/legallterms/state-supplemental apply to some us state and local government purchases. All terms 
of this quotation will be incorporated into and become part of any additional agreement regarding Esri's offerings. Acceptance of this quotation is 
limited to the terms of this quotation. Esri objects to and expressly rejects any different or additional terms contained in any purchase order, offer, 
or confirmation sent to or to be sent by buyer. Unless prohibited by law, the quotation information is confidential and may not be copied or released 
other than for the express purpose of system selection and purchase/license. The information may not be given to outside parties or used for any 
other purpose without consent from Esri. Delivery is FOB Origin for customers located in the USA. 

KITCHEN SM This offer is limited to the terms and conditions incorporated and attached herein. 



Esri Use Only: 
Cust. Name 
Cust. # 
PO# 
Esri Agreement # ____ _ 

SMALL ENTERPRISE AGREEMENT 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT CLOUD-BASED 

(E214-7) 

Qesri·I THE 
SCIENCE 
OF 
WHERE ' 

This Agreement is by and between the organization identified in the Quotation ("Customer") and Environmental 
Systems Research Institute, Inc. {"Esri"). 

This Agreement sets forth the terms for Customer's use of Products and incorporates by reference (i) the 
Quotation and (ii) the Master Agreement. Should there be any conflict between the terms and conditions of the 
documents that comprise this Agreement, the order of precedence for the documents shall be as follows: (i) the 
Quotation, (ii) this Agreement, and (iii) the Master Agreement. This Agreement shall be governed by and 
construed in accordance with the laws of the state in which Customer is located without reference to conflict of 
laws principles, and the United States of America federal law shall govern in matters of intellectual property. The 
modifications and additional rights granted in this Agreement apply only to the Products listed in Table A. 

Table A 
List of Products 

Uncapped Quantities 
Desktop Software and Extensions (Single Use) 
ArcGIS Desktop Advanced 
ArcGIS Desktop Standard 
ArcGIS Desktop Basic 

Developer Tools 
ArcGIS Engine 
ArcGIS Runtime (Standard) 
ArcGIS Runtime Analysis Extension 

Limited Quantities ArcGIS Desktop Extensions: ArcGIS 30 Analyst, 
ArcGIS Spatial Analyst, ArcGIS Geostatistical Analyst, 
ArcGIS Publisher, ArcGIS Network Analyst, ArcGIS 
Schematics, ArcGIS Workflow Manager, ArcGIS Data 
Reviewer 

One (1) Professional subscription to ArcGIS Developer 
Two (2) ArcGIS CityEngine Single Use Licenses 
50 ArcGIS Online Viewers 
50 ArcGIS Online Creators 
10,000 ArcGIS Online Service Credits 
2 ArcGIS Insights in ArcGIS Online 

OTHER BENEFITS 

Number of Esri User Conference registrations provided annually 

Number of Tier 1 Help Desk individuals authorized to call Esri 

Maximum number of sets of backup media, if requested* 

Five percent {5%) discount on all individual commercially available instructor-led training classes at Esri 
facilities purchased outside this Agreement 

*Additional sets of backup media may be purchased for a fee 

2 
2 
2 

Page 1 of 6 September 25, 2020 



Customer may accept this Agreement by signing and returning the whole Agreement with (i) the Quotation 
attached, (ii) a purchase order, or (iii) another document that matches the Quotation and references this 
Agreement ("Ordering Document"). ADDITIONAL OR CONFLICTING TERMS IN CUSTOMER'S PURCHASE 
ORDER OR OTHER DOCUMENT WILL NOT APPLY, AND THE TERMS OF THIS AGREEMENT WILL 
GOVERN. This Agreement is effective as of the date of Esri's receipt of an Ordering Document, unless otherwise 
agreed to by the parties ("Effective Date"). 

Term of Agreement: Three (3) vears 

This Agreement supersedes any previous agreements, proposals, presentations, understandings, and 
arrangements between the parties relating to the licensing of the Products. Except as provided in Article 4-
Product Updates, no modifications can be made to this Agreement. 

Accepted and Agreed: 

(Customer) 

By: ______________ _ 

Authorized Signature 

Printed Name:------------

Title: ---------------

Date: ----------------

CUSTOMER CONTACT INFORMATION 

Contact: --------------

Address: --------------

City, State, Postal Code: - ---------

Country: --------------

Quotation Number (if applicable): -------

Telephone:----------- ---

Fax: ___________ _ _ _ __ _ 

E-mail:------------ ----

Page 2 of 6 September 25, 2020 



1.0-ADDITIONAL DEFINITIONS 

In addition to the definitions provided in the Master 
Agreement, the following definitions apply to this 
Agreement: 

"Case" means a failure of the Software or Online 
Services to operate according to the Documentation 
where such failure substantially impacts operational 
or functional performance. 

"Deploy", "Deployed" and "Deployment" mean to 
redistribute and install the Products and related 
Authorization Codes within Customer's 
organization(s ). 

"Fee" means the fee set forth in the Quotation. 

"Maintenance" means Tier 2 Support, Product 
updates, and Product patches provided to Customer 
during the Term of Agreement. 

"Master Agreement" means the applicable master 
agreement for Esri Products incorporated by this 
reference that is (i) found at https:/!www.esri.com/en
us/legal/terms/full-master-agreement and available in 
the installation process requiring acceptance by 
electronic acknowledgment or (ii) a signed Esri 
master agreement or license agreement that 
supersedes such electronically acknowledged 
master agreement. 

"Product(s)" means the products identified in 
Table A-List of Products and any updates to the list 
Esri provides in writing. 

"Quotation" means the offer letter and quotation 
provided separately to Customer. 

"Technical Support" means the technical 
assistance for attempting resolution of a reported 
Case through error correction, patches, hot fixes, 
workarounds, replacement deliveries, or any other 
type of Product corrections or modifications. 

"Tier 1 Help Desk" means Customer's point of 
contact(s) to provide all Tier 1 Support within 
Customer's organization(s). 

"Tier 1 Support" means the Technical Support 
provided by the Tier 1 Help Desk. 

"Tier 2 Support" means the Esri Technical Support 
provided to the Tier 1 Help Desk when a Case 
cannot be resolved through Tier 1 Support. 

2.0-ADDITIONAL GRANT OF LICENSE 

2.1 Grant of License. Subject to the terms and 
conditions of this Agreement, Esri grants to 
Customer a personal, nonexclusive, 
nontransferable license solely to use, copy, and 
Deploy quantities of the Products listed in 
Table A-List of Products for the Term of 
Agreement (i) for the applicable Fee and (ii) in 
accordance with the Master Agreement. 

2.2 Consultant Access. Esri grants Customer the 
right to permit Customer's consultants or 
contractors to use the Products exclusively for 
Customer's benefit. Customer will be solely 
responsible for compliance by consultants and 
contractors with this Agreement and will ensure 
that the consultant or contractor discontinues 
use of Products upon completion of work for 
Customer. Access to or use of Products by 
consultants or contractors not exclusively for 
Customer's benefit is prohibited. Customer may 
not permit its consultants or contractors to install 
Software or Data on consultant, contractor, or 
third-party computers or remove Software or 
Data from Customer locations, except for the 
purpose of hosting the Software or Data on 
Contractor servers for the benefit of Customer. 

3.0-TERM, TERMINATION, AND EXPIRATION 

3. 1 Term. This Agreement and all licenses 
hereunder will commence on the Effective Date 
and continue for the duration identified in the 
Term of Agreement, unless this Agreement is 
terminated earlier as provided herein. Customer 
is only authorized to use Products during the 
Term of Agreement. For an Agreement with a 
limited term, Esri does not grant Customer an 
indefinite or a perpetual license to Products. 

3.2 No Use upon Agreement Expiration or 
Termination. All Product licenses, all 
Maintenance, and Esri User Conference 
registrations terminate upon expiration or 
termination of this Agreement. 

3.3 Termination for a Material Breach. Either party 
may terminate this Agreement for a material 
breach by the other party. The breaching party 
will have thirty (30) days from the date of written 
notice to cure any material breach. 

3.4 Termination for Lack of Funds. For an 
Agreement with government or government-

Page 3 of 6 September 25, 2020 



owned entities, either party may terminate this 
Agreement before any subsequent year if 
Customer is unable to secure funding through 
the legislative or governing body's approval 
process. 

3.5 Follow-on Term. If the parties enter into 
another agreement substantially similar to this 
Agreement for an additional term, the effective 
date of the follow-on agreement will be the day 
after the expiration date of this Agreement. 

4.0-PRODUCT UPDATES 

4.1 Future Updates. Esri reserves the right to 
update the list of Products in Table A-List of 
Products by providing written notice to 
Customer. Customer may continue to use all 
Products that have been Deployed, but support 
and upgrades for deleted items may not be 
available. As new Products are incorporated into 
the standard program, they will be offered to 
Customer via written notice for incorporation into 
the Products schedule at no additional charge. 
Customer's use of new or updated Products 
requires Customer to adhere to applicable 
additional or revised terms and conditions in the 
Master Agreement. 

4.2 Product Life Cycle. During the Term of 
Agreement, some Products may be retired or 
may no longer be available to Deploy in the 
identified quantities. Maintenance will be subject 
to the individual Product Life Cycle Support 
Status and Product Life Cycle Support Policy, 
which can be found at 
https://support.esri.com/en/other
resources/product-life-cycle. Updates for 
Products in the mature and retired phases may 
not be available. Customer may continue to use 
Products already Deployed, but Customer will 
not be able to Deploy retired Products. 

5.0-MAINTENANCE 

The Fee includes standard maintenance benefits 
during the Term of Agreement as specified in the 
most current applicable Esri Maintenance and 
Support Program document (found at 
https://www.esri.com/en
us/legal/terms/maintenance). At Esri's sole 
discretion, Esri may make patches, hot fixes, or 
updates available for download. No Software other 

than the defined Products will receive Maintenance. 
Customer may acquire maintenance for other 
Software outside this Agreement. 

a. Tier 1 Support 

1. Customer will provide Tier 1 Support 
through the Tier 1 Help Desk to all 
Customer's authorized users. 

2. The Tier 1 Help Desk will be fully trained in 
the Products. 

3. At a minimum, Tier 1 Support will include 
those activities that assist the user in 
resolving how-to and operational questions 
as well as questions on installation and 
troubleshooting procedures. 

4. The Tier 1 Help Desk will be the initial point 
of contact for all questions and reporting of a 
Case. The Tier 1 Help Desk will obtain a full 
description of each reported Case and the 
system configuration from the user. This 
may include obtaining any customizations, 
code samples, or data involved in the Case. 

5. If the Tier 1 Help Desk cannot resolve the 
Case, an authorized Tier 1 Help Desk 
individual may contact Tier 2 Support. The 
Tier 1 Help Desk will provide support in such 
a way as to minimize repeat calls and make 
solutions to problems available to 
Customer's organization. 

6. Tier 1 Help Desk individuals are the only 
individuals authorized to contact Tier 2 
Support. Customer may change the Tier 1 
Help Desk individuals by written notice to 
Esri. 

b. Tier 2 Support 

1. Tier 2 Support will log the calls received 
from Tier 1 Help Desk. 

2. Tier 2 Support will review all information 
collected by and received from the Tier 1 
Help Desk including preliminary documented 
troubleshooting provided by the Tier 1 Help 
Desk when Tier 2 Support is required. 

3. Tier 2 Support may request that Tier 1 Help 
Desk individuals provide verification of 
information, additional information, or 
answers to additional questions to 

Page 4 of 6 September 25, 2020 



supplement any preliminary information 
gathering or troubleshooting performed by 
Tier 1 Help Desk. 

4. Tier 2 Support will attempt to resolve the 
Case submitted by Tier 1 Help Desk. 

5. When the Case is resolved, Tier 2 Support 
will communicate the information to Tier 1 
Help Desk, and Tier 1 Help Desk will 
disseminate the resolution to the user(s). 

6.0-ENDORSEMENT AND PUBLICITY 

This Agreement will not be construed or interpreted 
as an exclusive dealings agreement or Customer's 
endorsement of Products. Either party may publicize 
the existence of this Agreement. 

7 .0-ADMINISTRA TIVE REQUIREMENTS 

7.1 OEM Licenses. Under Esri's OEM or Solution 
OEM programs, OEM partners are authorized to 
embed or bundle portions of Esri products and 
services with their application or service. OEM 
partners' business model, licensing terms and 
conditions, and pricing are independent of this 
Agreement. Customer will not seek any discount 
from the OEM partner or Esri based on the 
availability of Products under this Agreement. 
Customer will not decouple Esri products or 
services from the OEM partners' application or 
service. 

7.2 Annual Report of Deployments. At each 
anniversary date and ninety (90) calendar days 
prior to the expiration of this Agreement, 
Customer will provide Esri with a written report 
detailing all Deployments. Upon request, 
Customer will provide records sufficient to verify 
the accuracy of the annual report. 

8.0-0RDERING, ADMINISTRATIVE 

PROCEDURES, DELIVERY, AND 

DEPLOYMENT 

8.1 Orders, Delivery, and Deployment 

a. Upon the Effective Date, Esri will invoice 
Customer and provide Authorization Codes to 
activate the nondestructive copy protection 
program that enables Customer to download, 

operate, or allow access to the Products. If this 
is a multi-year Agreement, Esri may invoice the 
Fee up to thirty (30) calendar days before the 
annual anniversary date for each year. 

b. Undisputed invoices will be due and payable 
within thirty (30) calendar days from the date of 
invoice. Esri reserves the right to suspend 
Customer's access to and use of Products if 
Customer fails to pay any undisputed amount 
owed on or before its due date. Esri may charge 
Customer interest at a monthly rate equal to the 
lesser of one percent (1.0%) per month or the 
maximum rate permitted by applicable law on 
any overdue fees plus all expenses of collection 
for any overdue balance that remains unpaid 
ten (10) days after Esri has notified Customer of 
the past-due balance. 

c. Esri's federal ID number is 95-2775-732. 

d. If requested, Esri will ship backup media to the 
ship-to address identified on the Ordering 
Document, FOB Destination, with shipping 
charges prepaid. Customer acknowledges that 
should sales or use taxes become due as a 
result of any shipments of tangible media, Esri 
has a right to invoice and Customer will pay any 
such sales or use tax associated with the receipt 
of tangible media. 

8.2 Order Requirements. Esri does not require 
Customer to issue a purchase order. Customer 
may submit a purchase order in accordance with 
its own process requirements, provided that if 
Customer issues a purchase order, Customer 
will submit its initial purchase order on the 
Effective Date. If this is a multi-year Agreement, 
Customer will submit subsequent purchase 
orders to Esri at least thirty (30) calendar days 
before the annual anniversary date for each 
year. 

a. All orders pertaining to this Agreement will be 
processed through Customer's centralized point 
of contact. 

b. The following information will be included in 
each Ordering Document: 

Page 5 of 6 

(1) Customer name; Esri customer number, if 
known; and bill-to and ship-to addresses 

(2) Order number 
(3) Applicable annual payment due 

September 25, 2020 



9.0-MERGERS, ACQUISITIONS, OR 
DIVESTITURES 

If Customer is a commercial entity, Customer will 
notify Esri in writing in the event of (i) a 
consolidation, merger, or reorganization of Customer 
with or into another corporation or entity; 
(ii) Customer's acquisition of another entity; or (iii) a 
transfer or sale of all or part of Customer's 
organization (subsections i, ii, and iii, collectively 
referred to as "Ownership Change"). There will be 
no decrease in Fee as a result of any Ownership 
Change. 

9.1 If an Ownership Change increases the 
cumulative program count beyond the maximum 
level for this Agreement, Esri reserves the right 
to increase the Fee or terminate this Agreement 
and the parties will negotiate a new agreement. 

9.2 If an Ownership Change results in transfer or 
sale of a portion of Customer's organization, that 
portion of Customer's organization will transfer 
the Products to Customer or uninstall, remove, 
and destroy all copies of the Products. 

9.3 This Agreement may not be assigned to a 
successor entity as a result of an Ownership 
Change unless approved by Esri in writing in 
advance. If the assignment to the new entity is 
not approved, Customer will require any 
successor entity to uninstall, remove, and 
destroy the Products. This Agreement will 
terminate upon such Ownership Change. 

Page 6 of 6 September 25, 2020 



405 Jefferson Street, Washington, MO 63090 

April 22, 2022 

Honorable Mayor and City Council 
City of Washington 
405 Jefferson Street 
Washington, MO 63090 

RE : esri Software 
ArcGIS Renewal - Mapping Software 

Honorable Mayor and City Council, 

The following is pertinent information to the subject request. 

Description: 

636-390-1080 www.washmo.gov 

Every three years we have the opportunity to renew our esri / ArcGIS software license. The Engineering 
Department has put a significant amount of effort into creating digital maps for a variety of uses. The 
following are examples of uses: 

1. City utilities are located and mapped - Public Works 
2. Hydrant flow data - Water 
3. Work orders - Streets 
4. Security cameras/ parcel info - Police 
5. Traffic speed study- Police/Engineering 
6. Lease agreement locations -Adm in/ Engineering 

Cost of the project: 
Over three years this project will cost $45,000, or $15,000 / year for 3 years. 

Bid information: 
This is proprietary software and no bids were received or solicited. It is purchased directly from the 
software provider. 

Budget Information: 
There is $15,000 budgeted within the 2022 Engineering Budget under Technical Services. 

As always, if you have any questions, concerns, please feel free to contact me. 

Respectf21· lly, 

/(_ ·1 
J~ n,..Nllges, E 
Public Works Director 

1o. 



BILL NO. _ ___ _ INTRODUCED BY _________ _ 

follows : 

ORDINANCE NO. ________ _ 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING AND DIRECTING 
THE EXECUTION OF AN STP-URBAN PROGRAM 
AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN THE CITY OF 
WASHINGTON, MISSOURI AND THE MISSOURI 
HIGHWAYS AND TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 
FOR THE FRONT STREET ADA IMPROVEMENTS 
PROJECT STP-4940(607) 

Be It Ordained by the Council of the City of Washington, Missouri, as 

SECTION 1: The Mayor is hereby authorized and directed to execute an 

STP-Urban Program Agreement by and between the City of Washington, Missouri and the 

Missouri Highways and Transportation Commission for the Front Street ADA 

Improvements Project STP-4940(607). A copy of this Agreement is attached hereto, and 

is marked Exhibit A. Said execution is subject to approval by MoDOT. 

SECTION 2: The Mayor and City Clerk are hereby authorized and directed 

to execute said agreement, and to do all things necessary by the terms of said agreement. 

SECTION 3: All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are 

hereby repealed. 

SECTION 4: This ordinance shall take effect and be in full force from and 

after its passage and approval. 

Passed: ----------

ATTEST: ---------
President of City Council 

Approved: ________ _ 

ATTEST: ---------
Mayor of Washington, Missouri 



Exhibit A 

CCO Form: FS11 
Approved: 
Revised: 

07/96 (KMH) 
03/17 (MWH) 

Modified: 

CFDA Number: 
CFDA Title: 
Award name/number: 
Award Year: 

Federal Agency: 

CFDA #20.205 
Highway Planning and Construction 
STP-4940(607) 
2023 

Federal Highway Administration, Department of Transportation 

MISSOURI HIGHWAYS AND TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 
STP-URBAN PROGRAM AGREEMENT 

THIS STP-URBAN AGREEMENT is entered into by the Missouri Highways and 
Transportation Commission (hereinafter, "Commission") and the City of Washington, 
Franklin County, Missouri (hereinafter, "City"). 

WITNESS ETH: 

WHEREAS, the Fixing America's Surface Transportation Act (FAST) 23 U.S.C. 
§133, authorizes a Surface Transportation Program (STP) to fund transportation related 
projects; and 

WHEREAS, the City desires to construct certain improvements, more specifically 
described below, using such STP funding; and 

WHEREAS, those improvements are to be designed and constructed in 
compliance with the provisions of this Agreement. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants, promises and 
representations in this Agreement, the parties agree as follows: 

(1) PURPOSE: The purpose of this Agreement is to grant the use of STP funds 
to the City. The improvement contemplated by this Agreement and designated as Project 
STP-4940(607) involves: 

Resurfacing, remove and replace curb and gutter, upgrade sidewalks, 
intersection crossings, pavers, and storm sewer. 

The City shall be responsible for all aspects of the construction of the improvement. 



(2) LOCATION: The contemplated improvement designated as Project STP-
4940(607) by the Commission is within the city limits of Washington, Missouri. The 
general location of the improvement is shown on an attachment hereto marked "Exhibit 
A" and incorporated herein by reference. More specific descriptions are as follows: 

Front Street from Strafford Street to Jefferson Street. 

(3) REASONABLE PROGRESS POLICY: The project as described in this 
agreement is subject to the reasonable progress policy set forth in the Local Public 
Agency (LPA) Manual and the final deadline specified in Exhibit B attached hereto and 
incorporated herein by reference. In the event, the LPA Manual and the final deadline 
within Exhibit B conflict, the final deadline within Exhibit B controls. If the project is within 
a Transportation Management Area that has a reasonable progress policy in place, the 
project is subject to that policy. If the project is withdrawn for not meeting reasonable 
progress, the City agrees to repay the Commission for any progress payments made to 
the City for the project and agrees that the Commission may deduct progress payments 
made to the City from future payments to the City. 

(4) LIMITS OF SYSTEM: The limits of the surface transportation system for 
the City shall correspond to its geographical area as encompassed by the urban 
boundaries of the City as fixed cooperatively by the parties subject to approval by the 
Federal Highway Administration (FHWA). 

(5) ROUTES TO BE INCLUDED: The City shall select the high traffic volume 
arterial and collector routes to be included in the surface transportation system, to be 
concurred with by the Commission, subject to approval by the FHWA. It is understood by 
the parties that surface transportation system projects will be limited to the said surface 
transportation system, but that streets and arterial routes may be added to the surface 
transportation system, including transfers from other federal aid systems. 

(6) INVENTORY AND INSPECTION: The City shall : 

(A) Furnish annually, upon request from the Commission or FHWA, 
information concerning conditions on streets included in the STP system under local 
jurisdiction indicating miles of system by pavement width, surface type, number of lanes 
and traffic volume category. 

(B) Inspect and provide inventories of all bridges on that portion of the 
federal-aid highway systems under the jurisdiction of the City in accordance with the 
Federal Special Bridge Program, as set forth in 23 U.S.C. §144, and applicable 
amendments or regulations promulgated thereunder. 

(7) CITY TO MAINTAIN: Upon completion of construction of this improvement, 
the City shall accept control and maintenance of the improved street and shall thereafter 
keep, control , and maintain the same as, and for all purposes, a part of the City street 

2 



system at its own cost and expense and at no cost and expense whatsoever to the 
Commission. Any traffic signals installed on highways maintained by the Commission will 
be turned over to the Commission upon completion of the project for maintenance. All 
obligations of the Commission under this Agreement shall cease upon completion of the 
improvement. 

(8) INDEMNIFICATION: 

(A) To the extent allowed or imposed by law, the City shall defend, 
indemnify and hold harmless the Commission, including its members and the Missouri 
Department of Transportation (MoDOT or Department) employees, from any claim or 
liability whether based on a claim for damages to real or personal property or to a person 
for any matter relating to or arising out of the City's wrongful or negligent performance of 
its obligations under this Agreement. 

(B) The City will require any contractor procured by the City to work 
under this Agreement: 

1. To obtain a no cost permit from the Commission's district 
engineer prior to working on the Commission's right-of-way, which shall be signed by an 
authorized contractor representative (a permit from the Commission's district engineer 
will not be required for work outside of the Commission's right-of-way); and 

2. To carry commercial general liability insurance and 
commercial automobile liability insurance from a company authorized to issue insurance 
in Missouri, and to name the Commission, and MoDOT and its employees, as additional 
named insureds in amounts sufficient to cover the sovereign immunity limits for Missouri 
public entities as calculated by the Missouri Department of Insurance, Financial 
Institutions and Professional Registration, and published annually in the Missouri Register 
pursuant to Section 537.610, RS Mo. The City shall cause insurer to increase the 
insurance amounts in accordance with those published annually in the Missouri Register 
pursuant to Section 537.610, RSMo. 

(C) In no event shall the language of this Agreement constitute or be 
construed as a waiver or limitation for either party's rights or defenses with regard to each 
party's applicable sovereign, governmental, or official immunities and protections as 
provided by federal and state constitution or law. 

(9) CONSTRUCTION SPECIFICATIONS: Parties agree that all construction 
under the STP for the City will be constructed in accordance with current MoDOT design 
criteria/specifications for urban construction unless separate standards for the surface 
transportation system have been established by the City and the Commission subject to 
the approval of the FHWA. 

3 



(10) FEDERAL-AID PROVISIONS: Because responsibility for the performance 
of all functions or work contemplated as part of this project is assumed by the City, and 
the City may elect to construct part of the improvement contemplated by this Agreement 
with its own forces, a copy of Section II and Section Ill, as contained in the United States 
Department of Transportation Form Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) 1273 
"Required Contract Provisions, Federal-Aid Construction Contracts," is attached and 
made a part of this Agreement as Exhibit C. Wherever the term "the contractor" or words 
of similar import appear in these sections, the term "the City" is to be substituted. The 
City agrees to abide by and carry out the condition and obligations of "the contractor" as 
stated in Section II, Equal Opportunity, and Section Ill, Nonsegregated Facilities, as set 
out in Form FHWA 1273. 

(11) ACQUISITION OF RIGHT OF WAY: With respect to the acquisition of right 
of way necessary for the completion of the project, City shall acquire any additional 
necessary right of way required for the project and in doing so agrees that it will comply 
with all applicable federal laws, rules and regulations, including 42 U.S.C. 4601-4655, the 
Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Act, as amended and any 
regulations promulgated in connection with the Act. However upon written request by the 
City and the written acceptance by the Commission, the Commission shall acquire right 
of way for the City. Upon approval of all agreements, plans and specifications by the 
Commission and the FHWA, the commission will file copies of said plans in the office of 
the county clerk: and proceed to acquire by negotiation and purchase or by condemnation 
any necessary right of way required for the construction of the improvement contemplated 
herein. All right of way acquired by negotiation and purchase will be acquired in the name 
of City, and the City will pay to grantors thereof the agreed upon purchase prices. All right 
of way acquired through condemnation proceedings will be acquired in the name of the 
State of Missouri and subsequently released to the City. The City shall pay into court all 
awards and final judgments in favor of any such condemnees. The City shall also 
reimburse the Commission for any expense incurred by the Commission in acquiring said 
right of way, including but not limited to the costs of surveying, appraisal, negotiation, 
condemnation, and relocation assistance benefits. Unless otherwise agreed to in writing 
the Commission shall have the final decision regarding the settlement amount in 
condemnation. 

(12) REIMBURSEMENT: The cost of the contemplated improvements will be 
borne by the United States Government and by the City as follows: 

(A) Any federal funds for project activities shall only be available for 
reimbursement of eligible costs which have been incurred by City. Any costs incurred by 
City prior to authorization from FHWA and notification to proceed from the Commission 
are not reimbursable costs. All federally funded projects are required to have a project 
end date. Any costs incurred after the project end date are not eligible for reimbursement. 
The federal share for this project will be 80 percent not to exceed $845,600. The 
calculated federal share for seeking federal reimbursement of participating costs for the 
herein improvements will be determined by dividing the total federal funds applied to the 

4 



project by the total participating costs. Any costs for the herein improvements which 
exceed any federal reimbursement or are not eligible for federal reimbursement shall be 
the sole responsibility of City. The Commission shall not be responsible for any costs 
associated with the herein improvement unless specifically identified in this Agreement or 
subsequent written amendments. 

(B) The total reimbursement otherwise payable to the City under this 
Agreement is subject to reduction, offset, levy, judgment, collection or withholding, if there 
is a reduction in the available federal funding, or to satisfy other obligations of the City to 
the Commission, the State of Missouri, the United States, or another entity acting 
pursuant to a lawful court order, which City obligations or liability are created by law, 
judicial action, or by pledge, contract or other enforceable instrument. Any costs incurred 
by the City prior to authorization from FHWA and notification to proceed from the 
Commission are not reimbursable costs. 

(13) PERMITS: The City shall secure any necessary approvals or permits from 
the Federal Government and the State of Missouri as required to permit the construction 
and maintenance of the contemplated improvements. 

(14) TRAFFIC CONTROL: The plans shall provide for handling traffic with signs, 
signal and marking in accordance with the Manual of Uniform Traffic Control Devices 
(MUTCD). 

(15) WORK ON STATE RIGHT OF WAY: If any contemplated improvements 
for Project STP-4940(607) will involve work on the state's right of way, the City will provide 
reproducible final plans to the Commission relating to such work. 

(16) DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISES (DBEs): At time of 
processing the required project agreements with the FHWA, the Commission will advise 
the City of any required goals for participation by DBEs to be included in the City's 
proposal for the work to be performed. The City shall submit for Commission approval a 
DBE goal or plan. The City shall comply with the plan or goal that is approved by the 
Commission and all requirements of 49 C.F.R. Part 26, as amended. 

(17) NOTICE TO BIDDERS: The City shall notify the prospective bidders that 
disadvantaged business enterprises shall be afforded full and affirmative opportunity to 
submit bids in response to the invitation and will not be discriminated against on grounds 
of race, color, sex, or national origin in consideration for an award. 

(18) PROGRESS PAYMENTS: The City may request progress payments be 
made for the herein improvements as work progresses but not more than once every two 
weeks. Progress payments must be submitted monthly. All progress payment requests 
must be submitted for reimbursement within 90 days of the project completion date for 
the final phase of work. The City shall repay any progress payments which involve 
ineligible costs. 

5 

1b 



(19) PROMPT PAYMENTS: Progress invoices submitted to MoDOT for 
reimbursement more than thirty (30) calendar days after the date of the vendor invoice 
shall also include documentation that the vendor was paid in full for the work identified in 
the progress invoice. Examples of proof of payment may include a letter or e-mail from 
the vendor, lien waiver or copies of cancelled checks. Reimbursement will not be made 
on these submittals until proof of payment is provided. Progress invoices submitted to 
MoDOT for reimbursement within thirty (30) calendar days of the date on the vendor 
invoice will be processed for reimbursement without proof of payment to the vendor. If 
the City has not paid the vendor prior to receiving reimbursement, the City must pay the 
vendor within two (2) business days of receipt of funds from MoDOT. 

(20) OUTDOOR ADVERTISING: The City further agrees that the right of way 
provided for any STP improvement will be held and maintained inviolate for public 
highway or street purposes, and will enact and enforce any ordinances or regulations 
necessary to prohibit the presence of billboards or other advertising signs or devices and 
the vending or sale of merchandise on such right of way, and will remove or cause to be 
removed from such right of way any sign, private installation of any nature, or any privately 
owned object or thing which may interfere with the free flow of traffic or impair the full use 
and safety of the highway or street. 

(21) FINAL AUDIT: The Commission will perform a final audit of project costs. 
The United States Government shall reimburse the City, through the Commission, any 
monies due. The City shall refund any overpayments as determined by the final audit. 

(22) AUDIT REQUIREMENT: If the City expend(s) seven hundred fifty 
thousand dollars ($750,000) or more in a year in federal financial assistance it is required 
to have an independent annual audit conducted in accordance with 2 CFR Part 200. A 
copy of the audit report shall be submitted to MoDOT within the earlier of thirty (30) days 
after receipt of the auditor's report(s), or nine (9) months after the end of the audit period. 
Subject to the requirements of 2 CFR Part 200, if the City expend(s) less than seven 
hundred fifty thousand dollars ($750,000) a year, the City may be exempt from auditing 
requirements for that year but records must be available for review or audit by applicable 
state and federal authorities. 

(23) FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY ACT OF 
2006: The City shall comply with all reporting requirements of the Federal Funding 
Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) of 2006, as amended. This Agreement is 
subject to the award terms within 2 C.F.R. Part 170. 

(24) VENUE: It is agreed by the parties that any action at law, suit in equity, or 
other judicial proceeding to enforce or construe this Agreement, or regarding its alleged 
breach, shall be instituted only in the Circuit Court of Cole County, Missouri. 

6 

1b 



(25) LAW OF MISSOURI TO GOVERN: This Agreement shall be construed 
according to the laws of the State of Missouri. The City shall comply with all local, state 
and federal laws and regulations relating to the performance of this Agreement. 

(26) AMENDMENTS: Any change in this Agreement, whether by modification 
or supplementation, must be accomplished by a formal contract amendment signed and 
approved by the duly authorized representatives of the City and the Commission. 

(27) COMMISSION REPRESENTATIVE: The Commission's St. Louis District 
Engineer is designated as the Commission's representative for the purpose of 
administering the provisions of this Agreement. The Commission's representative may 
designate by written notice other persons having the authority to act on behalf of the 
Commission in furtherance of the performance of this Agreement. 

(28) NOTICES: Any notice or other communication required or permitted to be 
given hereunder shall be in writing and shall be deemed given three (3) days after delivery 
by United States mail, regular mail postage prepaid, or upon receipt by personal or 
facsimile delivery, addressed as follows: 

(A) To the City: 
405 Jefferson 
Washington, MO 63090 

(B) To the Commission: 
1590 Woodlake Drive 
Chesterfield, MO 63017 

or to such other place as the parties may designate in accordance with this Agreement. 
To be valid, facsimile delivery shall be followed by delivery of the original document, or a 
clear and legible copy thereof, within three (3) business days of the date of facsimile 
transmission of that document. 

(29) NONDISCRIMINATION ASSURANCE: With regard to work under this 
Agreement, the City agrees as follows: 

(A) Civil Rights Statutes: The City shall comply with all state and federal 
statutes relating to nondiscrimination, including but not limited to Title VI and Title VII of 
the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended (42 U.S.C. §2000d and §2000e, et seq.), as well 
as any applicable titles of the "Americans with Disabilities Act" (42 U.S.C. §12101, et 
seq.). In addition, if the City is providing services or operating programs on behalf of the 
Department or the Commission, it shall comply with all applicable provisions of Title II of 
the "Americans with Disabilities Act". 

(B) Administrative Rules: The City shall comply with 

7 



the administrative rules of the United States Department of Transportation relative to 
nondiscrimination in federally-assisted programs of the United States Department of 
Transportation (49 C.F.R. Part 21) which are herein incorporated by reference and made 
part of this Agreement. 

(C) Nondiscrimination: The City shall not discriminate on grounds of the 
race, color, religion, sex, disability, national origin, age or ancestry of any individual in the 
selection and retention of subcontractors, including procurement of materials and leases 
of equipment. The City shall not participate either directly or indirectly in the discrimination 
prohibited by 49 C.F.R. §21.5, including employment practices. 

(D) Solicitations for Subcontracts, Including Procurements of Material 
and Equipment: These assurances concerning nondiscrimination also apply to 
subcontractors and suppliers of the City. These apply to all solicitations either by 
competitive bidding or negotiation made by the City for work to be performed under a 
subcontract including procurement of materials or equipment. Each potential 
subcontractor or supplier shall be notified by the City of the requirements of this 
Agreement relative to nondiscrimination on grounds of the race, color, religion, sex, 
disability or national origin, age or ancestry of any individual. 

(E) Information and Reports: The City shall provide all information and 
reports required by this Agreement, or orders and instructions issued pursuant thereto, 
and will permit access to its books, records, accounts, other sources of information, and 
its facilities as may be determined by the Commission or the United States Department 
of Transportation to be necessary to ascertain compliance with other contracts, orders 
and instructions. Where any information required of the City is in the exclusive 
possession of another who fails or refuses to furnish this information, the City shall so 
certify to the Commission or the United States Department of Transportation as 
appropriate and shall set forth what efforts it has made to obtain the information. 

(F) Sanctions for Noncompliance: In the event the City fails to comply 
with the nondiscrimination provisions of this Agreement, the Commission shall impose 
such contract sanctions as it or the United States Department of Transportation may 
determine to be appropriate, including but not limited to: 

1. Withholding of payments under this Agreement until the City 
complies; and/or 

2. Cancellation, termination or suspension of this Agreement, in 
whole or in part, or both. 

(G) Incorporation of Provisions: The City shall include the provisions of 
paragraph (29) of this Agreement in every subcontract, including procurements of 
materials and leases of equipment, unless exempted by the statutes, executive order, 
administrative rules or instructions issued by the Commission or the United States 

8 

11o 



Department of Transportation. The City will take such action with respect to any 
subcontract or procurement as the Commission or the United States Department of 
Transportation may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions, including sanctions 
for noncompliance; provided that in the event the City becomes involved or is threatened 
with litigation with a subcontractor or supplier as a result of such direction, the 
City may request the United States to enter into such litigation to protect the interests of 
the United States. 

(30) ACCESS TO RECORDS: The City and its contractors must maintain all 
records relating to this Agreement, including but not limited to invoices, payrolls, etc. 
These records must be available at no charge to the FHWA and the Commission and/or 
their designees or representatives during the period of this Agreement and any extension, 
and for a period of three (3) years after the date on which the City receives reimbursement 
of their final invoice from the Commission. 

(31) CONFLICT OF INTEREST: The City shall comply with conflict of interest 
policies identified in 23 CFR 1.33. A conflict of interest occurs when an entity has a 
financial or personal interest in a federally funded project. 

(32) MANDATORY DISCLOSURES: The City shall comply with 2 CFR 200.113 
and disclose, in a timely manner, in writing all violations of Federal criminal law involving 
fraud, bribery, or gratuity violations potentially affecting the Federal award. 

9 

1fo 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have entered into this Agreement on 
the date last written below. 

Executed by the City on _ ______________ (DATE). 

Executed by the Commission on ____________ (DATE). 

MISSOURI HIGHWAYS AND 
TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 

Title ------------

ATTEST: 

Secretary to the Commission 

Approved as to Form: 

Commission Counsel 

10 

CITY OF WASHINGTON 

Title 

ATTEST: 

By -------------

Title 

Approved as to Form: 

By ------------

Title ------------

Ordinance No: -------

1b 



-

rr 
c.. -

i 
re 
:E: 
C

 
0 
p (3 
_g tj 
Q

) 
.r

-
\
 

L e a.. 
J 

-

l 

I 
/ 

I 
• 

J 

" ~
I 

E
xh'b't 

I 
I 

A
 -

Locat' ion o
f P

roject 

,. 
-

B
 

A
 8. 

Y
 

~ 5
: 

1
1

1 
l 

/ 

' 
/ 

/ 
I t I I 

I J 
I 

t j 

,' ' I I 
,. / 

. 

/ 
;' 

I 
f 

' 
I 

,l 

/ I 
. 

11 

......... 

.., I 
' 

I I I 



Exhibit B - Project Schedule 

Project Description: STP-4940(607) Front Street 

" .. . 

' p .. !l•J1:1o~n , : ~ .. ~ :s1e1:.1 .'"~ !!1.• 1-...,_. : .. ~ u 111 
~ 

1..: ,w I ·-.'! '! _ _,.., .,., ,,. , .•• , 

Start Date 
Activity Description (MM/YYYY) 

Receive notification letter 10/2021 
Execute agreement {project .spo;,sor aml DOT) 02/2022 

Engineering services contract submitted and iilpprovect~ 06/2022 

Obtain environmental c learances (105, CE2, T&E, etc.) 10/2022 

Pubtic meet ing/hearing 01/2023 

Deve lop a11d .submit preliminary plans 11 /2022 

Preliminary plans approved 03/2023 

Deve lop and submit right-of-way plans 0312023 

Review and approval of right-of-way plans 07/2023 
Submit and receive approvar for notice to proceed for 
right-of-way acquisit ion (A-Date] * 1'In023 

Rfght-of-way acquisitio~ D'l/2024 

Util ity coordinatloi 05/2023 

Develop and submit PS&E 05/2024 

District approval of PS&E/advertise for bids' 08/2024 

Submit and receive bids for review and approval 10/2024 

Project implementation/construct ion 03/2025 

"' Finish date must match fi sca l year for each milestone shown in bo ld text. 
-

" 

Finish Date Tlme Frame 
(MM/YYYV} (Months) 

10/2021 1 

0412022 2 

'10/2022 3 

05/2021 7 

01/2023 ·1 

03/2023 4 

061202'1 3 

0712023 4 

09/2023 2 

01/2024 2 

08/2024 7 

07/2024 14 

08/2024 3 

10/2024 1 

O·l/2025 3 

0712025 4 

*Note: the dates established in the schedu le above will be used in the applicable ESC 
between the sponsor agency and consultant firm. 

**Schedule dates are approximate as the project schedule will be actively managed and 
issues mitigated through the project delivery process. The Award Date or Planning Study 
Date deliverable is not approximate and requ ires request to adjust 

12 

1b 



FHWA-1273-- Revised May 1, 2012 

Exhibit C - Required Contract Provisions 
REQUIRED CONTRACT PROVISIONS 

FEDERAL-AID CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS 

I. General 
II. Nondiscrimination 
Ill. Nonsegregated Facilities 
IV. Davis-Bacon and Related Act Provisions 
V. Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act 

Provisions 
VI. Subletting or Assigning the Contract 
VII. Safety: Accident Prevention 
VII I. False Statements Concerning Highway Projects 
IX. Implementation of Clean Air Act and Federal Water 

Pollution Control Act 
X. Compliance with Governmentwide Suspension and 

Debarment Requirements 
XI. Certification Regarding Use of Contract Funds for 

Lobbying 

ATTACHMENTS 

A. Employment and Materials Preference for Appalachian 
Development Highway System or Appalachian Local Access 
Road Contracts (included in Appalachian contracts only) 

I. GENERAL 

1. Form FHWA-1273 must be physically incorporated in each 
construction contract funded under Title 23 (excluding 
emergency contracts solely intended for debris removal) . The 
contractor (or subcontractor) must insert this form in each 
subcontract and further require its inclusion in all lower tier 
subcontracts (excluding purchase orders, rental agreements 
and other agreements for supplies or services). 

The applicable requirements of Form FHWA-1273 are 
incorporated by reference for work done under any purchase 
order, rental agreement or agreement for other services. The 
prime contractor shall be responsible for compliance by any 
subcontractor, lower-tier subcontractor or service provider. 

Form FHWA-1273 must be included in all Federal-aid design
build contracts, in all subcontracts and in lower tier 
subcontracts (excluding subcontracts for design services, 
purchase orders, rental agreements and other agreements for 
supplies or services). The design-builder shall be responsible 
for compliance by any subcontractor, lower-tier subcontractor 
or service provider. 

Contracting agencies may reference Form FHWA-1273 in bid 
proposal or request for proposal documents, however, the 
Form FHWA-1273 must be physically incorporated (not 
referenced) in all contracts, subcontracts and lower-tier 
subcontracts (excluding purchase orders, rental agreements 
and other agreements for supplies or services related to a 
construction contract). 

2. Subject to the applicability criteria noted in the following 
sections, these contract provisions shall apply to all work 
performed on the contract by the contractor's own organization 
and with the assistance of workers under the contractor's 
immediate superintendence and to all work performed on the 
contract by piecework, station work, or bysubcontract. 

3. A breach of any of the stipulations contained in these 
Required Contract Provisions may be sufficient grounds for 
withholding of progress payments, withholding of final 
payment, termination of the contract, suspension / debarment 
or any other action determined to be appropriate by the 
contracting agency and FHWA. 

4. Selection of Labor: During the performance of this contract, 
the contractor shall not use convict labor for any purpose 
within the limits of a construction project on a Federal-aid 
highway unless it is labor performed by convicts who are on 
parole, supervised release, or probation. The term Federal-aid 
highway does not include roadways functionally classified as 
local roads or rural minor collectors . 

II . NONDISCRIMINATION 

The provisions of this section related to 23 CFR Part 230 are 
applicable to all Federal-aid construction contracts and to all 
related construction subcontracts of $10,000 or more. The 
provisions of 23 CFR Part 230 are not applicable to material 
supply, engineering, or architectural service contracts. 

In addition, the contractor and all subcontractors must comply 
with the following policies: Executive Order 11246, 41 CFR 60, 
29 CFR 1625-1627, Title 23 USC Section 140, the 
Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended (29 USC 794), Title VI 
of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, and related 
regulations including 49 CFR Parts 21 , 26 and 27; and 23 CFR 
Parts 200, 230, and 633. 

The contractor and all subcontractors must comply with: the 
requirements of the Equal Opportunity Clause in 41 CFR 60-
1.4(b) and, for all construction contracts exceeding $10,000, 
the Standard Federal Equal Employment Opportunity 
Construction Contract Specifications in 41 CFR 60-4.3. 

Note: The U.S. Department of Labor has exclusive authority to 
determine compliance with Executive Order 11246 and the 
policies of the Secretary of Labor including 41 CFR 60, and 29 
CFR 1625-1627. The contracting agency and the FHWA have 
the authority and the responsibility to ensure compliance with 
Title 23 USC Section 140, the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as 
amended (29 USC 794), and Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 
1964, as amended , and related regulations including 49 CFR 
Parts 21, 26 and 27; and 23 CFR Parts 200, 230, and 633. 

The following provision is adopted from 23 CFR 230, Appendix 
A, with appropriate revisions to conform to the U.S. 
Department of Labor (US DOL) and FHWA requirements. 

1. Equal Employment Opportunity: Equal employment 
opportunity (EEO) requirements not to discriminate and to take 
affirmative action to assure equal opportunity as set forth 
under laws, executive orders, rules , regulations (28 CFR 35, 
29 CFR 1630, 29 CFR 1625-1627, 41 CFR 60 and 49 CFR 27) 
and orders of the Secretary of Labor as modified by the 
provisions prescribed herein, and imposed pursuant to23 
U.S.C. 140 shall constitute the EEO and specificaffirmative 
action standards for the contractor's project activities under 

• 

1P 



this contract. The provisions of the Americans with Disabilities 
Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq .) set forth under 28 CFR 
35 and 29 CFR 1630 are incorporated by reference in this 
contract. In the execution of this contract, the contractor 
agrees to comply with the following minimum specific 
requirement activities of EEO: 

a. The contractor will work with the contracting agency and 
the Federal Government to ensure that it has made every 
good faith effort to provide equal opportunity with respect to all 
of its terms and conditions of employment and in their review 
of activities under the contract. 

b. The contractor will accept as its operating policy the 
following statement: 

"It is the policy of this Company to assure that applicants 
are employed, and that employees are treated during 
employment, without regard to their race, religion, sex, color, 
national origin, age or disability. Such action shall include: 
employment, upgrading, demotion, or transfer; recruitment or 
recruitment advertising; layoff or termination; rates of pay or 
other forms of compensation; and selection for training, 
including apprenticeship, pre-apprenticeship, and/or on-the
job training." 

2. EEO Officer: The contractor will designate and make 
known to the contracting officers an EEO Officer who will have 
the responsibility for and must be capable of effectively 
administering and promoting an active EEO program and who 
must be assigned adequate authority and responsibility to do 
so. 

3. Dissemination of Policy: All members of the contractor's 
staff who are authorized to hire, supervise, promote, and 
discharge employees, or who recommend such action, or who 
are substantially involved in such action, will be made fully 
cognizant of, and will implement, the contractor's EEO policy 
and contractual responsibilities to provide EEO in each grade 
and classification of employment. To ensure that the above 
agreement will be met, the following actions will be taken as a 
minimum: 

a. Periodic meetings of supervisory and personnel office 
employees will be conducted before the start of work and then 
not less often than once every six months, at which time the 
contractor's EEO policy and its implementation will be 
reviewed and explained . The meetings will be conducted by 
the EEO Officer. 

b. All new supervisory or personnel office employees will be 
given a thorough indoctrination by the EEO Officer, covering 
all major aspects of the contractor's EEO obligations within 
thirty days following their reporting for duty with the contractor. 

c. All personnel who are engaged in direct recruitment for 
the project will be instructed by the EEO Officer in the 
contractor's procedures for locating and hiring minorities and 
women. 

d. Notices and posters setting forth the contractor's EEO 
policy will be placed in areas readily accessible to employees, 
applicants for employment and potential employees. 

e. The contractor's EEO policy and the procedures to 
implement such policy will be brought to the attention of 
employees by means of meetings, employee handbooks, or 
other appropriate means. 

2 

4. Recruitment: When advertising for employees, the 
contractor will include in all advertisements for employees the 
notation: "An Equal Opportunity Employer." All such 
advertisements will be placed in publications having a large 
circulation among minorities and women in the area from 
which the project work force would normally be derived. 

a. The contractor will, unless precluded by a valid 
bargaining agreement, conduct systematic and direct 
recruitment through public and private employee referral 
sources likely to yield qualified minorities and women. To 
meet this requirement, the contractor will identify sources of 
potential minority group employees, and establish with such 
identified sources procedures whereby minority and women 
applicants may be referred to the contractor foremployment 
consideration. 

b. In the event the contractor has a valid bargaining 
agreement providing for exclusive hiring hall referrals, the 
contractor is expected to observe the provisions of that 
agreement to the extent that the system meets thecontractor's 
compliance with EEO contract provisions. Where 
implementation of such an agreement has the effect of 
discriminating against minorities or women, or obligates the 
contractor to do the same, such implementation violates 
Federal nondiscrimination provisions. 

c. The contractor will encourage its present employees to 
refer minorities and women as applicants for employment. 
Information and procedures with regard to referring such 
applicants will be discussed with employees. 

5. Personnel Actions: Wages, working conditions, and 
employee benefits shall be established and administered, and 
personnel actions of every type, including hiring, upgrading, 
promotion, transfer, demotion, layoff, and termination, shall be 
taken without regard to race, color, religion, sex, national 
origin, age or disability. The following procedures shall be 
followed: 

a. The contractor will conduct periodic inspections of project 
sites to insure that working conditions and employee facilities 
do not indicate discriminatory treatment of project site 
personnel. 

b. The contractor will periodically evaluate the spread of 
wages paid within each classification to determine any 
evidence of discriminatory wage practices. 

c. The contractor will periodically review selected personnel 
actions in depth to determine whether there is evidence of 
discrimination. Where evidence is found, the contractor will 
promptly take corrective action. If the review indicates that the 
discrimination may extend beyond the actions reviewed, such 
corrective action shall include all affected persons. 

d. The contractor will promptly investigate all complaints of 
alleged discrimination made to the contractor in connection 
with its obligations under this contract, will attempt to resolve 
such complaints, and will take appropriate corrective action 
within a reasonable time. If the investigation indicates that the 
discrimination may affect persons other than the complainant, 
such corrective action shall include such other persons. Upon 
completion of each investigation, the contractor will inform 
every complainant of all of their avenues of appeal. 

6. Training and Promotion: 

a. The contractor will assist in locating, qualifying, and 
increasing the skills of minorities and women who are 

1b 



applicants for employment or current employees. Such efforts 
should be aimed at developing full journey level status 
employees in the type of trade or job classification involved. 

b. Consistent with the contractor's work force requirements 
and as permissible under Federal and State regulations, the 
contractor shall make full use of training programs, i.e., 
apprenticeship, and on-the-job training programs for the 
geographical area of contract performance. In the event a 
special provision for training is provided under this contract, 
this subparagraph will be superseded as indicated in the 
special provision. The contracting agency may reseNe 
training positions for persons who receive welfare assistance 
in accordance with 23 U.S.C. 140(a). 

c. The contractor will advise employees and applicants for 
employment of available training programs and entrance 
requirements for each. 

d. The contractor will periodically review the training and 
promotion potential of employees who are minorities and 
women and will encourage eligible employees to apply for 
such training and promotion. 

7. Unions: If the contractor relies in whole or in part upon 
unions as a source of employees, the contractor will use good 
faith efforts to obtain the cooperation of such unions to 
increase opportunities for minorities and women. Actions by 
the contractor, either directly or through a contractor's 
association acting as agent, will include the procedures set 
forth below: 

a. The contractor will use good faith efforts to develop, in 
cooperation with the unions, joint training programs aimed 
toward qualifying more minorities and women for membership 
in the unions and increasing the skills of minorities and women 
so that they may qualify for higher paying employment. 

b. The contractor will use good faith efforts to incorporate an 
EEO clause into each union agreement to the end that such 
union will be contractually bound to refer applicants without 
regard to their race, color, religion, sex, national origin, age or 
disability. 

c. The contractor is to obtain information as to the referral 
practices and policies of the labor union except that to the 
extent such information is within the exclusive possession of 
the labor union and such labor union refuses to furnish such 
information to the contractor, the contractor shall so certify to 
the contracting agency and shall set forth what efforts have 
been made to obtain such information. 

d. In the event the union is unable to provide the contractor 
with a reasonable flow of referrals within the time limit set forth 
in the collective bargaining agreement, the contractor will , 
through independent recruitment efforts, fill the employment 
vacancies without regard to race, color, religion, sex, national 
origin, age or disability; making full efforts to obtain qualified 
and/or qualifiable minorities and women. The failure of a union 
to provide sufficient referrals (even though it is obligated to 
provide exclusive referrals under the terms of a collective 
bargaining agreement) does not relieve the contractor from the 
requirements of this paragraph. In the event the union referral 
practice prevents the contractor from meeting the obligations 
pursuant to Executive Order 11246, as amended, and these 
special provisions, such contractor shall immediately notify the 
contracting agency. 

8. Reasonable Accommodation for Applicants / 
Employees with Disabilities: The contractor must be familiar 

3 

with the requirements for and comply wilh the Americans with 
Disabilities Act and all rules and regulations established there 
under. Employers must provide reasonable accommodation in 
all employment activities unless to do so would cause an 
undue hardship. 

9. Selection of Subcontractors, Procurement of Materials 
and Leasing of Equipment: The contractor shall not 
discriminate on the grounds of race, color, religion, sex, 
national origin, age or disability in the selection and retention 
of subcontractors, including procurement of materials and 
leases of equipment. The contractor shall take all necessary 
and reasonable steps to ensure nondiscrimination in the 
administration of this contract. 

a. The contractor shall notify all potential subcontractors and 
suppliers and lessors of their EEO obligations under this 
contract. 

b. The contractor will use good faith efforts to ensure 
subcontractor compliance with their EEO obligations. 

10. Assurance Required by 49 CFR 26.13(b): 

a. The requirements of 49 CFR Part 26 and the State 
DOT's U.S. DOT-approved DBE program are incorporated by 
reference. 

b. The contractor or subcontractor shall not discriminate on 
the basis of race, color, national origin, or sex in the 
performance of this contract. The contractor shall carry out 
applicable requirements of 49 CFR Part 26 in the award and 
administration of DOT-assisted contracts. Failure by the 
contractor to carry out these requirements is a material breach 
of this contract, which may result in the termination of this 
contract or such other remedy as the contracting agency 
deems appropriate. 

11 . Records and Reports: The contractor shall keep such 
records as necessary to document compliance with the EEO 
requirements . Such records shall be retained for a period of 
three years following the date of the final payment to the 
contractor for all contract work and shall be available at 
reasonable times and places for inspection by authorized 
representatives of the contracting agency and the FHWA. 

a. The records kept by the contractor shall document the 
following: 

(1) The number and work hours of minority and non
minority group members and women employed in each work 
classification on the project; 

(2) The progress and efforts being made in cooperation 
with unions, when applicable, to increase employment 
opportunities for minorities and women; and 

(3) The progress and efforts being made in locating, hiring, 
training, qualifying, and upgrading minorities and women; 

b. The contractors and subcontractors will submit an annual 
report to the contracting agency each July for the duration of 
the project, indicating the number of minority, women, and 
non-minority group employees currently engaged in eachwork 
classification required by the contract work. This information is 
to be reported on Form FHWA-1391. The staffing data should 
represent the project work force on board in all or any part of 
the last payroll period preceding the end of July. If on-the-job 
training is being required by special provision, the contractor 



will be required to collect and report training data. The 
employment data should reflect the work force on board during 
all or any part of the last payroll period preceding the end of 
July. 

Ill. NONSEGREGATED FACILITIES 

This provision is applicable to all Federal-aid construction 
contracts and to all related construction subcontracts of 
$10,000 or more. 

The contractor must ensure that facilities provided for 
employees are provided in such a manner that segregation on 
the basis of race, color, religion, sex, or national origin cannot 
result. The contractor may neither require such segregated 
use by written or oral policies nor tolerate such use by 
employee custom. The contractor's obligation extends further 
to ensure that its employees are not assigned to perform their 
services at any location, under the contractor's control, where 
the facilities are segregated. The term "facilities" includes 
waiting rooms, work areas, restaurants and other eating areas, 
time clocks, restrooms, washrooms, locker rooms, and other 
storage or dressing areas, parking lots, drinking fountains, 
recreation or entertainment areas, transportation, and housing 
provided for employees. The contractor shall provide separate 
or single-user restrooms and necessary dressing or sleeping 
areas to assure privacy between sexes. 

IV. DAVIS-BACON AND RELATED ACT PROVISIONS 

This section is applicable to all Federal-aid construction 
projects exceeding $2,000 and to all related subcontracts and 
lower-tier subcontracts (regardless of subcontract size). The 
requirements apply to all projects located within the right-of
way of a roadway that is functionally classified as Federal-aid 
highway. This excludes roadways functionally classified as 
local roads or rural minor collectors, which are exempt. 
Contracting agencies may elect to apply these requirements to 
other projects. 

The following provisions are from the U.S. Department of 
Labor regulations in 29 CFR 5.5 "Contract provisions and 
related matters" with minor revisions to conform to the FHWA-
1273 format and FHWA program requirements. 

1. Minimum wages 

a. All laborers and mechanics employed or working upon 
the site of the work, will be paid unconditionally and not less 
often than once a week, and without subsequent deduction or 
rebate on any account (except such payroll deductions as are 
permitted by regulations issued by the Secretary of Labor 
under the Copeland Act (29 CFR part 3)), the full amount of 
wages and bona fide fringe benefits (or cash equivalents 
thereof) due at time of payment computed at rates not less 
than those contained in the wage determination of the 
Secretary of Labor which is attached hereto and made a part 
hereof, regardless of any contractual relationship which may 
be alleged to exist between the contractor and such laborers 
and mechanics. 

Contributions made or costs reasonably anticipated for bona 
fide fringe benefits under section 1(b)(2) of the Davis-Bacon 
Act on behalf of laborers or mechanics are considered wages 
paid to such laborers or mechanics, subject to the provisions 

4 

of paragraph 1.d. of this section; also, regular contributions 
made or costs incurred for more than a weekly period (but not 
less often than quarterly) under plans, funds, or programs 
which cover the particular weekly period, are deemed to be 
constructively made or incurred during such weekly period. 
Such laborers and mechanics shall be paid the appropriate 
wage rate and fringe benefits on the wage determination for 
the classification of work actually performed, without regard to 
skill, except as provided in 29 CFR 5.5(a)(4). Laborers or 
mechanics performing work in more than one classification 
may be compensated at the rate specified for each 
classification for the time actually worked therein: Provided, 
That the employer's payroll records accurately set forth the 
time spent in each classification in which work is performed. 
The wage determination (including any additional classification 
and wage rates conformed under paragraph 1.b. of this 
section) and the Davis-Bacon poster (WH-1321) shall be 
posted at all times by the contractor and its subcontractors at 
the site of the work in a prominent and accessible place where 
it can be easily seen by the workers. 

b.(1) The contracting officer shall require that any class of 
laborers or mechanics, including helpers, which is not listed in 
the wage determination and which is to be employed under the 
contract shall be classified in conformance with the wage 
determination. The contracting officer shall approve an 
additional classification and wage rate and fringe benefits 
therefore only when the following criteria have been met: 

(i) The work to be performed by the classification 
requested is not performed by a classification in thewage 
determination; and 

(ii) The classification is utilized in the area by the 
construction industry; and 

(iii) The proposed wage rate, including any bona fide 
fringe benefits, bears a reasonable relationship to the 
wage rates contained in the wage determination. 

(2) If the contractor and the laborers and mechanics to be 
employed in the classification (if known), or their 
representatives, and the contracting officer agree on the 
classification and wage rate (including the amount 
designated for fringe benefits where appropriate), a report of 
the action taken shall be sent by the contracting officer to the 
Administrator of the Wage and Hour Division, Employment 
Standards Administration, U.S. Department of Labor, 
Washington, DC 20210. The Administrator, or an authorized 
representative, will approve, modify, or disapprove every 
additional classification action within 30 days of receipt and 
so advise the contracting officer or will notify the contracting 
officer within the 30-day period that additional time is 
necessary. 

(3) In the event the contractor, the laborers or mechanics 
to be employed in the classification or their representatives, 
and the contracting officer do not agree on the proposed 
classification and wage rate (including the amount 
designated for fringe benefits, where appropriate), the 
contracting officer shall refer the questions, including the 
views of all interested parties and the recommendation of the 
contracting officer, to the Wage and Hour Administrator for 
determination. The Wage and Hour Administrator, or an 
authorized representative, will issue a determination within 
30 days of receipt and so advise the contracting officer or 

1b 



will notify the contracting officer within the 30-day period that 
additional time is necessary. 

(4) The wage rate (including fringe benefits where 
appropriate) determined pursuant to paragraphs 1.b.(2) or 
1.b.(3) of this section, shall be paid to all workers performing 
work in the classification under this contract from the first 
day on which work is performed in the classification. 

c. Whenever the minimum wage rate prescribed in the 
contract for a class of laborers or mechanics includes a fringe 
benefit which is not expressed as an hourly rate, the contractor 
shall either pay the benefit as stated in the wage determination 
or shall pay another bona fide fringe benefit or an hourly cash 
equivalent thereof. 

d. If the contractor does not make payments to a trustee or 
other third person, the contractor may consider as part of the 
wages of any laborer or mechanic the amount of any costs 
reasonably anticipated in providing bona fide fringe benefits 
under a plan or program, Provided, That the Secretary of 
Labor has found, upon the written request of the contractor, 
that the applicable standards of the Davis-Bacon Act have 
been met. The Secretary of Labor may require the contractor 
to set aside in a separate account assets for the meeting of 
obligations under the plan or program. 

2. Withholding 

The contracting agency shall upon its own action or upon 
written request of an authorized representative of the 
Department of Labor, withhold or cause to be withheld from 
the contractor under this contract, or any other Federal 
contract with the same prime contractor, or any other federally
assisted contract subject to Davis-Bacon prevailing wage 
requirements, which is held by the same prime contractor, so 
much of the accrued payments or advances as may be 
considered necessary to pay laborers and mechanics, 
including apprentices, trainees, and helpers, employed by the 
contractor or any subcontractor the full amount of wages 
required by the contract. In the event of failure to pay any 
laborer or mechanic, including any apprentice, trainee, or 
helper, employed or working on the site of the work, all or part 
of the wages required by the contract, the contracting agency 
may, after written notice to the contractor, take such action as 
may be necessary to cause the suspension of any further 
payment, advance, or guarantee of funds until such violations 
have ceased. 

3. Payrolls and basic records 

a. Payrolls and basic records relating thereto shall be 
maintained by the contractor during the course of the work and 
preserved for a period of three years thereafter for all laborers 
and mechanics working at the site of the work. Such records 
shall contain the name, address, and social security number of 
each such worker, his or her correct classification, hourly rates 
of wages paid (including rates of contributions or costs 
anticipated for bona fide fringe benefits or cash equivalents 
thereof of the types described in section 1 (b)(2)(8) of the 
Davis-Bacon Act) , daily and weekly number of hours worked, 
deductions made and actual wages paid . Whenever the 
Secretary of Labor has found under 29 CFR 5.5(a)(1 )(iv) that 
the wages of any laborer or mechanic include the amount of 
any costs reasonably anticipated in providing benefits under a 
plan or program described in section 1(b)(2)(8) of the Davis-

5 

Bacon Act, the contractor shall maintain records which show 
that the commitment to provide such benefits is enforceable, 
that the plan or program is financially responsible, and that the 
plan or program has been communicated in writing to the 
laborers or mechanics affected, and records which show the 
costs anticipated or the actual cost incurred in providing such 
benefits. Contractors employing apprentices or trainees under 
approved programs shall maintain written evidence of the 
registration of apprenticeship programs and certification of 
trainee programs, the registration of the apprentices and 
trainees , and the ratios and wage rates prescribed in the 
applicable programs. 

b.(1) The contractor shall submit weekly for each week in 
which any contract work is performed a copy of all payrolls to 
the contracting agency. The payrolls submitted shall set out 
accurately and completely all of the information required to be 
maintained under 29 CFR 5.5(a)(3)(i), except that full social 
security numbers and home addresses shall not be included 
on weekly transmittals. Instead the payrolls shall only need to 
include an individually identifying number for each employee ( 
e.g. , the last four digits of the employee's social security 
number) . The required weekly payroll information may be 
submitted in any form desired. Optional Form WH-347 is 
available for this purpose from the Wage and Hour Division 
Web site at http://www.dol.gov/esa/whd/forms/wh347instr.htm 
or its successor site. The prime contractor is responsible for 
the submission of copies of payrolls by all subcontractors . 
Contractors and subcontractors shall maintain the full social 
security number and current address of each covered worker, 
and shall provide them upon request to the contracting agency 
for transmission to the State DOT, the FHWA or the Wage and 
Hour Division of the Department of Labor for purposes of an 
investigation or audit of compliance with prevailing wage 
requirements. It is not a violation of this section for a prime 
contractor to require a subcontractor to provide addresses and 
social security numbers to the prime contractor for its own 
records, without weekly submission to the contracting agency .. 

(2) Each payroll submitted shall be accompanied by a 
"Statement of Compliance," signed by the contractor or 
subcontractor or his or her agent who pays or supervises the 
payment of the persons employed under the contract and shall 
certify the following: 

(i) That the payroll for the payroll period contains the 
information required to be provided under §5.5 (a)(3)(ii) of 
Regulations, 29 CFR part 5, the appropriate information is 
being maintained under §5.5 (a)(3)(i) of Regulations, 29 
CFR part 5, and that such information is correct and 
complete; 

(ii) That each laborer or mechanic (including each 
helper, apprentice, and trainee) employed on the contract 
during the payroll period has been paid the full weekly 
wages earned, without rebate, either directly or indirectly, 
and that no deductions have been made either directly or 
indirectly from the full wages earned, other than 
permissible deductions as set forth in Regulations, 29 CFR 
part 3; 

(iii) That each laborer or mechanic has been paid not 
less than the applicable wage rates and fringe benefits or 
cash equivalents for the classification of work performed, 
as specified in the applicable wage determination 
incorporated into the contract. 

1b 



(3) The weekly submission of a properly executed 
certification set forth on the reverse side of Optional Form 
WH-347 shall satisfy the requirement for submission of the 
"Statement of Compliance" required by paragraph 3.b.(2) of 
this section. 

(4) The falsification of any of the above certifications may 
subject the contractor or subcontractor to civil or criminal 
prosecution under section 1001 of title 18 and section 231 of 
title 31 of the United States Code. 

c. The contractor or subcontractor shall make the records 
required under paragraph 3.a. of this section available for 
inspection, copying, or transcription by authorized 
representatives of the contracting agency, the State DOT, the 
FHWA, or the Department of Labor, and shall permit such 
representatives to interview employees during working hours 
on the job. If the contractor or subcontractor fails to submit the 
required records or to make them available, the FHWA may, 
after written notice to the contractor, the contracting agency or 
the State DOT, take such action as may be necessary to 
cause the suspension of any further payment, advance. or 
guarantee of funds. Furthermore, failure to submit the required 
records upon request or to make such records available may 
be grounds for debarment action pursuant to 29 CFR 5.12. 

4. Apprentices and trainees 

a. Apprentices (programs of the USDOL). 

Apprentices will be permitted to work at less than the 
predetermined rate for the work they performed when they are 
employed pursuant to and individually registered in a bona fide 
apprenticeship program registered with the U.S. Department of 
Labor, Employment and Training Administration, Office of 
Apprenticeship Training, Employer and Labor Services, or with 
a State Apprenticeship Agency recognized by the Office, or ifa 
person is employed in his or her first 90 days of probationary 
employment as an apprentice in such an apprenticeship 
program, who is not individually registered in the program, but 
who has been certified by the Office of Apprenticeship 
Training, Employer and Labor Services or a State 
Apprenticeship Agency (where appropriate) to be eligible for 
probationary employment as an apprentice. 

The allowable ratio of apprentices to journeymen on the job 
site in any craft classification shall not be greater than the ratio 
permitted to the contractor as to the entire work force under 
the registered program. Any worker listed on a payroll at an 
apprentice wage rate, who is not registered or otherwise 
employed as stated above, shall be paid not less than the 
applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the 
classification of work actually performed. In addition, any 
apprentice performing work on the job site in excess of the 
ratio permitted under the registered program shall be paid not 
less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination 
for the work actually performed. Where a contractor is 
performing construction on a project in a locality other than 
that in which its program is registered, the ratios and wage 
rates (expressed in percentages of the journeyman's hourly 
rate) specified in the contractor's or subcontractor's registered 
program shall be observed . 

Every apprentice must be paid at not less than the rate 
specified in the registered program for the apprentice's level of 
progress, expressed as a percentage of the journeymen hourly 

6 

rate specified in the applicable wage determination. 
Apprentices shall be paid fringe benefits in accordance with 
the provisions of the apprenticeship program. If the 
apprenticeship program does not specify fringe benefits, 
apprentices must be paid the full amount of fringe benefits 
listed on the wage determination for the applicable 
class ification. If the Administrator determines that a different 
practice prevails for the applicable apprentice classification, 
fringes shall be paid in accordance with that determination. 

In the event the Office of Apprenticeship Training, Employer 
and Labor Services, or a State Apprenticeship Agency 
recognized by the Office, withdraws approval of an 
apprenticeship program, the contractor will no longer be 
permitted to utilize apprentices at less than the applicable 
predetermined rate for the work performed until an acceptable 
program is approved. 

b. Trainees (programs of the USDOL). 

Except as provided in 29 CFR 5.16, trainees will not be 
permitted to work at less than the predetermined rate for the 
work performed unless they are employed pursuant to and 
individually registered in a program which has received prior 
approval , evidenced by formal certification by the U.S. 
Department of Labor, Employment and Training 
Administration. 

The ratio of trainees to journeymen on the job site shall not be 
greater than permitted under the plan approved by the 
Employment and Training Administration. 

Every trainee must be paid at not less than the rate specified 
in the approved program for the trainee's level of progress, 
expressed as a percentage of the journeyman hourly rate 
specified in the applicable wage determination. Trainees shall 
be paid fringe benefits in accordance with the provisions of the 
trainee program. If the trainee program does not mention 
fringe benefits, trainees shall be paid the full amount of fringe 
benefits listed on the wage determination unless the 
Administrator of the Wage and Hour Division determines that 
there is an apprenticeship program associated with the 
corresponding journeyman wage rate on the wage 
determination which provides for less than full fringe benefits 
for apprentices. Any employee listed on the payroll at a trainee 
rate who is not registered and participating in a training plan 
approved by the Employment and Training Administration shall 
be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage 
determination for the classification of work actually performed. 
In addition, any trainee performing work on the job site in 
excess of the ratio permitted under the reg istered program 
shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the 
wage determination for the work actually performed. 

In the event the Employment and Training Administration 
withdraws approval of a training program, the contractor will no 
longer be permitted to utilize trainees at less than the 
applicable predetermined rate for the work performed until an 
acceptable program is approved. 

c. Equal employment opportunity. The utilization of 
apprentices, trainees and journeymen under this part shall be 
in conformity with the equal employment opportunity 
requirements of Executive Order 11246, as amended, and 29 
CFR part 30. 



d. Apprentices and Trainees (programs of the U.S. DOT). 

Apprentices and trainees working under apprenticeship and 
skill training programs which have been certified by the 
Secretary of Transportation as promoting EEO in connection 
with Federal-aid highway construction programs are not 
subject to the requirements of paragraph 4 of this Section IV. 
The straight time hourly wage rates for apprentices and 
trainees under such programs will be established by the 
particular programs. The ratio of apprentices and trainees to 
journeymen shall not be greater than permitted by the terms of 
the particular program. 

5. Compliance with Copeland Act requirements. The 
contractor shall comply with the requirements of 29 CFR part 
3, which are incorporated by reference in this contract. 

6. Subcontracts. The contractor or subcontractor shall insert 
Form FHWA-1273 in any subcontracts and also require the 
subcontractors to include Form FHWA-1273 in any lower tier 
subcontracts. The prime contractor shall be responsible forthe 
compliance by any subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor 
with all the contract clauses in 29 CFR 5.5. 

7. Contract termination: debarment. A breach of the 
contract clauses in 29 CFR 5.5 may be grounds fortermination 
of the contract, and for debarment as a contractor and a 
subcontractor as provided in 29 CFR 5.12. 

8. Compliance with Davis-Bacon and Related Act 
requirements. All rulings and interpretations of the Davis
Bacon and Related Acts contained in 29 CFR parts 1, 3, and 5 
are herein incorporated by reference in this contract. 

9. Disputes concerning labor standards. Disputes arising 
out of the labor standards provisions of this contract shall not 
be subject to the general disputes clause of this contract. Such 
disputes shall be resolved in accordance with the procedures 
of the Department of Labor set forth in 29 CFR parts 5, 6, and 
7. Disputes within the meaning of this clause include disputes 
between the contractor (or any of its subcontractors) and the 
contracting agency, the U.S. Department of Labor, or the 
employees or their representatives. 

10. Certification of eligibility. 

a. By entering into this contract, the contractor certifies that 
neither it (nor he or she) nor any person or firm who has an 
interest in the contractor's firm is a person or firm ineligible to 
be awarded Government contracts by virtue of section 3(a) of 
the Davis-Bacon Act or 29 CFR5.12(a)(1). 

b. No part of this contract shall be subcontracted to any person 
or firm ineligible for award of a Government contract by virtue 
of section 3(a) of the Davis-Bacon Act or 29 CFR5.12(a)(1). 

c. The penalty for making false statements is prescribed in the 
U.S. Criminal Code, 18 U.S.C. 1001. 

7 

V. CONTRACT WORK HOURS AND SAFETY 
STANDARDS ACT 

The following clauses apply to any Federal-aid construction 
contract in an amount in excess of $100,000 and subject to the 
overtime provisions of the Contract Work Hours and Safety 
Standards Act. These clauses shall be inserted in addition to 
the clauses required by 29 CFR 5.5(a) or 29 CFR 4.6. As 
used in this paragraph, the terms laborers and mechanics 
include watchmen and guards. 

1. Overtime requirements. No contractor or subcontractor 
contracting for any part of the contract work which may require 
or involve the employment of laborers or mechanics shall 
require or permit any such laborer or mechanic in any 
workweek in which he or she is employed on such work to 
work in excess of forty hours in such workweek unless such 
laborer or mechanic receives compensation at a rate not less 
than one and one-half times the basic rate of pay for all hours 
worked in excess of forty hours in such workweek. 

2. Violation; liability for unpaid wages; liquidated 
damages. In the event of any violation of the clause set forth 
in paragraph (1 .) of this section, the contractor and any 
subcontractor responsible therefor shall be liable for the 
unpaid wages. In addition, such contractor and subcontractor 
shall be liable to the United States (in the case of work done 
under contract for the District of Columbia or a territory, to such 
District or to such territory), for liquidated damages. Such 
liquidated damages shall be computed with respect to each 
individual laborer or mechanic, including watchmen and 
guards, employed in violation of the clause set forth in 
paragraph (1.) of this section, in the sum of $1 O for each 
calendar day on which such individual was required or 
permitted to work in excess of the standard workweek of forty 
hours without payment of the overtime wages required by the 
clause set forth in paragraph (1 .) of this section. 

3. Withholding for unpaid wages and liquidated damages. 
The FHWA or the contacting agency shall upon its own action 
or upon written request of an authorized representative of the 
Department of Labor withhold or cause to be withheld, from 
any moneys payable on account of work performed by the 
contractor or subcontractor under any such contract or any 
other Federal contract with the same prime contractor, or any 
other federally-assisted contract subject to the Contract Work 
Hours and Safety Standards Act, which is held by the same 
prime contractor, such sums as may be determined to be 
necessary to satisfy any liabilities of such contractor or 
subcontractor for unpaid wages and liquidated damages as 
provided in the clause set forth in paragraph (2.) of this 
section. 

4. Subcontracts. The contractor or subcontractor shall insert 
in any subcontracts the clauses set forth in paragraph (1.) 
through (4.) of this section and also a clause requiring the 
subcontractors to include these clauses in any lower tier 
subcontracts. The prime contractor shall be responsible for 
compliance by any subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor 
with the clauses set forth in paragraphs (1 .) through (4.) of this 
section. 

1b 



VI. SUBLETIING OR ASSIGNING THE CONTRACT 

This provision is applicable to all Federal-aid construction 
contracts on the National Highway System. 

1. The contractor shall perform with its own organization 
contract work amounting to not less than 30 percent (or a 
greater percentage if specified elsewhere in the contract) of 
the total original contract price, excluding any specialty items 
designated by the contracting agency. Specialty items may be 
performed by subcontract and the amount of any such 
specialty items performed may be deducted from the total 
original contract price before computing the amount of work 
required to be performed by the contractor's own organization 
(23 CFR 635.116). 

a. The term "perform work with its own organization" refers 
to workers employed or leased by the prime contractor, and 
equipment owned or rented by the prime contractor, with or 
without operators. Such term does not include employees or 
equipment of a subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor, 
agents of the prime contractor, or any other assignees. The 
term may include payments for the costs of hiring leased 
employees from an employee leasing firm meeting all relevant 
Federal and State regulatory requirements. Leased 
employees may only be included in this term if the prime 
contractor meets all of the following conditions: 

(1) the prime contractor maintains control overthe 
supervision of the day-to-day activities of the leased 
employees; 

(2) the prime contractor remains responsible for the quality 
of the work of the leased employees ; 

(3) the prime contractor retains all power to accept or 
exclude individual employees from work on the project; and 

(4) the prime contractor remains ultimately responsible for 
the payment of predetermined minimum wages, the 
submission of payrolls, statements of compliance and all 
other Federal regulatory requirements. 

b. "Specialty Items" shall be construed to be limited to work 
that requires highly specialized knowledge, abilities, or 
equipment not ordinarily available in the type of contracting 
organizations qualified and expected to bid or propose on the 
contract as a whole and in general are to be limited to minor 
components of the overall contract. 

2. The contract amount upon which the requirements set forth 
in paragraph (1) of Section VI is computed includes the cost of 
material and manufactured products which are to be 
purchased or produced by the contractor under the contract 
provisions . 

3. The contractor shall furnish (a) a competent superintendent 
or supervisor who is employed by the firm, has full authority to 
direct performance of the work in accordance with the contract 
requirements, and is in charge of all construction operations 
(regardless of who performs the work) and (b) such other of its 
own organizational resources (supervision, management, and 
engineering services) as the contracting officer determines is 
necessary to assure the performance of the contract. 

4. No portion of the contract shall be sublet, assigned or 
otherwise disposed of except with the written consent of the 
contracting officer, or authorized representative, and such 
consent when given shall not be construed to relieve the 
contractor of any responsibility for the fulfillment of the 
contract. Written consent will be given only after the 
contracting agency has assured that each subcontract is 

8 

evidenced in writing and that it contains all pertinent provisions 
and requirements of the prime contract. 

5. The 30% self-performance requirement of paragraph (1) is 
not applicable to design-build contracts; however, contracting 
agencies may establish their own self-performance 
requirements. 

VII. SAFETY: ACCIDENT PREVENTION 

T h i s p r o v i s i o n i s applicable to all Federal-aid 
construction contracts and to all related subcontracts. 

1. In the performance of this contract the contractor shall 
comply with all applicable Federal, State, and local laws 
governing safety, health, and sanitation (23 CFR 635). The 
contractor shall provide all safeguards, safety devices and 
protective equipment and take any other needed actions as it 
determines, or as the contracting officer may determine, tobe 
reasonably necessary to protect the life and health of 
employees on the job and the safety of the public and to 
protect property in connection with the performance of the 
work covered by the contract. 

2. It is a condition of this contract, and shall be made a 
condition of each subcontract, which the contractor enters into 
pursuant to this contract, that the contractor and any 
subcontractor shall not permit any employee, in performance 
of the contract, to work in surroundings or under conditions 
which are unsanitary, hazardous or dangerous to his/her 
health or safety, as determined under construction safety and 
health standards (29 CFR 1926) promulgated by the Secretary 
of Labor, in accordance with Section 107 of the Contract Work 
Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C. 3704). 

3. Pursuant to 29 CFR 1926.3, it is a condition of this contract 
that the Secretary of Labor or authorized representative 
thereof, shall have right of entry to any site of contract 
performance to inspect or investigate the matter of compliance 
with the construction safety and health standards and to carry 
out the duties of the Secretary under Section 107 of the 
Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 
U.S.C.3704). 

VIII. FALSE STATEMENTS CONCERNING HIGHWAY 
PROJECTS 

T h i s p r o v i s i o n i s applicable to all Federal-aid 
construction contracts and to all related subcontracts. 

In order to assure high quality and durable construction in 
conformity with approved plans and specifications and a high 
degree of reliability on statements and representations made 
by engineers, contractors, suppliers, and workers on Federal
aid highway projects , it is essential that all persons concerned 
with the project perform their functions as carefully, thoroughly, 
and honestly as possible. Willful falsification, distortion, or 
misrepresentation with respect to any facts related to the 
project is a violation of Federal law. To prevent any 
misunderstanding regarding the seriousness of these and 
similar acts, Form FHWA-1022 shall be posted on each 
Federal-aid highway project (23 CFR 635) in one or more 
places where it is readily available to all persons concerned 
with the project: 

18 U.S.C. 1020 reads as follows: 



"Whoever, being an officer, agent, or employee of the United 
States, or of any State or Territory, or whoever, whether a 
person, association, firm, or corporation, knowingly makes any 
false statement, false representation, or false report as to the 
character, quality, quantity, or cost of the material used or to 
be used, or the quantity or quality of the work performed or to 
be performed, or the cost thereof in connection with the 
submission of plans, maps, specifications. contracts , or costs 
of construction on any highway or related project submitted for 
approval to the Secretary of Transportation; or 

Whoever knowingly makes any false statement, false 
representation, false report or false claim with respect to the 
character, quality, quantity, or cost of any work performed or to 
be performed, or materials furnished or to be furnished, in 
connection with the construction of any highway or related 
project approved by the Secretary of Transportation; or 

Whoever knowingly makes any false statement or false 
representation as to material fact in any statement, certificate, 
or report submitted pursuant to provisions of the Federal-aid 
Roads Act approved July 1, 1916, (39 Stat. 355), as amended 
and supplemented; 

Shall be fined under this title or imprisoned not more than 5 
years or both." 

IX. IMPLEMENTATION OF CLEAN AIR ACT AND FEDERAL 
WATER POLLUTION CONTROL ACT 

This provision is applicable to all Federal-aid construction 
contracts and to all related subcontracts. 

By submission of this bid/proposal or the execution of this 
contract, or subcontract, as appropriate, the bidder, proposer, 
Federal-aid construction contractor, or subcontractor, as 
appropriate, will be deemed to have stipulated as follows: 

1. That any person who is or will be utilized in the 
performance of this contract is not prohibited from receiving an 
award due to a violation of Section 508 of the Clean Water Act 
or Section 306 of the Clean Air Act. 

2. That the contractor agrees to include or cause to be 
included the requirements of paragraph (1) of this Section Xin 
every subcontract, and further agrees to take such action as 
the contracting agency may direct as a means of enforcing 
such requirements. 

X. CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, 
SUSPENSION, INELIGIBILITY AND VOLUNTARY 
EXCLUSION 

This provision is applicable to all Federal-aid construction 
contracts, design-build contracts, subcontracts, lower-tier 
subcontracts , purchase orders, lease agreements, consultant 
contracts or any other covered transaction requiring FHWA 
approval or that is estimated to cost $25,000 or more - as 
defined in 2 CFR Parts 180 and 1200. 

1. Instructions for Certification - First Tier Participants: 

a. By signing and submitting this proposal, the prospective 
first tier participant is providing the certification set out below. 

b. The inability of a person to provide the certification set out 
below will not necessarily result in denial of participation in this 

9 

covered transaction. The prospective first tier participant shall 
submit an explanation of why it cannot provide the certification 
set out below. The certification or explanation will be 
considered in connection with the department or agency's 
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, 
failure of the prospective first tier participant to furnish a 
certification or an explanation shall disqualify such a person 
from participation in this transaction. 

c. The certification in this clause is a material representation 
of fact upon which reliance was placed when the contracting 
agency determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later 
determined that the prospective participant knowingly rendered 
an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies 
available to the Federal Government, the contracting agency 
may terminate this transaction for cause of default. 

d. The prospective first tier participant shall provide 
immediate written notice to the contracting agency to whom 
this proposal is submitted if any time the prospective first tier 
participant learns that its certification was erroneous when 
submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed 
circumstances. 

e. The terms "covered transaction," "debarred," 
"suspended," "ineligible," "participant," "person," "principal," 
and "voluntarily excluded," as used in this clause, are defined 
in 2 CFR Parts 180 and 1200. "First Tier Covered 
Transactions" refers to any covered transaction between a 
grantee or subgrantee of Federal funds and a participant (such 
as the prime or general contract). "Lower Tier Covered 
Transactions" refers to any covered transaction under a First 
Tier Covered Transaction (such as subcontracts). "First Tier 
Participant" refers to the participant who has entered into a 
covered transaction with a grantee or subgrantee of Federal 
funds (such as the prime or general contractor) . "Lower Tier 
Participant" refers any participant who has entered into a 
covered transaction with a First Tier Participant or other Lower 
Tier Participants (such as subcontractors and suppliers). 

f. The prospective first tier participant agrees by submitting 
this proposal that, should the proposed covered transaction be 
entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier 
covered transaction with a person who is debarred, 
suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from 
participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by 
the department or agency entering into this transaction. 

g. The prospective first tier participant further agrees by 
submitting this proposal that it will include the clause titled 
"Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility 
and Voluntary Exclusion-Lower Tier Covered Transactions," 
provided by the department or contracting agency, entering 
into this covered transaction, without modification, in all lower 
tier covered transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier 
covered transactions exceeding the $25,000 threshold. 

h. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a 
certification of a prospective participant in a lower tier covered 
transaction that is not debarred, suspended , ineligible, or 
voluntarily excluded from the covered transaction, unless it 
knows that the certification is erroneous . A participant is 
responsible for ensuring that its principals are not suspended, 
debarred, or otherwise ineligible to participate in covered 
transactions. To verify the eligibility of its principals, as well as 
the el igibility of any lower tier prospective participants, each 
participant may, but is not required to, check the Excluded 
Parties List System website (hllps://www.epls.gov/), which is 
compiled by the General Services Administration. 

11o 



i. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to 
require the establishment of a system of records in order to 
render in good faith the certification required by this clause. 
The knowledge and information of the prospective participant 
is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by 
a prudent person in the ordinary course of business dealings. 

j. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph (f) of 
these instructions, if a participant in a covered transaction 
knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a 
person who is suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily 
excluded from participation in this transaction, in addition to 
other remedies available to the Federal Government, the 
department or agency may terminate this transaction forcause 
or default. 

2. Certification Regarding Debannent, Suspension, 
Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion - First Tier 
Participants: 

a. The prospective first tier participant certifies to the best of 
its knowledge and belief, that it and its principals : 

(1) Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for 
debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from 
participating in covered transactions by any Federal 
department or agency; 

(2) Have not within a three-year period preceding this 
proposal been convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered 
against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in 
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing 
a public (Federal, State or local) transaction or contract under 
a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust 
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, 
bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making false 
statements, or receiving stolen property; 

(3) Are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or 
civilly charged by a governmental entity (Federal, State or 
local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in 
paragraph (a)(2) of this certification; and 

(4) Have not within a three-year period preceding this 
application/proposal had one or more public transactions 
(Federal, State or local) terminated for cause ordefault. 

b. Where the prospective participant is unable to certify to 
any of the statements in this certification, such prospective 
participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal. 

2. Instructions for Certification - Lower Tier Participants: 

(Applicable to all subcontracts, purchase orders and other 
lower tier transactions requiring prior FHWA approval or 
estimated to cost $25,000 or more - 2 CFR Parts 180 and 
1200) 

a. By signing and submitting this proposal, the prospective 
lower tier is providing the certification set out below. 

b. The certification in this clause is a material representation 
of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction 
was entered into. If it is later determined that the prospective 
lower tier participant knowingly rendered an erroneous 
certification, in addition to other remedies available to the 
Federal Government, the department, or agency with which 

10 

this transaction originated may pursue available remedies, 
including suspension and/or debarment. 

c. The prospective lower tier participant shall provide 
immediate written notice to the person to which this proposal is 
submitted if at any time the prospective lower tier participant 
learns that its certification was erroneous by reason of 
changed circumstances. 

d. The terms "covered transaction," "debarred," 
"suspended," "ineligible," "participant," "person," "principal," 
and "voluntarily excluded," as used in this clause, are defined 
in 2 CFR Parts 180 and 1200. You may contact the person to 
which this proposal is submitted for assistance in obtaining a 
copy of those regulations . "First Tier Covered Transactions" 
refers to any covered transaction between a grantee or 
subgrantee of Federal funds and a participant (such as the 
prime or general contract). "Lower Tier Covered Transactions" 
refers to any covered transaction under a First Tier Covered 
Transaction (such as subcontracts). "First Tier Participant" 
refers to the participant who has entered into a covered 
transaction with a grantee or subgrantee of Federal funds 
(such as the prime or general contractor) . "Lower Tier 
Participant" refers any participant who has entered into a 
covered transaction with a First Tier Participant or other Lower 
Tier Participants (such as subcontractors and suppliers). 

e. The prospective lower tier participant agrees by 
submitting this proposal that, should the proposed covered 
transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into 
any lower tier covered transaction with a person who is 
debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily 
excluded from participation in this covered transaction, unless 
authorized by the department or agency with which this 
transaction originated. 

f. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by 
submitting this proposal that it will include this clause titled 
"Certification Regarding Debarment. Suspension, Ineligibility 
and Voluntary Exclusion-Lower Tier Covered Transaction," 
without modification, in all lower tier covered transactions and 
in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions exceeding 
the $25,000 threshold. 

g. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a 
certification of a prospective participant in a lower tier covered 
transaction that is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or 
voluntarily excluded from the covered transaction, unless it 
knows that the certification is erroneous . A participant is 
responsible for ensuring that its principals are not suspended, 
debarred, or otherwise ineligible to participate in covered 
transactions. To verify the eligibility of its principals, as well as 
the eligibility of any lower tier prospective participants, each 
participant may, but is not required to, check the Excluded 
Parties List System website (hllps://www.epls .gov/), which is 
compiled by the General Services Administration. 

h. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to 
require establishment of a system of records in order to render 
in good faith the certification required by this clause. The 
knowledge and information of participant is not required to 
exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent person 
in the ordinary course of business dealings. 

i. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph e of 
these instructions, if a participant in a covered transaction 
knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a 
person who is suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily 
excluded from participation in this transaction, in addition to 
other remedies available to the Federal Government, the 

1b 



department or agency with which this transaction originated 
may pursue available remedies, including suspension and/or 
debarment. 

Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, 
Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion--Lower Tier 
Participants: 

1. The prospective lower tier participant certifies, by 
submission of this proposal, that neither it nor its principals is 
presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, 
declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participating in 
covered transactions by any Federal department or agency. 

2. Where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to 
certify to any of the statements in this certification, such 
prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this 
proposal. 

XI. CERTIFICATION REGARDING USE OF CONTRACT 
FUNDS FOR LOBBYING 

This provision is applicable to all Federal-aid construction 
contracts and to all related subcontracts which exceed 
$100,000 (49 CFR 20). 

1. The prospective participant certifies, by signing and 
submitting this bid or proposal, to the best of his or her 
knowledge and belief, that: 

a. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be 
paid, by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any person for 
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of 
any Federal agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or 
employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of 
Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal 
contract, the making of any Federal grant, the making of any 
Federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, 
and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or 
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or 
cooperative agreement. 

b. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have 
been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing or 
attempting to influence an officer or employee of any Federal 
agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of 
Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in 
connection with this Federal contract, grant, loan, or 
cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall complete and 
submit Standard Form-LLL, "Disclosure Form to Report 
Lobbying," in accordance with its instructions. 

2. This certification is a material representation of fact upon 
which reliance was placed when this transaction was made or 
entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite 
for making or entering into this transaction imposed by 31 
U.S.C. 1352. Any person who fails to file the required 
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than 
$10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such failure . 

3. The prospective participant also agrees by submitting its 
bid or proposal that the participant shall require that the 
language of this certification be included in all lower tier 
subcontracts, which exceed $100,000 and that all such 
recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly. 

11 



ATIACHMENT A - EMPLOYMENT AND MATERIALS 
PREFERENCE FOR APPALACHIAN DEVELOPMENT 
HIGHWAY SYSTEM OR APPALACHIAN LOCAL ACCESS 
ROAD CONTRACTS 
This provision is applicable to all Federal-aid projects funded 
under the Appalachian Regional Development Act of 1965. 

1. During the performance of this contract, the contractor 
undertaking to do work which is, or reasonably may be, done 
as on-site work, shall give preference to qualified persons who 
regularly reside in the labor area as designated by the DOL 
wherein the contract work is situated, or the subregion, or the 
Appalachian counties of the State wherein the contract work is 
situated, except: 

a. To the extent that qualified persons regularly residing in 
the area are not available. 

b. For the reasonable needs of the contractor to employ 
supervisory or specially experienced personnel necessary to 
assure an efficient execution of the contract work. 

c. For the obligation of the contractor to offer employment to 
present or former employees as the result of a lawful collective 
bargaining contract, provided that the number of nonresident 
persons employed under this subparagraph (1 c) shall not 
exceed 20 percent of the total number of employees employed 
by the contractor on the contract work, except as provided in 
subparagraph (4) below. 

2. The contractor shall place a job order with the State 
Employment Service indicating (a) the classifications of the 
laborers, mechanics and other employees required to perform 
the contract work, (b) the number of employees required in 
each classification, (c) the date on which the participant 
estimates such employees will be required, and (d) any other 
pertinent information required by the State Employment 
Service to complete the job order form. The job order may be 
placed with the State Employment Service in writing or by 
telephone. If during the course of the contract work, the 
information submitted by the contractor in the original job order 
is substantially modified, the participant shall promptly notify 
the State Employment Service. 

3. The contractor shall give full consideration to all qualified 
job applicants referred to him by the State Employment 
Service. The contractor is not required to grant employment to 
any job applicants who, in his opinion, are not qualified to 
perform the classification of work required. 

4. If, within one week following the placing of a job order by 
the contractor with the State Employment Service, the State 
Employment Service is unable to refer any qualified job 
applicants to the contractor, or less than the number 
requested, the State Employment Service will forward a 
certificate to the contractor indicating the unavailability of 
applicants . Such certificate shall be made a part of the 
contractor's permanent project records. Upon receipt of this 
certificate, the contractor may employ persons who do not 
normally reside in the labor area to fill positions covered by the 
certificate, notwithstanding the provisions of subparagraph (1 c) 
above. 

5. The provisions of 23 CFR 633.207(e) allow the 
contracting agency to provide a contractual preference for the 
use of mineral resource materials native to the Appalachian 
region. 

12 

6. The contractor shall include the provisions of Sections 1 
through 4 of this Attachment A in every subcontract for work 
which is, or reasonably may be, done as on-site work. 

11P 



405 Jefferson Street, Washington, MO 63090 

April 27, 2022 

Honorable Mayor and City Council 
405 Jefferson Street 
Washington, MO 63090 

RE: Front Street ADA Improvements Project, STP-4940(607) 

Dear Mayor and City Council Members: 

636-390-1010 www.washmo.gov 

Find enclosed a programming agreement between the City and MoDOT for this project. The 
improvements between Stafford Street and Jefferson Street would consist of: 

• 2" asphalt overlay 

• Sidewalk, curb and gutter and access ramp replacement including ADA 
accessibility upgrades 

• Remove and replace storm sewer inlets 

• Improve street crossings with street pavers 

The cost estimate for construction is $887,000. The total project costs including design, right of 
way acquisition, construction oversight and construction are $1,057,000. The federal 
participation for the entire project will be $845,600 and the City's share will be $211,400. The 
current schedule is for construction in 2025. This ordinance is contingent upon MoDOT 
approval which is anticipated subsequent to City approval. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

A~e,o.,F.L~ 

Andrea F. Lueken, P.E. 
Assistant City Engineer 



BILL NO. _ ______ _ INTRODUCED BY _______ _ 

ORDINANCE NO. ----- ------
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE 2022 BUDGET OF THE 
CITY OF WASHINGTON, MISSOURI 

Be It Ordained by the Council of the City of Washington, Missouri, as 

follows: 

SECTION 1: All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith 

are hereby repealed. 

SECTION 2: This ordinance shall amend the 2022 Budget as follows: 

Transportation Sales Tax Fund 261 - Increase of $90,000.00 for Jefferson Street 

Project Engineering Services (261-18-000-541101 Street Improvements). 

SECTION 3: This ordinance shall take effect and be in full force from 

and after its passage and approval. 

Passed: _________ _ 

ATTEST: ----------
President of City Council 

Approved: ________ _ 

ATTEST: ----------
Mayor of Washington, Missouri 

1c. 



405 Jefferson Street, Washington, MO 63090 

April 27, 2022 

Honorable Mayor and City Council 
City of Washington 
Washington, MO 63090 

636-390-1010 www.washmo.gov 

RE: Jefferson Street - Roadway and ADA Compliance Project 
Federal Project# STP-6406(607) 

Dear Mayor and City Council Members: 

Find enclosed for your consideration an ordinance amending the 2022 budget for the above 
referenced project. The amendment is required because funds were not carried over from the 
previous fiscal year. The expected final design costs for this project are $229,943.28. 

A budget amendment of $90,000.00 is included and approval of this ordinance is 
recommended. 

Sincerely, 

A~e,o.,, F. L~ 

Andrea F. Lueken, P.E. 
Assistant City Engineer 

1c. 



BILL NO. _ ______ _ INTRODUCED BY - --------

ORDINANCE NO. -----------

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING AND DIRECTING THE CITY OF 
WASHINGTON, MISSOURI TO ACCEPT THE BID FROM NOC 
TECHNOLOGY FOR THE PURCHASE OF 48 NEW DELL 
OPTIPLEX DESKTOP COMPUTERS, COMPUTER MONITORS 
AND STANDS INCLUDING SETUP AND INST ALLA TI ON 

Be It Ordained by the Council of the City of Washington, Missouri, as follows: 

SECTION 1: The Mayor is hereby authorized and directed to accept the bid from 

NOC Technology for the purchase of 48 New Dell Optiplex Desktop Computers, Computer 

Monitors and Stands including Setup and Installation. A copy of said bid is marked Exhibit 

A and is attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference as if fully set forth. 

SECTION 2: All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby 

repealed. 

SECTION 3: This ordinance shall take effect and be in full force from and after its 

passage and approval. 

Passed: ----------

ATTEST: - ---- ----
President of City Council 

Approved: _ _______ _ 

ATTEST: ---------
Mayor of Washington, Missouri 



Exhibit A 

N@C 
TECHNO LOGY 

CofW - 48 Workstations 
and Dispatch Monitors 
Prepared for City of Washington 
By Jon Lober I J.onl@noctcchs.com 
Valid l1111'11 Friday, May 6, 2022 



Product 

E·~ OptlPlex 3080 Micro Desktop 
-10th Generation Intel core 15-10500 
• 8GB (1><8GB) DDR4 
-Win 1 o Pro 64 English 
-256GB Solid State Drive 
-3 Year Next Business Day Dell Pro Support 
-Professional Setup lnclud<:"d 

...... OptiPlex 3080 SFF Desktop 
-10th Generation lritel Core 15-10500 
- 8GB (1x8G9) DDR4 
-DVD Drive 
-Win 10 Pro 64 English 
-256GB Solid State Drive 
-::I Year Next Business Day Dell Pro Sllpport 
-Professional Setup Included ... Samsung SBOA Computer Monitor, 27 Inch 41( Monitor, Vert.lciil Monitor, USB c Monitor, 
1IDR10 (1 Billion Colors), Built-in Speakers 
-Professional Setup Included 

vh-o VIVO Dual Monitor Desk Stand Free-standing LCD mount, Vertical Po.sit.Ion 2 Screens up to 
30" 
-Professionai Setup Included 

Sub101al 

Tax 

Qu111ntlty 

28 

20 

6 

3 

S42,6811.72 

so.oo 

$0.00 

Total $42,684.72 

$42,684.72 

Price subtotal 

$816.111 $22,853.04 

$843.30 $16,866.00 

$454.29 $2,725.74 

$79,98 $239.94 



Men,o 
To: 

From: 

Date: 

Re: 

Mayor and City Council 

Mary Sprung 

May 2, 2022 

Computer Replacement Bids 

City of Washington, MO 

In order to maintain the current level of operational output and to keep up with the City's 5-year 
computer replacement plan, I went out for bid for 48 new computers and 6 new computer 
monitors and stands. These will provide computers for police, dispatch and Finance department 
who did not receive new computers when all other departments in City Hall were updated in the 
prior year round of replacements. 

Included in the 2022 budget, is $50,000 to cover the cost of computers needed in the year. At 
this time, I solicited bids from 3 vendors, but only received one bid back. Therefore, I did online 
price comparison to obtain 2 additional bids from Wal-Mart and Amazon. 

NOC Technology bid came in at $42,684.72 which included a 3-year warranty and installation of 
the equipment. After adding in the 3-year warranty option, the online price comparison were all 
very close or under NOC's computer bids. With factoring in $50 per computer for installation, 
NOC's bid cost per computer was lower than both Wal-mart and Amazon . 

My recommendation is to purchase the machines from NOC Technology as they were the 
lowest and best bid obtained. Total cost for new computers, monitors and installation is 
$42,684.72. 

After these computers are installed and some newer computers that we have recycled from 
other departments are moved out to various Fire department locations, this will complete the 
replacement of desktop computers. Any balance remaining in July will be reevaluated and will 
be used to begin replacing next year's computer replacements which will be mainly laptop 
computers. 

As always, I am happy to answer any questions. 



BILL NO. --------- INTRODUCED BY _______ _ 

ORDINANCE NO. ___ ______ _ 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE 2021-2022 BUDGET OF 
THE CITY OF WASHING TON, MISSOURI AND 
AUTHORIZING PAYMENT TO THE WASHINGTON 
COMMUNITY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT FOR 
ENTERING INTO AN AGREEMENT WITH ESCI FOR A LONG 
RANGE MASTER PLAN FOR THE WASHINGTON FIRE 
DEPARTMENT SERVING THE CITY AND DISTRICT 

Be It Ordained by the Council of the City of Washington, Missouri, as follows: 

SECTION 1: The ordinance shall amend the 2021/2022 Budget and authorizing 

payment to the Washington Community Fire Protection District for entering into an 

Agreement with ESCI for a Long Range Plan for the Washington Fire Department 

serving the City and District in the amount of $20,000 specifically to the following line 

item: Increase: 004-24-000-520400 Contracted Services from the Reserve Fund 004-

341000. 

SECTION 2: All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are 

hereby repealed. 

SECTION 3: This ordinance shall take effect and be in full force from and after 

it's passage and approval. 

Passed: ----- --- --

ATTEST: ---------
President of City Council 

Approved: ________ _ 

ATTEST: ---------
Mayor of Washington, Missouri 



Washington Fire Department 
200 E. Fou rteenth Street, Washington, MO 63090 

April 27, 2022 

Honorable Mayor and Darren Lamb 
405 Jefferson Street 
Washington, MO 63090 

RE: Emergency Service Consulting International (ESCI) 

Dear Honorable Mayor and Mr. Lamb: 

Phone 636-390-1020 www.washmo.gov 

/Jrt!/i:s~umal 1 ·0111111eer Sen·ice Since /851 

In 2018 ESCI completed a fire station location study and ISO consulting services during the most 
recent ISO grading. This study was limited to reviewing the operation and station location inside the 
city limits at that time. 

In reviewing the fire department operation, it has become obvious that the department needs a long 
range plan. The reorganization has led to an internal committee reviewing direction, however, it has 
become apparent there is outside help needed. In addition, the Washington Community Fire 
Protection District understands there are more demands from their taxpayers as well and they have no 
plan presently. 

The fire protection district approved $30,000 to conduct a fire station study and long range plan. In 
discussion with ESCI, they have a package and experience that will review the entire operation of the 
fire department including deployment, station locations, long range planning, manpower, financial 
capabilities and overall operation. 

Attached, you will find an ordinance to amend the fire department budget for up to $20,000 
contributing to the fire district in order to enter into a contract with ESCI for a long range master 
plan. The fire district would enter into the contract and the City cover the cost above $30,000, not to 
exceed a City contribution of $20,000. As the City and fire district are partners in fire protection for 
the entire 65 square miles, the plan needs to include a view of how to move forward with 
consideration of how annexation will affect each organization. 

The rapid growth of the City and changes have outpaced the last study. Our goal is to update the City 
report as well as take a comprehensive look into all fire protection the fire department provides with a 
solid plan into the future. 

If you have any questions, please let me know. 

Yours in service 

~~ 
Tim Frankenberg, CFPS, CT, CSP 
Fire Chief 



LONG RANGE MASTER PLAN 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION AND SCOPE OF WORK 

ESa Emergency Services 
Consulting International 

Providing Expertise and Guidance that Enhances Community Safety 

25030 SW Parkway Avenue, Suite 330 

Wilsonville, OR 97070 



ESa Emergency Services 
Consulting International 

Providing Expertise and Guidance that Enhances Community Safety 

Long-Range Master Plan 

The old adage is: "If you fail to plan, plan to fail". 

The Long-Range Master Plan provides the agency with a detailed, high altitude, understanding of future 

needs and includes a host of findings and recommendations for moving forward. As such, it is designed to 

assist communities with quantifying current service delivery, evaluating service delivery and response 

performance, identifying forecast growth and emergent conditions, and developing strategies to meet 

anticipated needs and resultant future service demand. 

In brief, the Master Planning Process is designed to answer three questions: 

1. Where is our organization today? This is achieved via a detailed evaluation of the fire 

department as it is currently configured. 

2. Where will we need to be in the future? This is based on ESCl's analysis of past and future 

population growth and forecast future service demand. 

3. How will we get there? Providing short and long-range future strategies, 

designed to address long term, future needs. 

The project consists of three components, beginning with an Evaluation of Current Conditions. In this step, 

ESCI reviews existing programs, practices, and financial conditions, and provides a detailed analysis of 

current service delivery and response performance. These observations and findings are compared with 

industry standards and best practices, accompanied by recommendations for improvement where 

needed. This report component addresses the question of "Where is our organization today?" 

The next step is the development of Future Service Demand Forecasts. ESCI uses a combination of 

historical population data, census information, comprehensive plans, and past incident history to project 

anticipated future workload and address the question of "Where will we need to be in the future?" 

Finally, the report uses the information gathered to by identifying and evaluating Future Strategies with 

which to meet long range needs. The approaches may include modification of existing programs, addition 

or relocation of facilities, changes in personnel deployment, or other strategies as needed to answer the 

question of "How will we get there?" 

Frequently, communities will follow the Long-Range Master Plan with a Strategic Plan developed as a 

means by which to identify, prioritize, and plan the implementation of the findings and recommendations 

from the Long Range Master Plan. The Long-Range Master Plan Scope of Work is follows: 



f I~ , le I f 111 •r, •11 , •1v1 M,1 l •1 'I • 

Scope of Work I Emergency Services Master Plan 

Phase I: Project Initiation 

Task 1-A: Project Initiation & Development of Work Plan 

ESCI will develop a project work plan based on the scope of work and converse with the community's 

project team to gain a comprehensive understanding of the organization's background, goals, and 

expectations for the project. This work plan will be developed identifying: 

• Primary tasks to be performed 

• Person(s) responsible for each task 

• Timetable for each task to be completed 

• Method of evaluating results 

• Resources to be utilized 

• Possible obstacles or problem areas associated with the accomplishment of each task 

This process will also help to establish working relationships, make logistical arrangements, determine an 

appropriate line of communications, and finalize contractual arrangements. 

Task 1-8: Acquisition & Review of Background Information 

ESCI will request pertinent information and data from the organization's assigned project manager. This data 

will be used extensively in the analysis and development of the master plan document. The documents and 

information relevant to this type of project will include, but not be limited to, the following: 

• Past or current department studies or research 

• Community Comprehensive Plan documents, including current and future land use information 

• Local census and demographics data 

• Zoning maps and zoning code 

• Financial data, including debt information, long-range financial plans and projections 

• Department administrative policies and procedures 

• Standard Operating Guidelines (SOGs) and service delivery practices 

• Current service delivery objectives and targets 

• Facilities and apparatus inventories 

• Local collective bargaining agreement(s), if applicable 

• Automatic and mutual aid agreements 

• Computer-Aided Dispatch (CAD) incident records 

• Records management data, including National Fire Incident Reporting System (NFIRS) incident data 

• Local Geographic Information Systems (GIS) data, where available 

ESa ~~:;~~r"c:1:e~~~rona1 - 2 ,, . ._ . .,,.,,,.. .... ,..,. ... ..,., ....... 

11 



Task 1-C: Stakeholder Input 

The ESCI project team will conduct interviews with and gather information from key personnel including: 

• Elected or appointed officials 

• Fire department managers and other key staff 

• Finance function manager 

• Community planning staff 

• Human resource function coordinator 

• External fire and EMS agencies within the region 

• Medical facilities, medical director for regional or community EMS, if necessary 

• Employee and volunteer groups 

• Others as they may contribute to this project 

The project team will interview key stakeholders of any organization associated with this study. At a 

minimum, members of the project team will interview appropriate community officials, fire department 

officials, volunteer association leaders, labor organization representatives, and others that the project 

team deems necessary. 

From these interviews, ESCI will obtain additional perspective on operational, economic, and policy issues 

facing the agency. In addition, the project team will learn more about the availability of data necessary to 

meet projected goals. 

Phase II: Evaluation of Current Conditions 
The initial phases of the study focus on a baseline assessment of the current conditions and current service 

performance. ESCI will conduct an organizational analysis of the department based on the elements 

included in the following tasks. The purpose of this evaluation is to assess the agency's operations in 

comparison to industry standards and best practices, as well as to create a benchmark against which the 

options for future service delivery can be measured. 

Task 2-A: Organization Overview 

An overview of the organization will be developed discussing: 

• Service area population and demographics 

• History, formation, and general description ofthe agency 

• Description of the current service delivery infrastructure 

• Governance and lines of authority 

• Foundational policy documents 

• Organizational design 

• Operating budget, funding, fees, taxation, and financial resources 

I I 3 

11 



Task 2-B: Management Components 

The organization's basic management processes will be reviewed, including: 

• Mission, vision, strategic planning, goals, and objectives 

• Internal assessment of critical issues 

• Internal assessment of future challenges 

• Internal and external communications processes 

• Document control and security 

• Reporting and recordkeeping 

• Information technology systems 

Task 2-C: Capital Assets and Capital Improvement Programs 

ESCI will review the status of current major capital assets (facilities and apparatus) and analyze needs 

relative to the existing condition of capital assets and their viability for continued use in future service 

delivery, including: 

Facilities - Tour and make observations in areas related to station efficiency and functionality. Items to 

be contained in the report include: 

• Design • Code compliance 

• Construction • Staff facilities 

• Safety • Efficiency 

• Environmental issues • Future viability 

Apparatus/Vehicles - Review and make recommendations regarding inventory of apparatus and 

equipment. Items to be reviewed include: 

• Regulations compliance • Maintenance 

• Age, condition, and serviceability • Future needs 

• Distribution and deployment 

Task 2-0: Staffing and Personnel Management 

ESCI will review the department's staffing levels. Areas to be considered include: 

• Review and evaluate administration and support staffing levels 

• Review and evaluate operational staffing levels 

• Review staff allocation to various functions and divisions 

• Review staff scheduling methodology 

• Analyze current standards of coverage and staffing performance for incidents 

• Review firefighter/EMS staff distribution 

• Review utilization of career and volunteer companies, if applicable and in accordance with 
methodologies recommended in NFPA 1710 and 1720 

• Review responsibilities and activity levels of personnel 

ESO ~::;~~r"c:1~fe~~~~na1 4 •• ;...,, .......... ,11.....__ .... ,.... ... -~ 



Personnel management systems will also be reviewed, focusing on : 

• Human resources policies and handbooks 

• Quality and status of job descriptions 

• Personnel reports and recordkeeping 

• Compensation systems 

• Disciplinary processes 

• Counseling services 

• Application and recruitment processes 

• Testing, measuring, and promotion processes 

• Health and wellness programs 

Task 2-E: Service Delivery and Performance 

ESCI will review and make observations in areas specifically involved in, or affecting, service levels and 

performance. Areas to be reviewed shall include, but not necessarily be limited to: 

• Service Demand Study-

• Analysis and geographic display of current service demand by incident type and temporal 

variation 

• Resource Distribution Study-

• Overview of the current facility and apparatus deployment strategy, analyzed through 

Geographical Information Systems, with identification of service gaps and redundancies 

• Resource Concentration Study-

• Analysis of response time to achieve full effective response force 

• Analysis of company and staff distribution as related to effective response force assembly 

• Response Reliability Study-

• Analysis of current workload, including unit hour utilization of individual companies (to the 

extent data is complete) 

• Review of actual or estimated failure rates of individual companies (to the extent data is 

complete) 

• Analysis of call concurrency and impact on effective response force assembly 

• Response Performance Summary-

• Analysis of actual system reflex time performance, analyzed by individual companies (to the 

extent data is available) 

• Mutual and Automatic Aid Systems 

5 



Task 2-F: Planning for Fire Protection and Emergency Medical Services 

The planning processes within the agency shall be reviewed. Key components include: 

• Review and evaluate the adequacy of the current planning process 

• Review elements of tactical planning within the organization 

• Review operational planning within the organization 

• Review strategic planning practices 

• Review long range or other planning efforts 

• Make recommendations relative to future planning process needs 

Task 2-G: Support Programs 

ESCI will review and make overall observations involving support programs for the critical areas of training 

and life safety services. Items to be reviewed include: 

Training 

• General training competencies 

• Training administration 

• Training schedules 

• Training facilities 

• Training procedures, manuals, and protocols and record keeping 

Life Safety Services (Fire Prevention) 

• Code enforcement activities 

• New construction inspection and involvement 

• General inspection program 

• Fire and Life-Safety public education programs 

• Fire investigation programs 

• Pre-incident planning 

• Statistical collection and analysis 

Phase Ill: Future System Demand Projections 

The project moves forward with an assessment of the future community conditions, service demand, and 

fire protection risks that the organization can be expected to serve. ESCI will conduct an analysis of 

community growth projections and interpret their impact on emergency service planning and delivery. 

Task 3-A: Population Growth Projections 

An interpretation of available census and community development data will be provided indicating: 

• Population history 

• Census-based population growth projections 

• Community planning-based population growth projections 

ESCJ ~~~:~r"C:,~fe~~~~nar ....... , .. - ... : ·-Iii'· at ............ \'II ' ~ 6 



Task 3-8: Service Demand Projections 

Population growth projections, along with historical and forecast incident rates, will be utilized to develop 

projections for future service demand. 

Task 3-C: Community Risk Analysis 

Land use and zoning classifications will be used, along with specific target hazard information, to analyze 

and classify community fire protection risk by geography. This process will be completed with GIS software 

and will consider: 

• Population and population density 

• Demographics 

• Community land use regulations 

• Occupancy types by land use designation 

• Hazardous substances and processes 

Phase IV: Future Delivery System Models 
The project concludes with strategies intended to place the organization in a position to successfully serve 

its future demand and risk. ESCI will develop and analyze various operational models for providing 

emergency services with the specific intent of identifying options that can deliver the desired levels of 

service identified in the previous task at the most efficient cost. Recommendations will be provided 

identifying the best long-range strategy for service delivery and the impact of initiating such a strategy. In 

addition, short and mid-term strategies will be recommended for service delivery improvement or 

increased efficiency. 

Task 4-A: Review of Response Standards and Targets 

The establishment of fire and EMS response time standards and targets is a process that is undertaken by 

the local jurisdiction, based on their assessment of community risk, citizen expectations, and the agency's 

capabilities. As consultants, ESCl's role is not to set response standards for the community, but rather 

provide assistance with data analysis and comparison to industry standards to assist the agency in 

developing service delivery goals. 

ESCI will identify the current level of emergency services provided by the department and compare the 

department's performance to industry standards and best practices, such as the standards described by 

the Insurance Services Office (ISO), National Fire Protection Association (NFPA), Center for Public Safety 

Excellence (CPSE), and locally adopted performance objectives. A review and discussion of existing 

response performance goals, if in place, will be provided matching the nature and type of risks identified 

in the previous report sections. The performance goals shall be discussed with consideration to: 

• Resource Distribution - Initial attack (first due) resources for risk-specific intervention 

• Resource Concentration - Effective response force assembly (apparatus and personnel), of the 
initial resources necessary to stop the escalation of the emergency for each risk type 

ESQ ~~;:~~~C:1~~;~~~~nal 7 
_, - .. 1 -- .. 

1c. 



Task 4-8: Recommended Long-Term Strategy 

ESCI will develop a recommended long-term option for resource deployment that will improve the 

department's level of service towards the identified performance objectives and targets. This may include, 

but is not necessarily limited to, specific recommendations regarding: 

• Any relocations of existing facilities 

• General locations of future necessary fire stations 

• Selection and deployment of apparatus by type 

• Deployment of operations personnel 

• Future administrative and support personnel 

• Deployment special units or resources 

• Additional infrastructure or facilities for administration and support programs 

ESCI will evaluate and present in graphical and descriptive format for each of the deployment option(s): 

• Degree of benefit to be gained through its implementation 

• Extent to which it achieves established performance targets 

• Potential negative consequences 

Task 4-C: Short and Mid-Term Strategies 

Recommendations for improving service delivery and system efficiency prior to any full implementation 

of the long-term strategy will be provided in areas such as: 

• Agency management and organization 

• Staffing and personnel deployment 

• Service delivery methods 

• Training programs 

• Prevention programs 

• Enhanced cooperative service agreements with other communities or agencies 

• System funding and cost recovery 

• Others as appropriate and necessary 

Task 4-0: Cost Projections 

ESCI will provide general projections of the cost of recommended long-term strategies, specifically 

related to: 

• Facility changes or additions 

• Staff changes or additions 

• Primary apparatus changes or additions 



Cost projections will be provided for both capital expenditures and on-going operational costs. 

Operational costs will be provided as one-year projections of additional or reduced expenditures resulting 

from full implementation of the strategy. Additional findings and recommendations will be made, where 

appropriate, regarding: 

• Options for long-term funding strategies 

• Options for cost avoidance 

• Options for cost recovery 

Phase V: Development, Review, and Delivery of the Project Report 

Task 5-A: Development and Review of the Draft Report 

ESCI will develop and produce an electronic version of the draft written report for review by the client and 

client representatives. Client feedback is a critical part of this project and adequate opportunity will be 

provided for review and discussion of the draft report prior to finalization. The report will include: 

• Detailed narrative analysis of each report component structured in easy-to-read sections and 
accompanied by explanatory support to encourage understanding by both staff and civilian readers 

• Clearly designated recommendations highlighted for easy reference and cataloged as necessary 
in a report appendix 

• Supportive charts, graphs, and diagrams, where appropriate 

• Supportive maps utilizing GIS analysis, as necessary 

Task 5-B: Delivery and Presentation of the Final Report 

ESCI will complete any necessary revisions of the draft and produce five publication-quality bound, final 

versions of the written report along with an electronic copy in PDF file format . A formal presentation of 

the project report will be made by ESCI project team member(s) to staff, elected officials, and/or the 

general public as necessary and will include the following: 

• A summary of the nature of the report, the methods of analysis, the primary findings, and critical 
recommendations 

• Supportive audio-visual presentation 

• Review and explanation of primary supportive charts, graphs, diagrams, and maps, where 
appropriate 

• Opportunity for questions and answers, as needed 

All presentation materials, files, graphics, and written material will be provided to the client at the 

conclusion of the presentation(s). 

9 



Optional Sections to Be Added or Substituted 

Note: The sections below are offered as options and can be included as needed. 

Add on to Task 2-G: Support Programs 

Communications 

• Alarm systems and communications infrastructure 

• PSAP and Dispatch Center capabilities and methods 

• Dispatch Center staffing 

Task 2-H: Emergency Medical Services Support and System Oversight 

Evaluate the current Emergency Medical Services support and oversight mechanisms to include, but not 

limited to, the following: 

• Review of logistical support services 

• Review of current medical control and oversight 

• Review of quality assurance/quality improvement mechanisms in place 

• Review of system integrity with regard to required credentialing 

Task 2-1: HAZMAT Services Support and Response Capability 

Evaluate the agency's capabilities with regards to hazardous materials incident responses to include, but 

not limited to, the following: 

• Review of physical and personnel resources 

• Review of training and educational compliance 

• Review of historical staffing performance with regard to hazardous materials responses 

Task 2-J: Technical Rescue Services Support and Response Capability 

Evaluate the agency's capabilities with regard to technical rescue incident responses to include, but not 

limited to, the following: 

• Review of physical and personnel resources 

• Review of training and educational compliance 

• Review of historical staffing performance with regard to technical rescue responses 

i 10 



Task 3-D: Public Input Meetings 

At the conclusion of Phases I, II, and Ill, ESCI staff will facilitate a community public input meeting intended 

to provide information and gather input from members of the general public, community organizations, 

and neighborhood associations. In order to assess public sentiment toward potential future system 

changes, discussions will center on the following issues: 

• Customer perception of emergency services 

• Desired level of service 

• Support for adoption of an emergency services master plan 

• General input 

The project team will prepare survey instruments, questionnaires, and forms to be used during the 

community input meeting. Professional graphics and a presentation of study objectives will be used to 

increase customers' understanding of their role in the process. The results of the assessment of current 

resources, projections of future demand and risk, and the fire service costs and existing funding sources 

will be summarized, presented, and discussed in the public input meeting. Data and input gathered from 

the meeting will be summarized within the study, as well as during meetings with internal stakeholders. 

ESCI will provide facilitation staff for the public meeting, but will expect the client to assist with logistics, 

scheduling, meeting locations, and public advertising. 

·-f ............ ~ ... ,.,_ ........... ~ 

1e. 



BILL NO. INTRODUCED BY _______ _ ---------

ORDINANCE NO. - ----------

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING AND DIRECTING 
THE EXECUTION OF A CONTRACT AGREEMENT 
BY AND BETWEEN THE CITY OF WASHINGTON, 
MISSOURI AND DJM ECOLOGICAL SERVICES, INC. 
FOR HIGHWAY 100 MEDIAN BED LANDSCAPING 
SERVICES 

Be It Ordained by the Council of the City of Washington, Missouri, as follows: 

SECTION 1: The Mayor is hereby authorized and directed to accept the Contract 

Agreement by and between the City of Washington, Missouri and DJM Ecological 

Services, Inc. for Highway 100 Median Bed Landscaping Services in the amount totaling 

Twenty Thousand Eight Hundred Dollars and Zero Cents ($20,800.00). A copy of said 

contract is attached hereto and marked as Exhibit A. 

SECTION 2: All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are 

hereby repealed. 

SECTION 3: This ordinance shall take effect and be in full force from and after 

it's passage and approval. 

Passed: ----------

ATTEST: ---------
President of City Council 

Approved: ________ _ 

ATTEST: - --------
Mayor of Washington, Missouri 

1f 



Exhibit A 

City of Washington, Missouri Parks & Recreation Department 

CITY-CONTRACTOR AGREEMENT 

This SERVICE AGREEMENT ("Agreement") is entered into effective as of the 
2nd day of May , 2022 ("Effective Date") by and between 
DJM Ecological Services, Inc. , a Missouri for-profit corporation with offices 

located at 2205 Ebert Lane, Wentzville, , Missouri, ("Contractor"), and the City of 
Washington, Missouri (hereinafter called the "City") (Contractor and the City may 
hereafter individually be referred to as a "Party" or collectively referred to as the 
"Parties"). 

WHEREAS, the Parties desire to enter into a Service Agreement under which 
the Contractor is to provide general grounds maintenance services, of City-owned 
properties and rights-of-ways, and other areas as described in this Agreement, currently 
owned, managed, or otherwise under the stewardship of the City; 

WHEREAS, the Contractor, has submitted documentation to the City, in the 
manner and time specified, a proposal in accordance with the terms of the Agreement, 
and; 

WHEREAS, the City has examined and canvassed the proposal submitted, and 
as a result, has determined and declared the Contractor to be the best bidder for said 
Work, and has duly awarded to the said Contractor therefor, for the sums named in the 
proposal attached to and made a part of this contract: 

NOW THEREFORE, THIS AGREEMENT WITNESSETH, in consideration of the 
recitals stated above, which all Parties agree are accurate and complete, the 
agreements, promises, and warranties set forth below, and other good and valuable 
consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the Parties 
agree as follows: 

ARTICLE I. 
SCOPE AND DEFINITIONS 

SECTION A. SCOPE OF THE AGREEMENT 

Implementation of the Agreeme.nt 

Paragraph 1.1. This Agreement, and its related Exhibits and Attachments, attached 
hereto and incorporated herein for all purposes, comprise the entire contract between 
the City and Contractor concerning the Work. It may be altered only be a written 
Modification or Change Order. 

Paragraph 1.2. It is the intent of the Agreement to describe a complete Project. 
Any Work that may reasonably be inferred from the Agreement as being required to 

HWY 100 Medians Maintenance City-Contractor Agreement CCA-1 

1f 



City of Washington, Missouri Parks & Recreation Department 

produce the intended result shall be supplied by the Contractor at no additional cost to 
the City, whether or not it is specifically called for. 

SECTION B. DEFINITIONS 

Wherever used in the Agreem·ent the following terms have the meanings indicated 
which are applicable to both the singular and plural thereof: 

Paragraph 1.3. "Additional Work" or "Additional Services" means Work beyond the 
scope of services identified in the specifications described in Exhibit "A". 

Paragraph 1.4. "Agreement" or "Contract" means this signed written agreement 
between the City and Contractor covering the Work to be performed by Contractor, and 
other Addenda, attachments and Exhibits to this Agreement and made a part thereof as 
provided herein. 

Paragraph 1.5. "Application for Payment" means the form approved by the City 
which is to be used by Contractor in requesting progress or final payment and which is 
to include such supporting documentations as is required by the Agreement. 

Paragraph 1.6. 
of security. 

"Bonds" means bid and/or performance bond or other instruments 

Paragraph 1. 7. "Change Order" means a written order to Contractor signed by the 
City authorizing an addition, deletion, or revision in the Work, or an adjustment in the 
Contract Price issued after the Effective Date of the Agreement. 

Paragraph 1.8. 
begin. 

"Commencement Date" means the date upon which the Work shall 

Paragraph 1.9. "Contract Price" means the monies jointly and separately due and 
payable by the City to Contractor under this Agreement. 

Paragraph 1.10. "Day" means a calendar day of twenty-four hours measured from 
midnight to the next midnight. 

Paragraph 1.11. "Modifications" means (a) a written amendment of the Agreement 
signed by both Parties, or (b) a Change Order. 

Paragraph 1.12. "Owner" means the City. 

Paragraph 1.13. "Permit" means a written permit issued by any local, State, or 
Federal agency, or other legal authority, as required to conduct the Work. 

Paragraph 1.1.4. "Person" means an individual, partnership, joint venture, 
corporation, limited liability company, or unincorporated organization. 

HWY 100 Medians Maintenance City-Contractor Agreement CCA-2 

1f. 



City of Washington, Missouri Parks & Recreation Department 

Paragraph 1.15. "Project" means the total scope of Work specified in the 
Agreement. 

Paragraph 1.16. "Report" means weekly, monthly, quarterly, or yearly report that 
demonstrates the tasks completed over that period of time. 

Paragraph 1.17. "Subcontractor" means a Person having a direct contract with 
Contractor or with any other subcontractor for the performance of part of the Work. 

Paragraph 1.18. "Third Party" or 'Third Parties" means any Person other than a 
member of Contractor or the City. 

Paragraph 1.19. "Unit" means a specific quantity of material or service (per park, per 
gallon, per tree, per mile, per track, per, acre, per sculpture, linear feet, square feet, 
etc.). 

Paragraph 1.20. "Unit Price" means the dollar amount per Unit as quoted/bid in 
Exhibit "A". 

Paragraph 1.21. "Work" means all of the services, labor, equipment and materials to 
be performed, provided, or furnished by Contractor as required by the Agreement. 

ARTICLE II. 
CONTRACT ADMINISTRATION 

SECTION A. CONTRACT FORMATION, INTERPRETATION, ASSIGNMENT, 
AND SUBCONTRACTS 

Subcontracting and Assignments 

Paragraph 2.1. Contractor shall supply a complete list of any and all 
subcontractor(s) proposed to be used under the Agreement and shall not use any 
Subcontractor or other Person (including those who are to furnish the principal items of 
material or equipment), whether initially or as a substitute, without the prior written 
consent of the City. 

Once a subcontractor(s) has been approved by the City, the Contractor shall submit a 
signed and dated Contract between the Contractor and the subcontractor indicating the 
total dollar amount of the subcontractor's Contract. Before any subcontractor can begin 
work on the project, whether originally subcontracted prior to the start of the project or 
subcontracted after the project has begun all provisions of this article must be complied 
with. 

Paragraph 2.2. The City may assign this Agreement in part or in whole including all 
rights and obligations to any assignee at its sole discretion and without any prior notice 

HWY 100 Medians Maintenance City-Contractor Agreement CCA -3 

1f 



City of Washington, Missouri Parks & Recreation Department 

or consent from Contractor including but not limited to any entity that succeeds to any 
of the rights and obligations to provide governmental type services to the local 
community, including any city, county or state agency, and/or a newly formed 
municipality. Upon any such assignment by the City, this Agreement shall remain a 
valid and enforceable agreement and the original terms and conditions contained 
herein, or any properly amended terms and conditions shall remain valid and 
enforceable. Contractor shall not assign this Agreement, including to any Affiliates, 
without the City's prior written consent. Any purported assignment without such consent 
shall be void. 

Paragraph 2.3. Contractor shall be fully responsible for all acts and omissions of its 
Subcontractors, of all Persons directly or indirectly employed by them and Persons for 
whose acts any of them may be liable to the same extent that Contractor is responsible 
for the acts and omissions of Persons directly employed by Contractor. Nothing in the 
Agreement shall create any contractual relationship between the City and any 
Subcontractor, except as may otherwise be required by law. 

SECTION 8. TERM 

Paragraph 2.4. This Agreement shall be effective as of the Effective Date written 
on the first page of this Agreement. If the first page is undated, then the Effective Date 
shall be the date the first Work is commenced. 

Paragraph 2.5. This Agreement shall continue from the Effective Date until 
terminated by the expiration of the Term as indicated in Exhibit "A" or by termination 
procedures as described in this Agreement. Agreement is subject to annual 
appropriation. 

Paragraph 2.6. If Contractor is delayed at any time in the commencement or 
progress of the Work by an act or neglect of the City, or of an employee, or of a 
separate contractor employed by the City; or by a Change Order in the Work; or by 
labor disputes, fire, unusual delay in deliveries, unavoidable casualties or other caused 
beyond the Contractor's control; or by delay authorized by the City pending mediation 
and arbitration; or by other causes that the City determines may justify delay, then the 
Contract Time shall be extended by Change Order for such reasonable time as the City 
may determine. 

SECTION C. CONTRACT COMMUNICATION 

Notices 

Paragraph 2.6. All notices, requests, demands, and other communications 
specifically required or authorized by this Agreement shall be written and shall be (a) 
delivered personally, (b) mailed by registered mail or certified mail, return receipt 
requested, postage prepaid, (c) sent by facsimile transmission, or (d) sent by e-mail. All 

HWY 1 DO Medians Maintenance City-Contractor Agreement CCA-4 



City of Washington, Missouri Parks & Recreation Department 
such communications shall use the receiving Party's contact information as contained in 

this Article II Section C. A Party may change its contact information by sending a notice 
to the other Party complying with these notice requirements. 

Paragraph 2.7. All other communications, including telephone, regular mail, e-mail, 
and other informal communication methods, shall be effective only when the 
responsible officer, director, manager, or supervisor of the receiving Party has actual 
knowledge of the communication. 

Paragraph 2.8. Contractor's contact information is as follows: 

JOHN Q. COMPANY 
Attn: John Q. Contractor 
President 
1111 Contract Drive 
Anywhere, USA 60000 
Telephone: 
Cell Phone: 
E-mail: 

Paragraph 2.9. City of Washington contact information is as follows: 

CITY OF WASHINGTON 
Attn: Wayne Dunker 
Director of Parks and Recreation 
405 Jefferson Street 
Washington, Missouri 63090 
Telephone: 636-390-1080 
E-mail: wdunker@washmo.gov 

SECTION D. CONTRACT PERFORMANCE 

Paragraph 2.10. Contractor, acting as an independent contractor, agrees to furnish 
at his/her own expense all supervision, labor, expertise, equipment, supplies, and other 
requirements as set forth herein and as more specifically described in Exhibit "A" and 
will provide such in a good and "Workmanlike Manner", the term Workmanlike Manner 
being defined as the rendition of services in a manner deemed proficient by those with 
the special knowledge, training, and experience to judge such services and in 
accordance with highest generally accepted standard of care in the industry. 

HWY 100 Medians Maintenance City-Contractor Agreement CCA-5 

1f 



City of Washington, Missouri Parks & Recreation Department 

Contractor as an Independent Contractor 

Paragraph 2.11. At all relevant times to this Agreement, Contractor shall act as an 
independent contractor to the City in providing Work to the City. Nothing in this 
Agreement shall be interpreted to create any employment, partnership, or joint 
ventures. Except to the extent required to enable Contractor to perform his/her specific 
duties under this Agreement, Contractor shall no act as an agent of the City, by entering 
into this Agreement, the City in no way, assumes any liabilities, debts or obligations of 
the Contractor whether now existing or hereafter created. 

Paragraph 2.12. Contractor shall not have the authority to incur or assume any debt, 
obligation, expense, or liability against the City, and shall not have the authority to bind 
or otherwise obligate the City to any contracts, agreements, warranties, or 
understandings. 

Change Orders 

Paragraph 2.13. Any Change Orders or Modifications to the Agreement must be 
approved by the City and be incorporated by written amendment to the Agreement. 
Contractor shall not have the authority to make, revise, alter, depart, or otherwise 
diverge from any of the terms, conditions, or places furnished to Contractor by the City 
and/or this Agreement absent consent of the City and written amendment to the 
Agreement. 

Continuing the Work 

Paragraph 2.14. Contractor shall carry on the Work and maintain the performance 
of the Work during all disputes or disagreements with the City, except upon the City's 
default hereunder. No Work shall be delayed or postponed pending resolution of any 
disputes or disagreements, except as the Parties may otherwise agree in writing. 

Equipment Storage 

Paragraph 2.15. Contractor shall be responsible for locating and providing storage 
for all equipment. 

Permits 

Paragraph 2.16. Contractor shall be solely responsible for obtaining and paying for 
all permits and licenses related to their performance of the Work. 

HWY 100 Medians Maintenance City-Contractor Agreement CCA-6 

1f 



City of Washington, Missouri Parks & Recreation Department 

Taxes and Fees 

Paragraph 2.17. Contractor shall pay all taxes and fees which may be chargeable 
against the performance of the Work, or incident to the Agreement by a government 
agency, including but not limited to any employment related taxes, F.I.C.A. taxes, social 
security taxes, and other taxes and fees, directly to the appropriate governmental 
bodies. The City is a political subdivision of the State of Missouri and exempt from tax; 
The City agrees to make their tax-exempt certification available to the Contractor to the 
extent required to assure the City is not charged taxes which they are not responsible to 
pay. The City shall not be liable in any way for such fees or taxes and the Contractor 
shall indemnify and hold the City, their Affiliates officers, directors, members, and 
employees and assigns harmless from and against all claims, demands, causes of 
action, suits or other litigation in connection with Contractor's failure to report such 
taxes and fees. No additional compensation will be paid to Contractor for taxes or fees. 

Contract Price and Payment Procedures 

Paragraph 2.18. Contract Price constitutes the total compensation (subject to 
authorized adjustments made by a Change Order) payable to Contractor for performing 
the Work. All duties, responsibilities and obligations assigned to or undertaken by 
Contractor shall be at its expense without change in the Contract Price. Contract Price 
is described in the specification in Exhibit "A". 

Paragraph 2.19. Contractor shall submit to the City monthly Applications for 
Payment that shows all applicable areas where the Work was performed. Failure to fully 
comply with the Application for Payment procedure will cause daily in processing 
payments. 

Paragraph 2.20. On the twenty-fifth (251h) day of each month and no later than the 
thirtieth (3Q1h) of the month during the Term of the Agreement, beginning with the first 
(1 51) month after the Commencement Date, Contractor shall submit to the City the 
Application for Payment, accompanied by (a) the monthly Report, (b) a sworn statement 
by Contractor certifying (i) the Application for Payment is correct, (ii) all insurance 
required by this Agreement is in full force and effect, (iii) all Subcontractors and 
suppliers have been paid from previous Applications for Payment, (iv) Certified payroll, 
and (v) the Contractor is not in default under any provisions of the Agreement and that 
no event has occurred which with the passing of time or the giving of notice could be a 
default under the Agreement, and (c) any other documents, information or data which 
the City request be provided. 

Paragraph 2.21. If the City disputes any portion of an Application for Payment, they 
shall, within thirty (30) Days of receipt of the Application for Payment, furnish the 
Contractor a reasonably detailed explanation of the objection, and may withhold 
payment on the portion in dispute. If Contractor objects to the withholding, it shall 
provide the City with written notice of its objection within ten (10) Days of receipt of the 
written explanation from the City. The Parties may then proceed to Dispute Resolution 
as described in this Agreement as to any disputed amount. All undisputed amounts 
shall be paid within forty-five (45) Days of the receipt of the Application for Payment by 

HWY 100 Medians Maintenance City-Contractor Agreement CCA-7 

1f 



City of Washington, Missouri Parks & Recreation Department 

the City. 

Paragraph 2.22. Contractor shall notify the City in writing within ten (10) Days of 
their receipt of payment from the City, if there is any discrepancy based on a Contractor 
audit of the number of Units. This notice shall include the nature of the disagreement, 
the address of the location of the Unit in question, the type of service being provided, 
and the date such service began or ended. If the Contractor does not notify the City of a 
discrepancy within the ten (10) Day period, the discrepancy is waived, and the 
Contractor is afforded no further recourse, right or remedy as to the discrepancy. 

Paragraph 2.23. At any time during the Term of the Agreement, the City may be 
Change Order alter the number of Units applicable to the Work. If the number of Units 
is increased, the Work on any additional Units will be paid to Contractor in an amount 
equal to the number of additional Units multiplied by the Unit Price herein. If the number 
of Units are decreased, the Contract Price will be reduced in an amount equal to the 
number of Units decreased multiplied by the Unit Price. Unit Price and Units are 
described in the specifications in Exhibit "A". 

Paragraph 2.24. Final Payment, constituting the entire unpaid balance of the 
Contract Sum, shall be made by the City to the Contractor when: the Contractor has 
fully performed the Contract except for the Contractor's responsibility to correct Work, 
and to satisfy other requirements, if any, which extend beyond final payment; and a 
final Certificate for Payment has been issued. 

Liguated Damages 

Paragraph 2.25. Contractor and City recognize that time is of the essence and that 
City may suffer financial loss if the Work is not completed within the times specified in 
Exhibit "A", plus any extensions thereof allowed. The Parties also recognize the delays, 
expense, and difficulties involved in proving in a legal or arbitration proceeding the 
actual loss suffered by City if the Work is not completed on time. Accordingly, instead of 
requiring any such proof, City and Contractor agree that as liquidated damages for 
delay (but not as a penalty), Contractor shall pay City $500.00 for each day that expires 
after the time specified in Exhibit "A" until the Work is complete. 

Character and Conduct of Contractor's Employees and Subcontractors 

Paragraph 2.26. The Contractor's employees and Subcontractors who normally and 
regularly come into direct contact with the public shall bear some means of company 
identification such as a company uniform with name badges, name tags or identification 
marks. Vehicles and equipment shall also bear some means of company identification. 

Paragraph 2.27. The Contractor shall perform the Work with as little noise and as 
little disturbance to Third Parties and surrounding property owners as possible. 

Paragraph 2.28. Care shall be taken by Contractor or of Third Parties to prevent 
damage to property, including buildings, sidewalks, parking lots, trails, roads, pavilions, 
playgrounds, lawns, shrubs, flowers, trees, plants, etc. on City-Owned Property, Rights
of-Ways. 

HWY 100 Medians Maintenance City-Contractor Agreement CCA-8 

11 



City of Washington, Missouri Parks & Recreation Department 

Safety and Protection 

Paragraph 2.29. Contractor shall be responsible for initiating, maintaining and 
supervising all safety precautions and programs in connection with the Work. The 
Contractor shall appoint a qualified, experienced safety representative, whose duties 
shall be the prevention of accidents and the maintaining and supervision of the safety 
precautions and programs. 

Injury or Damage 

Paragraph 2.30. Contractor shall promptly notify the City of all damage to property 
belonging to the City or Third Parties, or injuries incurred by persons other than 
employees of Contractor in no case later than one (1) hour after the injury or damage 
occurred. 

Paragraph 2.31. Contractor shall be responsible for any damage to the property, 
real or personal, of any Third Party or of the City that is caused by any act or omission 
of the Contractor in the performance under the Agreement. If the City finds that the 
Contractor has failed to completely reimburse the Third Party any amount and the City, 
and the City deems it necessary to compensate the Third Party for its damaged 
property, the City may pay the Third Party and deduct this amount from the amount due 
to Contractor under this Agreement. The City reserves the right to pay all fines, 
penalties, costs and assessments levied by any governmental authority against the 
Contractor and to withhold said amount from any payments due to Contractor under 
this Agreement. The terms and conditions of this paragraph shall survive the 
termination of this Agreement. 

Additional Services 

Paragraph 2.32. Contractor shall prepare a list of rates for special services not 
specified in Exhibit "A". Contractor shall supply the list from time to time, but not less 
than once per year. 

Reports by Contractor 

Paragraph 2.33. Contractor shall submit reports as identified in Exhibit "A" and upon 
request by the City provide a written report of equipment, staffing, emergencies, 
security problems or any related events. The Contractor shall cooperate with the City as 
necessary to review financial statements and/or audit Contractor's books and records 
concerning this Agreement. 

SECTION E. PERFORMANCE AND TERMINATION 

Force Majeure 

Paragraph 2.34. Contractor and the City shall be excused from complying with the 
terms and conditions of this Agreement if, to the extent, and for as long as, such Party's 

HWY 100 Medians Maintenance City-Contractor Agreement CCA-9 



City of Washington, Missouri Parks & Recreation Department 

compliance is delayed or prevented by a Force Majeure event. A Force Majeure event 
will not excuse either Party from making payments, performing indemnity obligations 
(as applicable), or other duties not directly limited by the Force Majeure event, except 
as otherwise provided within this paragraph entitled "Force Majeure". "Force Majeure" 
includes acts of God, floods, blizzards, ice storms, and hurricanes; insurrection, 
revolution, piracy, and war. Strikes, slowdowns, walkouts, lockouts, industrial 
disturbances and labor disputes are not excused under this provision. 

Provisions Surviving Termination 

Paragraph 2.35. In the event of termination of this Agreement, the terms and 
conditions which expressly survive termination of this Agreement and those dealing with 
warranty, indemnities, audit, confidentiality, insurance, arbitration, disclaimer of 
consequential damages and any limitation of liability, shall survive termination and 
remain in full force and effect. 

Termination by the City 

Paragraph 2.36. The City may terminate the Agreement upon 1.) thirty (30) Days 
written notice for any reason, or 2.) upon any of the following events of default ("Events 
of Default") if after giving the Termination Notice described in Paragraph 2.36, the 
Contractor has not cured the Event of Default within the applicable cure period: 

A. If Contractor fails to fulfill or maintain in a timely and proper manner any 
obligations, duties or provision of the Agreement and Contractor fails to cure 
such default to the satisfaction of the City within ten (10) Days of the Contractor's 
receipt of written notice from the City specifying the how the Contractor failed to 
perform in reasonable detail. 

B. If Contractor is adjudicated voluntarily bankrupt, or if Contractor is subject to the 
appointment of receiver or trustee and fails to have the receiver or trustee 
removed within sixty (60) Days, or if any assignment or Contractor's property 
shall be made for the benefit of creditors, or if Contractor becomes insolvent, or 
unable to pay its debts as they become due. 

C. If there is a change of Control of the Contractor, whether voluntarily or by 
operation of law, or substantially all the assets of the Contractor are sold or 
transferred voluntarily or otherwise, the Agreement shall terminate unless the 
City agrees by Change Order to continue the Agreement with the Contractor 
after the change of Control or disposition of assets. The Contractor shall 
promptly notify the City of any actual or proposed change in, transfer of or 
acquisition by another party of Control of the Contractor. "Control" as used herein 
means the power, whether direct or indirect, to direct the affairs of the Contractor 
by whatever manner exercised. Any agreement by the City to continue this 
Agreement after the change in Control or disposition of assets shall be 
contingent upon the new controlling party or owner of the assets becoming a 
signatory to the Agreement and otherwise complying with all the terms and 
conditions herein, including but not limited to the submission of Bonds, if 
required by this Agreement, and certificates of insurance acceptable to the City. 

HWY 100 Medians Maintenance City-Contractor Agreement CCA-10 

1f 



City of Washington, Missouri Parks & Recreation Department 

Administrative Fee 

Paragraph 2.37. If there is an Event of Default, which the Contractor does not cure 
within the applicable cure period, the City may charge and the Contractor shall pay to 
the City an administrative fee to compensate the City for its costs associated with the 
Contractor's failure to perform the Work as required in this Agreement. The City may 
levy this administrative fee without terminating this Agreement. The fee shall be equal 
to 1.5 times the Unit Cost multiplied by the number of Days the Event of Default 
continues uncured after the expiration of the applicable cure period and shall be 
payable to the City by the Contractor upon written demand. The Parties stipulate that 
the fee is a reasonable estimate and is not to be construed as a fine or penalty, and 
shall be in addition to any other remedy the City may have at law, in equity or under the 
Agreement. 

Termination Notice: Cancellation of Orders and Subcontracts 

Paragraph 2.38. Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default subject to any 
applicable notice and cure period, the City should they elect to terminate the 
Agreement, will issue a written notice of termination (the "Termination Notice") to the 
Contractor. In addition, the City may issue a Termination Notice for any reason as so 
long as the Contractor is given thirty (30) Days' notice in the Termination Notice. 
Termination shall be effective upon the date specified in the Termination Notice, and 
upon said date this Agreement shall be deemed immediately terminated and thereafter 
neither Party shall have any rights or obligations under this Agreement except as 
expressively provided herein. Any termination of the Agreement shall not relieve the 
Contractor (a) from the obligation to pay any fees, taxes or other charges then due to 
the City or any other Third Party incident to the Agreement, (b) from the obligation to file 
any monthly, quarterly or annual Reports through termination, (c) from any claim from 
damages previously accrued or then accruing against the Contractor nor (d) from any 
provisions of this Agreement that expressively survive termination. Upon the effective 
date of termination as contained in the Termination Notice, Contractor shall, unless the 
notice directs otherwise, immediately discontinue all Work and shall proceed to 
promptly cancel all existing orders and subcontracts for the Work. Contractor shall 
immediately submit an Application for Payment showing in detail the Work performed 
through the date of termination. The City agrees to compensate the Contractor for that 
portion of Work actually performed prior to the effective date of termination and not 
disputed under this Agreement and not previously paid, less any charges, deductions, 
or administrative fees. Termination of this Agreement shall not affect any rights or 
remedies of the City against Contractor then existing or which may thereafter accrue. 
Any retention or payment of monies due Contractor by the City shall not release 
Contractor from liability. 

Termination or Stop Work by Contractor and Remedies for Default by the City 

Paragraph 2.39. If through no act or fault of Contractor, the Work is suspended for a 
period of more than ninety (90) Days by the City or under an order of court or other 
public authority, or the City fails for sixty (60) Days to pay Contractor any sum not in 
dispute, or if the City otherwise default hereunder, then Contractor may, (i) upon fifteen 
(15) Days written notice to the City, and provided the City does not remedy such 

HWY 100 Medians Maintenance City-Contractor Agreement CCA-11 

1f 



City of Washington, Missouri Parks & Recreation Department 

suspension or failure to pay within that time, terminate this Agreement and recover 
payment from the City for the undisputed Work which Contractor completed prior to the 
effective date of termination, or (ii) upon seven (7) Days written notice to the City stop 
the Work until payment of all such amounts due Contractor are received, without 
termination of this Agreement as the Contractor's sole and exclusive remedies. 

ARTICLE Ill. 
CONTRACTOR'S REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES 

General Service Warranty 

Paragraph 3.1. The general service warranty applies to all services performed by 
Contractor or its subcontractors. Contractor warrants it will perform all services in a 
good and Workmanlike Manner. 

Contractor's Representations and Warranties 

Paragraph 3.2. Contractor is familiar with the nature and extent of the Agreement, 
the Work, the locality, with all local conditions and federal, state, and local laws, 
ordinances, rules, and regulations including but not limited to all rules, regulations, and 
the restrictive covenants governing the land within the jurisdiction of the City, that in any 
manner may affect cost, progress or performance of the Work. 

Paragraph 3.3. The person signing this Contract on behalf of the Contractor is 
authorized by Contractor to do so. 

Paragraph 3.4. Contractor's representations and warranties under this Article Ill of 
the Agreement entitled Contractor's Representations and Warranties will survive the 
termination of this Agreement. 

ARTICLE IV. 

FINANCIAL ADMINISTRATION 

SECTION A. APPLICATIONS FOR PAYMENT AND PROCEDURES 

Compensation 

Paragraph 4.1. 
in Exhibit "A". 

Contractor's compensations shall be set forth in the specifications 

HWY 100 Medians Maintenance City-Contractor Agreement CCA -12 

1f 



City of Washington, Missouri Parks & Recreation Department 

Contractor's Invoices 

Paragraph 4.2. Applications for Payment shall be submitted in such form and 
accompanied by such certification and documentation as the City may reasonably 
request, including the following as applicable: (a) Daily rate and the number of day 
worked in performing the Work, (b) the type and quantities of materials or supplies 
furnished by Contractor and utilized in performing the Work (e.g. chemicals), (c) the 
dates and hours equipment or machinery was employed in performing the Work, (d) 
Report on number of acres cleared, and (e) any charges for extra services authorized 
by the City (Each service must be individually listed next to its charge and approved 
proposals or Change Orders must be included). 

Payment of Application for Payment 

Paragraph 4.3. Except as provided in the paragraph entitled "Disputed Invoices," 
the City agrees to pay Contractor's Application for Payment within forty-five (45) Days 
after the City's receipt of the Application for Payment. 

Remedies for Unpaid Invoices 

Paragraph 4.4. Undisputed Applications for Payment or the undisputed part of an 
Application for Payment remaining unpaid after forty-five (45) Days from receipt by the 
City shall accrue simple interest at the rate of 10% per annum (or the maximum interest 
rate allowed by applicable law, whichever is less), from the 45th day after receipt by the 
City through the day the City mails payment to the Contractor. 

Disputed Applications for Payment 

Paragraph 4.5. If the City, in good faith, disputes any Application for Payment in 
whole or in part, the City shall notify Contractor of the dispute within the time required 
for payment and shall timely pay any undisputed portion. Interest shall not accrue on 
the amounts disputed in good faith. 

City Payment Does Not Constitute Waiver 

Paragraph 4.6. The City payment of an Application for Payment shall not prevent it 
from later filing claims against Contractor or waive its rights to recover money previously 
paid to Contractor. Without limiting the generality of the preceding sentence, the City 
may recover any sums paid to Contractor by mistake of law or of fact. 

SECTION B. LIENS AND CLAIMS 

Contractor's Obligations Concerning Liens and Claims 

Paragraph 4. 7. Contractor shall pay all valid claims for its labor, materials, 
services, supplies, and products as they become due. Whether a claim is valid or 
invalid, no lien, privilege, charge, or similar encumbrance shall become fixed upon the 
City lands, fixtures, improvements, or other property because of Contractor's failure to 

HWY 100 Medians Maintenance City-Contractor Agreement CCA -13 

1f 



City of Washington, Missouri Parks & Recreation Department 

pay for goods or services provided for hereunder. After being notified of the existence 
of such claims, charges, liens, privilege, or encumbrances, Contractor agrees to take all 
necessary steps to obtain the release of such lien, privilege, or encumbrance. 

Paragraph 4.8. If Contractor fails or refuses to pay its claims or indebtedness, then 
the City shall have the right to pay any such claims or indebtedness out any money due 
or to become due to Contractor under this Agreement; provided, however, the City shall 
not pay any such claim or indebtedness as long as Contractor is actively contesting it 
and has taken all actions necessary (including the posting of a bond or security if 
appropriate) to protect the City's property interests and the interests of other Persons in 
that same property. 

Paragraph 4.9 Before the City pays any Application for Payment, the City may 
require Contractor to certify that there are no unsatisfied claims for labor, materials, 
equipment, supplies, or products. 

ARTICLE V. 

RISK MANAGEMENT 

SECTION A. GENERAL INDEMNIFICATION 

Release, Defense, and Indemnity 

Paragraph 5.1. To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor shall indemnify 
and hold harmless City and its officers, directors, employees, agents, consultants and 
subcontractors of each and any of them from and against all claims, costs, losses, and 
damages (including but not limited to all fees and charges of engineers, architects, 
attorneys, and other professionals and all court or arbitration or other dispute resolution 
costs) arising out of or relating to the performance of the Work, provided that any such 
claim, cost, loss, or damage is attributable to bodily injury, sickness, disease, or death, 
or to injury to or destruction of tangible property (other than the Work itself), including 
the loss of use resulting therefrom but only to the extent caused by any negligent act or 
omission of Contractor, any subcontractor, any supplier, or any individual or entity 
directly or indirectly employed by any of them to perform any of the Work or anyone for 
whose acts any of them may be liable. 

Paragraph 5.2. Contractor agrees to release, protect, defend, indemnify, and hold 
harmless the City or any of its officers, directors, employees, agents, consultants and 
subcontractors from and against any and all claims (including claims of Third Parties 
and claims of spouses, heirs, survivors, legal representatives, successors and assigns) 
of Contractor, any subcontractor, any supplier, or any individual or entity directly or 
indirectly employed by any of them to perform any of the Work for personal injury, 
illness, death, property (whether real or person, owned or leased) damage} and loss 
arising out of or resulting from the performance of this Agreement suffered by 
Contractor EVEN IF THE CLAIMS ARE CONTRIBUTED TO OR CAUSED BY THE 
SOLE, JOINT, COMPARATIVE, CONCURRENT, ACTIVE OR PASSIVE 

HWY 100 Medians Maintenance City-Contractor Agreement CCA-14 



City of Washington, Missouri Parks & Recreation Department 

NEGLIGENCE OF ANY MEMBER{$) OF THE CITY. 

The release, protection, defense, indemnity and hold harmless obligations assumed by 
Contractor, and the limitations afforded the City, in this paragraph include any liability 
for employment discrimination, medical, compensation, or other benefits owed to 
employees of Contractor as a result of the direct employment relationship of such 
individuals with a member of Contractor even if such individuals are determined to 
be the borrowed or statutory employee of any member(s) of the City. 

The indemnities in Paragraph 5.2 of this Agreement shall only be effective to the 
maximum extent permitted by the applicable law, either legislative enactment or a 
controlling judicial decision. If such existing or future law limits in any way the extent to 
which indemnification may be provided to an indemnity that is negligent, solely 
negligent, or otherwise at fault and, notwithstanding the choice of law provision set forth 
herein, such law is applicable to interpretation of this Agreement, then this Agreement 
shall automatically be amended to provide that the indemnification provided hereunder 
shall extend only to the maximum extent permitted by such law. The liability of the City 
is limited due its status as a political subdivision of the State of Missouri. 

Paragraph 5.3. For the purpose of Article V, the phrase "arising from or resulting 
from the performance of this Agreement" shall be broadly construed to include, but not 
be limited to, not only formal work, but also any occurrences at the work site, including 
transportation to and from the work (other than personal or public transportation to the 
work site), breaks of all kinds, including, without limitation, breaks for meals and/or rest, 
horseplay of all kinds, or volunteering of c:111 kinds to assist others in their work. 

Indemnity for Removal of Liens 

Paragraph 5.4. Should the Contractor fail to fulfill its obligations under Article IV 
Section B concerning removal of liens, privileges or encumbrances on the property of 
any resident(s) of the City or property of the City arising out of performance under this 
Agreement, Contractor agrees to release, protect, defend, indemnify, and hold 
harmless the City for its direct costs actually incurred in removing such lien, privilege or 
encumbrance, should the City decide to proceed with removal. 

Limitation on Damages 

Paragraph 5.5. Contractor agrees that no resident(s) of the City will be responsible 
for and specifically agrees to release, defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the 
residents of the City, Mayor, City Council, employees, and agents form any and all 
liability for indirect, special, incidental, consequential, punitive or exemplary damages 
suffered by any employee(s) of Contractor. 

HWY 100 Medians Maintenance City-Contractor Agreement CCA-15 

1~ 



City of Washington, Missouri Parks & Recreation Department 

SECTION B. INSURANCE 

Basic Insurance Coverage 

Paragraph 5.6. The Contractor and all subcontractors shall support its indemnity 
obligations by furnishing liability insurance coverage of the types set forth . 

Comprehensive General Liabi lity and Bodily Injury 

Including Death: $1,000,000 each person 
$3,000,000 each occurrence 

Property Damage: $3,000,000 each occurrence 
$3,000,000 aggregate 

Comprehensive Automobi le Liability, Bodily Injury 

Including Death: $1,000,000 each person 

$3,000,000 each occurrence 

Property Damage: $3,000,000 each accident 

Owner's Protective Bodily ln jY.[Y 

Including Death: $1,000,000 each occurrence 

$1,000,000 each occurrence 

Property Damage: $1,000,000 each occurrence 

$1,000,000 aggregate 

Workers Compensation 

The Contractor shall procure and shall maintain during the term of the Agreement, 
Workers' Compensation insurance for all of its employees to be engaged and perform 
work under the Agreement, and in case any such work is sublet, the Contractor shall 
require the subcontractor similarly to provide Workers' Compensation Insurance for all 
such employees to be engaged in such work, unless such employees are covered by 
HWY 100 Medians Maintenance City-Contractor Agreement CCA-16 



City of Washington, Missouri Parks & Recreation Department 

the protection afforded by the Contractor's Workers Compensation Insurance. In the 
event any class of employees engaged in hazardous work under the Agreement is not 
protected under the Workers' Compensation Statute, the Contractor shall provide, and 
shall cause such subcontractor to provide, adequate Employer's Liability Insurance for 
the protection of its employees not otherwise protected. 

The insurer shall agree to waive all rights of subrogation against the City, its officers, 
officials, employees and volunteers for losses arising from work performed by the 
Contractor for the City. 

In full compliance with the Worker's Compensation Act of the State of Missouri and 
Employer's Liability Coverage the minimum amount of insurance shall be $1,000.00 per 
occurrence. 

Insurance Endorsements and Provisions 

Paragraph 5.7. Prior to commencing to Work under this Agreement, Contractor 
shall obtain a waiver of subrogation form its insurers on the policies required in favor of 
the City. 

Paragraph 5.8. All such insurance coverage required under this Agreement shall 
name the City as an additional insured. 

Paragraph 5.9. Have such policies contain or be endorsed to contain a severability 
of interest provision so that each insured shall be treated separately under the policy so 
that the insurer may not deny enforcement based on the conduct or omissions of 
another insured; provided, however, this provision shall not cause any insurer or 
underwriter to pay more than the limits of the insurance coverage provided; 

• Be primary over any insurance coverage maintained by the City; 
• Be maintained in full force and effect during the term of this Agreement; and 
• Contain provisions stating that such policies shall not be materially changed or 

cancelled without thirty (30) day prior written notice having first been furnished to 
the City. 

Certificates of Insurance 

Paragraph 5.10. Contractor and all Subcontractors agree that prior to commencing 
any of the Work under this Agreement; they shall have their insurance carrier furnish 
the City a certificate or certificates of insurance and endorsement page(s) evidencing 
insurance coverage in accordance with the requirements identified herein. Acceptance 
by the City of a certificate or certificates of insurance and/or endorsement page(s) 
showing coverage not in compliance with the insurance requirements of this Agreement 
shall not relieve Contractor or Subcontractor(s) from its obligations under this 
Agreement. 

HWY 100 Medians Maintenance City-Contractor Agreement CCA-17 

1F 



City of Washington, Missouri Parks & Recreation Department 

Bid Bond 

Paragraph 5.11. Contractor shall furnish with the executed Agreement a Bid Bond, 
not less than five (5) percent of the amount of the bid. The City will hold the Bond for 
the duration of the Contract, as security for faithful performance obligations under the 
Contract Documents. 

Paragraph 5.12. All Bonds signed by an agent must be accompanied by a certified 
copy of agent's authority to act. Only surety companies authorized to do business in, 
and having an agent for services in the State of Missouri will be acceptable. 

Paragraph 5.13. If the Surety on any Bonds furnished by the Contractor is declared 
bankrupt or becomes insolvent or its right to do business is terminated in the state 
where the project is located or it ceases to meet the requirements of the preceding 
paragraph, the Contractor shall substitute another Bond and Surety, both of which must 
be acceptable to the City before continuing the Work. 

Severability 

Paragraph 5.15. If any part of Article V contravenes any applicable statutes, 
regulations, rules, or common law requirements, then, to the extent and only to the 
extent of such contravention, such part shall be severed from this Article V and deemed 
nonbinding while all other parts of this Article V shall remain binding. 

ARTICLE VI. 
LEGAL ADMINISTRATION 

SECTION A. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS 

General Legal Compliance 

Paragraph 6.1. Contractor shall comply with all applicable local, state and federal 
ordinances, statutes, laws, rules and regulations applicable to the Agreement as well as 
other regulations and restrictive covenants of the City. 

If the Contractor discovers any provisions in the Agreement, which is contrary or 
inconsistent with any law, ordinance, or regulation, it shall immediately report it in 
writing to the City. 

Paragraph 6.2. Contractor shall affirm by sworn affidavit that he/she has enrolled 
and participated in a federal work authorization program with respect to its employees 
who work in connection with the contracted services and to sign the affidavit affirming 
that Contractor does not knowingly employ any person who is an unauthorized alien in 
connection with the Contract. Such affidavit shall be required as a condition of this 
Contract prior to or at the time of execution of this Contract, and Contractor shall 
HWY 100 Medians Maintenance City-Contractor Agreement CCA -18 

1f 



City of Washington, Missouri Parks & Recreation Department 

provide documentation for the program. 

SECTION B. GOVERNING LAW AND DISPUTE RESOLUTION 

Paragraph 6.4. The Agreement shall be governed by, construed, and enforced in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Missouri. The Agreement is performable in 
Franklin, County, Missouri, and the Parties agree that venue for any dispute under the 
Agreement shall be Franklin County. Any Party, who is the prevailing Party in any legal 
proceeding brought under or in relation to the Agreement shall be entitled to recover 
court costs and reasonable attorney's fees from the non-prevailing Party. 

SECTION C. MISCELLANEOUS 

Severability 

Paragraph 6.5. If any part of this Agreement contravenes any applicable statutes, 
regulations, rules, or common law requirements, then, to the extent and only to the 
extent of such contravention, such part shall be severed from this Agreement and 
deemed nonbinding while all other parts of this Agreement shall remain binding, so long 
as the material purposes of this Agreement can be determined and effectuated. 

Singular and Plural 

Paragraph 6.6. 

Headings 

Reference to one gender includes a reference to the other gender. 

Paragraph 6.7. The headings, sub-headings, and other subdivisions of this 
Agreement are inserted for convenience only. The Parties do not intend them to be an 
aid in legal construction. 

Counterpart Execution 

Paragraph 6.8. This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, 
and each such counterpart shall be deemed an original of this Agreement for all 
purposes. No Party shall be bound to this Agreement unless and until all Parties have 
executed a counterpart. 

Binding Authority 

Paragraph 6.9. Each of the individuals executing this Agreement represents that 
he or she has full right and authority to execute this instrument on behalf of the City or 
Contractor, as the case may be, and to bind such Party. If the Person executing this 
Agreement has a title that includes the term "Manager," "Director," or "Vice President," 
then the Parties agrees that such Person has apparent authority to execute this 
Agreement and bind the Party. If such Person executes this Agreement on behalf of a 
Party, the other Part is not re uired to obtain a power of attorne , delegation of 
HWY 100 Medians Maintenance City-Contractor Agreement CCA -19 

1f 



City of Washington, Missouri Parks & Recreation Department · 

authority, or corporate resolution evidencing such authority. 

Entirety of Contract 

Paragraph 6.10. The Agreement embodies the entire contract between Parties. 

Waiver 

Paragraph 6.11. Failure to exercise any option to terminate shall not constitute a 
waiver of the right to exercise the same in the event of any subsequent default. A 
waiver of any breach of any provision of the Agreement shall not constitute or operate 
as a waiver of any breach of such provision or any other provisions, nor shall any failure 
to enforce any provision hereof operate as a waiver of such provisions or any other 
provision. The failure of the City at any time to enforce or to object to a failure or refusal 
to perform any terms, condition, or covenant of the Agreement, or to exercise any 
option herein giver, or to require at any time performance by the Contractor of any term, 
condition, or covenant hereof, shall in no way constitute a waiver of any subsequent 
breach, or effect the validity of the Agreement or any part hereof or the right of the City 
thereafter to enforce the same, but shall apply only to the specific instance to which the 
failure to enforce is directed. 

Approvals 

Paragraph 6.12. All approvals or consents required or permitted pursuant to the 
Agreement shall be writing in order to be considered valid and effective. 

HWY 100 Medians Maintenance City-Contractor Agreement CCA-20 

1f 



City of Washington, Missouri Parks & Recreation Department 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the 
date first above written. 

CITY OF WASHINGTON 

James D. Hagedorn, Mayor 

(SEAL) 

ATTEST: 

Sherri Klekamp, City Clerk 

CONTRACTOR 

"Contractor" 

Title ------------ --

(SEAL) 

ATIEST: 

Title· 

HWY 100 Medians Maintenance City-Contractor Agreement CCA-21 



City of Washington, Missouri Parks & Recreation Department 

This page left blank intentionally 

HWY 100 Medians Maintenance City-Contractor Agreement CCA-22 

1f 



City of Washington, Missouri Parks & Recreation Department 

TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS 

PART 1 - GENERAL 

1.01 PERFORMANCE OF WORK 

The Contractor acting as an independent contractor, shall furnish at his/her own expense 
all supervision, labor, equipment, tools, materials, supplies, and necessary documentation 
required to perform and complete the Work in a good first class and workman like 
manner. The Work designated, described and required by these specifications and 
proposals shall be in accordance with the Contract Documents and any applicable City 
ordinances, county, state and federal laws. Contractor represents and warrants that 
he/she has special skills which qualify him/her to perform the Work and is not a party to 
any other agreement, written or oral, the performance of which would prevent or interfere 
with the performance, in whole or in part, of the Work. 

1.02 PRE-BID SITE INSPECTION 

The Contractor shall be responsible for performing a pre-bid site inspection of each location. 
Contractor shall be responsible for determining actual acreage, square footage, and/or time 
required to perform the Work at each location. 

1.03 THE WORK 

The Contractor shall perform all services and provide all supplies, materials, equipment, tools 
and labor, necessary for Highway 100 Medians Maintenance Services in accordance with the 
Contract Documents. The Contract will be valid for five (5) years : 2022, 2023, 2024, 2025, 
2026. 

PART 2 - SCOPE OF SERVICES 

The Contractor shall provide Highway 100 Medians Maintenance Services as set forth below: 

2.01 HOURS OF OPERATION 

Contractor shall provide General Maintenance Services between the hours of 7:00 a.m. and 5:00 
p.m., Monday through Friday. No work shall take place on Saturdays, Sundays or City 
recognized Holidays unless prior approval by the Director of Parks and Recreation is received. 
No work shall take place the week of Thanksgiving . 

Contractor shall submit a work schedule to the City contact prior to the start of any work. 

2.02 SERVICE/SITE LOCATIONS 

Provide landscape maintenance services for four (4) MODOT medians on Highway 100 in 
Washington, Missouri. SEE EXHIBIT. 

HWY 100 Medians Maintenance Technical Specifications TS-1 

1f 



City of Washington, Missouri Parks & Recreation Department 

2.03 DURATION OF CONTRACT 

The duration of the Contract shall be for five (5) years: 2022, 2023, 2024, 2025, 2026 under the 
same terms and conditions. 

2.04 MAINTENANCE AND SERVICES 

The Highway 100 Medians contain various plants and shrubs such as Prairie Dropseed, Little 
Bluestem, Liatris, Purple Cone Flower, Black Eyed Susan, Butterfly Weed, New England Aster, 
Black Chokeberries and Fragrant Sumac. 

SPRING (Early April) 
Remove litter and debris, apply new mulch and apply weed pre-emergent. 

SUMMER (May - October) 
Remove litter and debris, weed, tree & invasive pulling, and apply spray herbicide one (1) time a 
month. To reduce the appearance of dead vegetation in the medians weeds, trees and invasive 
over 8 inches tall shall be pulled and weeds, trees and invasive under 8 inches shall be sprayed 
with herbicide. 

FALL (Early November) 
Remove litter and debris, trim and/or prune all grasses and perennials back, haul away debris, 
apply weed pre-emergent and apply new mulch. 

Cut back height of vegetation shall be 5-6 inches. Mulch shall be dyed brown shredded bark 
and shall be applied 1-2 inches thick and not to cover up vegetation. Vegetation killed by 
herbicide overspray shall be replaced with same type at no cost to the City. 

The Contractor shall perform all required Work and shall provide and furnish labor, materials, 
necessary tools, equipment, and transportation services to provide grounds maintenance service 
on property designated by the Parks and Recreation Department. It is understood and agreed 
that said labor, materials, tools, equipment and service will be furnished; and said Work 
performed and completed under the direction and supervision and subject to the approval of the 
City. 

2.05 INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 

It is understood that the Contractor is an independent Contractor and neither him/her nor his/her 
employees shall represent themselves as either employees or agents of the City. Any person 
employed by the Contractor who, in the opinion of the City, does not perform satisfactorily or is 
intemperate or rude to residents or employees of the City shall, at the written request of the City 
be removed from further employ in any portion of the Contract. 

2.06 SITE INSPECTION 

A site inspection by the Contractor shall be performed prior to each maintenance function. 
Trash, debris or hazards shall be removed prior to Work being performed. All clippings, leaves, 
trash and debris shall be removed from the site upon completion, and disposal shall be the 
responsibility of the Contractor. 

HWY 100 Medians Maintenance Technical Specifications TS-2 

1F 



City of Washington , Missouri Parks & Recreation Department 

2.07 EQUIPMENT 

General landscaping tools such as mowers, trimmers, hedge trimmers and hand tools etc. may 
be used. 

The Contractor shall provide appropriate traffic control equipment while working in the medians. 
Contractor employees shall wear high visibility safety vests when working in the medians. 

Contractor shall apply for their own permit to work on the right away through Missouri Highways 
and Transportation Commission . 

Lane drops and traffic control equipment shall be supplied by the Contractor or Subcontractor, 
per MODOT's specifications. 

2.08 UNIFORMS 

Contactor employee(s) must wear a uniform shirt with the company name that is visible from 
twenty-five feet (25') at all times while completing the work in the City. 

2.09 PARKING 

Contractor is to park in specified and legal parking areas/zones without blocking driveways or 
site entrances, etc. Care shall be taken so as not to damage lawn and/or landscaped areas 
when parking. 

2.10 CLEANUP 

Prior to leaving the site, Contractor shall inspect, remove and haul away all debris items. The 
concrete and asphalt portions of the medians should be free of plant clippings and mulch. 

2.14 DAMAGE TO PROPERTY 

Any damage to property as the result of the Contractor's operations shall be the responsibility of 
the Contractor. Contractor shall be held responsible for any damage, breakage and/or loss of 
signs, irrigation system, vegetation or any loss incurred to adjacent property, buildings, 
vegetation or fences through the negligence of the contractor or his/her employees while 
working on the medians. Should the damage not be rectified within the time agreed upon or to 
the satisfaction of the Parks Department, the City reserves the right to replace that which was 
damaged, or assess the Contractor such costs as may be reasonable and related to the damage 
caused by the Contractor. The Contractor shall inform the Director of any damage caused by 
the contractor's operation on the day such damage occurs. 

HWY 100 Medians Maintenance Technical Specifications TS-3 

1f 



City of Washington, Missouri Parks & Recreation Department 

This page intentionally left blank 

HWY 100 Medians Maintenance Technical Specifications TS-4 







C
 

ca 







405 Jefferson Street, Washington, MO 63090 

May 2, 2022 

Honorable Mayor and City Council 
City of Washington 
405 Jefferson Street 
Washington, MO 63090 

636-390-1080 www.washmo.gov 

RE: Recommendation - Highway 100 Median Landscape Bed Services - bid recommendation 

Honorable Mayor and City Council, 

In 2011, the City applied for and was awarded a Federal Transportation Grant for the installation of 
median landscaping beds on Highway 100. Once the project was completed, the Parks and Recreation 
Department took over maintenance of the median beds. The beds were planted with native wildflowers 
and grasses in 2013. In addition to beautifying the highway the median beds purpose is to help slow 
traffic to prevent crossover accidents, absorb rainwater and help preserve plants in the area. 

In 2011, the thought process was that once the native beds were established, they were supposed to be 
very low maintenance. After the plants matured, they were supposed to choke out weeds, require less 
mulch and cut down on labor compared to regular bedding plants however if native beds are not properly 
managed, they can look unattractive. There are also expenses incurred with setting up lane closures on 
Highway 100, which is a MODOT requirement. 

John Nilges, Public Works Director, and I have been working together to find a solution to the median 
complaints that the City receives on a reoccurring basis. After some research, we believe the 
maintenance of the median beds can be funded by Stormwater Funds, as the native medians help absorb 
water in an all asphalt environment. It was determined that since the beds reduce stormwater runoff, the 
funding for the maintenance of the beds should come out of the local use tax and the approved FY21-22 
budget included $30,000 for this use. By hiring an experienced contractor, citizens will see noticeable 
results, thus making the beds more visually appealing. 

Median landscaping bed services was put out to bid and the City received two bids and one that was 
incomplete. The winning bid was from DJM Ecological Services, Inc. for $20,850 per year and the other 
was from Native Landscaping Solutions Inc. for $55,256. The contract is for five years. 

Accordingly, staff recommends that Council consider the approval of DJM Ecological Services bid 
in the amount of Twenty Thousand Eight Hundred Dollars and No Cents ($20,800.00). 

As always, if you have any questions or would like additional information, please see me before the 
Council meeting. 

Respectfully, 

wrv~ 
Wayne Dunker, MA, CPRP 
Director of Parks and Recreation 



BILL NO. INTRODUCED BY - ----- --------

ORDINANCE NO. _ ___ __ _ 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING AND DIRECTING THE 
EXECUTION OF AN AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN THE CITY 
OF WASHINGTON, MISSOURI AND THE WASHINGTON SCHOOL 
DISTRICT FOR THREE (3) SCHOOL RESOURCE OFFICERS TO BE 
ASSIGNED TO DUTY FOR THE WASHING TON SCHOOL 
DISTRICT 

BE IT 0RDANIED by the Council of the City of Washington, Missouri, as follows: 

SECTION 1: The Mayor is hereby authorized and directed to execute an agreement 

between the City of Washington, Missouri and the Washington School District for payment by 

the Washington School District for assignment of three (3) School Resource Officers to work at 

the schools in the Washington School District. A copy of said agreement is marked Exhibit "A" 

and is attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference. 

SECTION 2: All ordinance or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby 

repealed. 

SECTION 3: The ordinance shall take effect and be in full force from and after the date 

of its passage and approval. 

Passed: ----------

ATTEST: - --- --- --
President of City Council 

Approved: ________ _ 

ATTEST: --- --- ---
Mayor of Washington, Missouri 

'19 



"Exhibit A" 

CITY OF WASHINGTON - SCHOOL DISTRICT OF WASHINGTON 
AGREEMENT FOR SCHOOL RESOURCE OFFICERS 

School Resource Officers 

I. The Washington Police Department will provide three (3) POST commissioned/licensed law 

enforcement officers to serve as School Resource Officers on the campus areas of the School 

District of Washington. 

II. The School Resource Officers will work within the School District of Washington during the 

school year. The School Resource Officers' schedule will be determined in consultation with 
the administrate officials of the School District of Washington. The School Resource Officers 

will remain under the operational control and supervision of the Washington Police 

Department. 

Il l. The School Resource Officers' duties will include enforcement of the Missouri Criminal Code, 
the Missouri Juvenile Code and the Municipal Code of the City of Washington, with the goal 

of ensuring a safe environment for the students, faculty, and staff. 
IV. During periods when the School District of Washington is not in session the School Resource 

Officers' will return to Washington Police Department duties. While school is in session, 

School Resource Officers may be assigned to other duties during Washington Police 

Department emergencies. 
V. School Resource Officers shall remain employees of the City and shall not be considered 

employees of the School District of Washington. However, a School Resource Officer will be 

authorized pursuant to this agreement to provide security in schools outside the City of 

Washington that are located within the school district. 

VI. School Resource Officers shall have access to student information, discipline meetings, and 

administration meetings, as the School District of Washington deems necessary and subject 

to the confidentiality and privacy provisions of the Family Education Rights and Privacy Act, 

the Individuals with Disability Act, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, the 

Americans with Disabilities Act, and other state and federal statutory and case law. 

Term 

I. The term of this agreement will be from _July 1, 2022_, through _June 30, 2023_. 

Payment 

I. The School District of Washington will reimburse the City of Washington for the School 

Resource Officers in the amount of _$143,000.00_ for service during the term of the 

agreement. 

II. The payment will be due _June 30, 2023_. 



Ill . If an officer is unable to perform the duties for an extended period oftime and no 

replacement School Resource Officer is assigned to the District the payment will be pro
rated to reflect the time missed. 

IV. Vacation and Compensation Time will be taken while school is not in session unless 

otherwise arranged. 

Removal of a School Resource Officer 

I. In the event the School District of Washington feels a School Resource Officer is not 

effectively performing her/his duties and responsibilities, the District will notify the Chief of 

Police in writing. The Chief of Police, or designee, will meet with District administration to 

conference regarding problem(s). The School Resource Officer will be given time to correct 

or resolve problem(s) if appropriate. If the problem(s) continue to exist or if the problem(s) 

do not get resolved, the School Resource Officer may be removed from the District. 

Termination 

I. Either party may terminate this agreement without cause upon _30_days prior written 

notice to the other party. 

Notices 

I. All notices to be served by the parties shall be mailed certified or registered mail, return 

receipt requested, or delivered in person, at the following addresses: 

To the Washington Police Department 

Office of the Chief of Police 

301 Jefferson St. 
Washington, MO 63090 

To the School District of Washington 
Superintendent of Schools 
School District of Washington 
220 Locust Street 
Washington, MO 63090 

Governing Provisions 

I. The provisions of this agreement will be governed by the laws of the State of Missouri. 
II. If a court of competent jurisdiction determines that any provision contained in this 

agreement, or any party thereof, cannot be enforced, the parties agree that such 
determination shall not affect or invalidate the remainder of the agreement. 

Il l. This agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the Washington Police 
Department and the School District of Washington, and supersedes all prior understandings, 
whether written or oral, between the parties with regard to the subject matter hereof. Any 
amendments or modifications to this Agreement must be in writing, approved in a manner 
required by law for each entity, and signed by the parties. 



PRESENTATIVES OF CONTRACTED PARTIES-

BY: ----------

Mayor - Washington, MO. 

ATTEST: --------- City Clerk 



Date: 04-26-22 

To: City of Washington Council Members 
Mayor Doug Hagedorn 

From: Chief Edward Menefee 

Chief Edward Menefee 
Washington Police Department 

30 I Jefferson Street 
Washington, MO 63090 

Administration: (636)390-1055 
Dispatch: (636)390-1050 

Fax: (636)390-2455 
Email: emenefee@washmo.gov 

RE: Agreement for School Resource Officers (SRO) for Washington School District 

Council Members and Mayor, 

I am submitting for your approval a City of Washington - School District of Washington 
Agreement for School Resource Officers. 

The term of the agreement will be from July I, 2022 through June 30, 2023 . The amount paid to 
the City by the Washington School District is $143,000.00. This covers salary and benefits for 
three (3) SR Os for nine (9) months; the time school is in session. 

The amount charged the School District is up over last year; it was $134,000 last agreement. 
This is due to officer raises over the past couple years. 

The Washington School District has agreed to and signed off on the agreement. I respectfully 
request Council approve this agreement. 

/_£/¢-6; 
~i ~~ard T. Menefee 



CITY OF WASHINGTON 

CITY SALES TAX SUMMARY 

1% GENERAL SALES TAX 

Previous Years 1970-2000 Total: 
2000-2001 $ 2,614,947.25 
2001-2002 2,665,810.02 
2002-2003 2,875,714.84 
200~2004 3,155,590.86 

2004--2005 3,187,693.12 
2005-2006 3,345,292.87 
2006-2007 3,445,234.45 
2007-2008 3,773,268.98 
2008-2009 3,556,222.39 

2009-2010 3,497,829.39 

TOTAL COLLECTIONS TO DATE: 

MONTH 2016-2017 

OCTOBER $ 351 ,136.59 

NOVEMBER 282,896.65 

DECEMBER 364,857.35 

JANUARY 430,566.40 

FEBRUARY 354,592.09 

MARCH 397,064.44 -
AF'RI.L _ __,. __ ._., 322,468.20 

MAY 316,300.94 

JUNE 360,109.32 

JULY 488,884.69 

AUGUST 290,449.04 

SEPTEMBER 395,182.14 

TOTALS: $ 4,354,507.85 

Increase (Decrease) Over Prior Year 

OVERALL PERCENTAGE GROWTH/ 
(REDUCTION) FOR OCTOBER TO 

PRESENT: 

2017-2018 

$ 361 ,698.16 

251 ,010.14 

567,111.05 

355,065.45 

440,931.59 

432,715.60 

354,143.36 

296,545.56 

368,699.52 

499,689.10 

311 ,169.75 

464,286.39 

$ 4,703,065.67 

8.00% 

8.01% . 

$ 36,121,362.69 
2010-2011 $ 

2011-2012 

2012-2013 
201~2014 

2014-2015 

2015-2016 

2016-2017 

2017-2018 

2018-2019 

2019-2020 

2018-2019 

$ 341 ,934.38 $ 

273,682.85 

406,617.65 

428,005.85 

363,771.00 

444,964.47 

387,311.51 

300,584.29 

456,577.00 

420,349.19 

322,712.79 

465,772.42 

$ 4,612,283.40 $ 

-1 .93% 

3,613,372.27 2020-2021 

3,698,652.72 2021-Present 

3,760,065.80 
3,912,118.45 
4,204,694.99 
4,397,905.50 
4,354,507.85 
4,703,065.67 
4,612 ,283.40 

4,787 ,670.81 

2019-2020 2020-2021 

347,786.52 $ 387,415.44 

325,999.08 337,510.28 

400,738.68 448,383.63 

420,055.36 430,457.12 

417,204.79 396,723.58 

417,215.47 468,305.25 

365,080.95 387,138.97 

358,920.74 385,747.95 

401,315.24 514,849.48 

442,261 .53 462,011 .90 

372,615.14 396,711 .64 

518,477.31 523,081 .81 

4,787,670.81 $ 5,138,337.05 

3.80% 7.32% 

FISCAL YEAR END PERCENTAGE 
(POS- OCTOBER TO SEPTEMBER) 

Shown Once A Year on November Report. 

$ 5,138,337 .05 
3,084,670.20 

$ 118,506,311.57 

Monthly% Increase/ 
2021-2022 (Decrease) 

$ 454,143.50 17.22% 

329,477.61 -2.38% 

522 ,976.40 16.64% 

392,285.39 -8.87% 

509,008.53 28.30% 

483,461.03 3.24% 

393,317.74 1.60% 

$ 3,084,670.20 

I~ 



MONTH 2016-2017 

OCTOBER $ 175,568.60 

NOVEMBER 141,448.41 

DECEMBER 182,428.48 

JANUARY 215,283.32 

FEBRUARY 177,296.22 

MARCH 198,532.64 .. l.:l.l•:-,.:~~ 

-~B~!,__ -·----- 161 ,234.31 

MAY 158,150.75 

JUNE 180,054.89 

JULY 244,442.58 

AUGUST 145,224.55 
SEPTEMBER 197,591 .18 

TOTALS $2,177,255.93 

Increase (Decrease) Over Prior Year 

OVERALL PERCENTAGE GROWTH/ 
(REDUCTION) FOR OCTOBER TO 

PRESENT: 

1/2 % CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT SALES TAX 

EFFECTIVE: 07-01-89 
EXPIRED: 06-30-94 1989-1994 
EXPIRED: 06-30-02 1994-2002 
EXPIRED: 06-30-10 2002-2010 
EXPIRED: 06-30-18 2010-2018 
EXPIRES: 06-30-26 2018-2026 

TOTAL COLLECTIONS TO DATE: 

2017-2018 2018-2019 

$ 180,849.11 $ 170,966.92 

125,504.75 136,841.76 

283,555.71 203,310.25 

177,532.58 214,002.88 

220,465.78 181,885.56 

216,358.10 222,481.70 

177,071.76 193,656.33 

148,272.80 150,291.55 

184,317.16 228,288.80 

249,844.82 210,175.01 

155,584.67 161 ,356.40 
232,141.66 232,886.54 

$ 2,351,498.90 $2,306,143.70 

8.00% -1.93% 

8.01% 

$ 4,111,148.43 
9,410,782.24 

13,334,617.88 
15,975,018.36 

$ 9,449,054.24 

$ 52!280,621.15 

2019-2020 2020-2021 

$ 173,893.15 $ 193,707.79 

162,999.67 168,755.25 

200,369.28 224,192.00 

210,027.68 215,228.64 

208,602.53 198,361 .30 

208,607.73 234,152.34 

182,540.31 193,569.47 

179,460.29 192,873.68 

200,657.51 257,424.63 

221,130.97 231,006.12 

186,307.76 198,355.48 
259,238.60 261 ,541.37 

$ 2,393,835.48 $2,569,168.07 

3.80% 7.32% 

FISCAL YEAR END PERCENTAGE 
(POS- OCTOBER TO SEPTEMBER) 

Shown Once A Year on November 
Report. 

$ 

Monthly% 
Increase/ 

2021-20.22 (Decrease) 

227,071 .73 17.22% 

164,738.68 -2.38% 

261 ,488.24 16.64% 

196,142.72 -8.87% 

254,504.01 28.30% 

241,730.89 3.24% 

196,659.57 1.60% 

$ 1,542,335.84 

1)1, 



MONTH 2016-2017 

OCTOBER $ 175,568.24 
NOVEMBER 141,448.18 
DECEMBER 182,428.60 
JANUARY 215,283.62 
FEBRUARY 177,296.07 
MARCH 198,532.25 
AP~L - 161 ,234,08 
MAY 158,108.05 
JUNE 180,054.85 
JULY 244,442.69 
AUGUST 145,224.71 
SEPTEMBER 197 ,591 .24 

TOTALS $ 2,177,212.58 

Increase (Decrease) Over Prior Year 

COLLECTIONS 2005 TO 
PRESENT: 

$ 

s 

1/2 % TRANSPORTATION SALES TAX 

2017-2018 2018-2019 2019-2020 2020-2021 

180,849.11 s 170,946.23 $ 173,893.15 $ 193.707.83 
125,504.37 136,840.50 162,999.68 168,755.33 
283,555.44 203,308.99 200,369.28 224,192.04 
177,532.58 214,002.88 210,027.78 215,228.70 
220,465.13 181,885.52 208,602.55 198,361 .35 
216,358.08 222,481.85 208,607.77 234,152.35 
177,071 .74 193,656.25 182,540.19 193,569.46 
148,272.79 150,291 .51 179,460.32 192,873.68 
184,349.74 228,288.78 200,657.52 257,424.62 
249,844.78 210,175.04 221,130.96 231,006.14 
155,584.64 161 ,355.80 186,307.86 198,355.50 
232, 142 .98 232 886.52 259,238.63 261 ,541.35 

2,351 ,531.38 s 2,306,119.87 $ 2,393 835.69 s 2,569,168.35 

8.01% -1.93% 3.80% 7.32% 

$30,542,923.03 

OVERALL PERCENTAGE FISCAL YEAR END PERCENTAGE 
GROWTH/(REDUCTION) FOR (POS- OCTOBER TO SEPTEMBER) 

$ 

$ 

Monthly % 
Increase/ 

202,1"•~ (Decrease} 

227,070.97 17.22% 
164,738.72 -2.38% 
261,488.24 16.64% 
196,142.69 -8.87% 
254,499.40 28.30% 
241,730.92 3.24% 
196,659.56 1.60% 

1,542,330.50 

OCTOBER TO PRESENT: 8.01,Y.: Shown Once A Year on Novembe . .:_r:_:R:eport= ·~ -==="'===== 

$290,000.00 Transpoctation...Iax 

$250,000.00 

$21 (i),000.00 

$170,000.00 

$130,000.00 

$90,000.00 
OC'TOllER NOVEMBER OECE,1,!eER .wl\JARY fE!l/l~ MAF,tett ,.APRIL MAY ~E JUL,'.( AUGOST SEPTl:MaER 

+-2016-2017 -+-2017-2018 ... 2018-'2019 .... 2019-2020 ... 2020-2021 2021-2022 

lk 



LOCAL OPTION USE TAX 

MONTH 2016-2017 2017-2018 2018-2019 2019-2020 
OCTOBER $ 28,227.67 $ 12,081.69 $ 34,224.58 $ 35,500.86 $ 
NOVEMBER 36,285.79 17,632.77 48,613.78 56,442.98 
DECEMBER 35,826.94 48,045.68 49,662.96 53,993.39 
JANUARY 43,418.60 48,211.95 68,775.33 39,958.65 
FEBRUARY 54,384.99 95,271 .61 73,271.71 63,549.19 
MARCH 47,389.11 76,542.59 79,877.50 81,178.43 
APRIL 

~ 
37,427.52 47,032.55 54,168.57 51,201.38 

MAY 38,570.02 49,331.34 45,391.56 117,142.50 
JUNE 41 ,187.44 51 ,751.76 51 ,449.73 94,813.67 
JULY 40,613.94 73,096.59 42,197.49 76,691.07 
AUGUST 36,992.97 54,048.00 53,911.53 82,028.64 
SEPTEMBER 63,977.54 57,105.98 62,998.22 79,946.63 

TOTAL $ 504,302.53 $ 630,152.51 $ 664,542.96 $ 832,447.39 $ 

COLLECTIONS 1998 TO PRESENT $ 10,451,836.56 

OVERALL PERCENTAGE GROWTH/(REDUCTION) FOR 
OCTOBER TO PRESENT: 10.87% 

.$1 ,2 00,000 00 

$1,000,000 00 

$800,000.00 

$600,000.00 

$400,000.00 

$200,000.00 

$· 
2016-2017 201 7-2018 2018-2019 2019-2020 

2020-2021 
70,550.86 $ 
77,752.19 
65,391.95 
69,783.79 

112,976.86 
104,092.21 

83,105.78 
70,120.42 
73,348.19 
63,309.11 
89,259.01 

109,517.43 

Monthly% 
Increase/ 

2021-2022 (Decrease) 

73,349.35 3.97% 
75,696.93 -2.64% 
81,034.55 23.92% 
98,017.42 40.46% 

102,284.34 -9.46% 
99,642.15 -4.28% 

117,044.07 40.84% 

989,207.80 $ 647,068.81 

2020-2021 2021 2022 

3d. 



City of Washington, MO 

Original Current 

Account Type Total Budget Total Budget 

Fund: 001 - GENERAL FUND 

Revenue 15,439,790.00 15,486,790.00 

Expense 17,096,945.00 17,245,635.00 

Fund: 001 - GENERAL FUND Surplus (Deficit): -1,657,155.00 -1, 758,845.00 

Fund: 003 - LIBRARY FUND 

Revenue 798,350.00 798,350.00 

Expense 858,830.00 858,830.00 

Fund: 003 - LIBRARY FUND Surplus (Deficit): -60,480.00 -60,480.00 

Fund: 004 - VOLUNTEER FIRE FUND 

Revenue 867,180.00 867,180.00 

Expense 1,032,580.00 1,142,005.00 

Fund: 004 - VOLUNTEER FIRE FUND Surplus (Deficit): -165,400.00 -274,825.00 

Fund: 010 - VEHICLE & EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT FUND 

Revenue 622,000.00 622,000.00 

Expense 1,352,900.00 1,554,255.00 

Fund: 010 - VEHICLE & EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT FUND Surplus ( -730,900.00 -932,255.00 

Fund: 250 - STORMWATER IMPROVEMENT FUND 

Revenue 1,012,000.00 1,012,000.00 

Expense 1,755,320.00 1,948,320.00 

Fund: 250 - STORMWATER IMPROVEMENT FUND Surplus (Deficit): -743,320.00 -936,320.00 

Fund: 260 - CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT SALES TAX FUND 

Revenue 3,574,875.00 3,574,875.00 

Expense 4,490,750.00 5,496,260.00 

Fund: 260 - CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT SALES TAX FUND Surplus (De -915,875.00 -1,921,385.00 

Fund: 261 - TRANSPORTATION SALES TAX FUND 

Revenue 4,002,875.00 4,002,875.00 

Expense 4,067,300.00 4,561,310.00 

Fund: 261- TRANSPORTATION SALES TAX FUND Surplus (Deficit): -64,425.00 -558,435.00 

Fund: 265 - COP FUND 

Revenue 1,836,300.00 3,169,670.00 

Expense 2,046,000.00 2,046,000.00 

Fund: 265 - COP FUND Surplus (Deficit): -209,700.00 1,123,670.00 

Fund: 272 - DOWNTOWN TIF RPA-1 

Revenue 295,000.00 295,000.00 

Expense 426,600.00 539,200.00 

Fund: 272 - DOWNTOWN TIF RPA-1 Surplus (Deficit): -131,600.00 -244,200.00 

Fund: 274 - RHINE RIVER TIF RPA-2 

Revenue 132,200.00 132,200.00 

Expense 132,000.00 139,000.00 

Fund: 274 - RHINE RIVER TIF RPA-2 Surplus (Deficit): ZOO.OD -6,800.00 

Fund: 400 - WATER FUND 

Revenue 1,976,965.00 1,976,965.00 

Expense 3,854,650.00 4,047,025 .00 

Fund: 400 · WATER FUND Surplus (Deficit): -1,877 ,685.00 -2,070,060.00 

Fund: 410 - SEWAGE TREATMENT FUND 

Revenue 2,950,000.00 2,950,000.00 

Expense 5,281,535.00 5,716,535.00 

Fund: 410 - SEWAGE TREATMENT FUND Surplus (Deficit): -2,331,535.00 -2, 766,535.00 

Budget Report 
Group Summary 

For Fiscal: 2021-2022 Period Ending: 03/31/2022 

Variance 
Period Fiscal Favorable Percent 

Activity Activity (Unfavorable) Remaining 

1,047,370.80 8,790,585.68 -6,696,204.32 43.24% 

1,118,982.23 10,887,110.32 6,358,524.68 36.87% 

-71,611.43 -2,096,524.64 -337,679.64 -19.20% 

66,813 .77 685,037.31 -113,312.69 14.19% 

62,354.16 428,386.21 430,443.79 50.12% 

4,459.61 256,651.10 317,131.10 524.36% 

372.66 796,708.92 -70,471.08 8.13% 

39,068.45 465,958.67 676,046.33 59.20% 

-38,695.79 330,750.25 605,575.25 220.35% 

0.00 601,875.44 -20,124.56 3.24% 

0.00 192,189.97 1,362,065.03 87.63% 

0.00 409,685.47 1,341,940.47 143.95% 

99,642.15 536,188.78 -475,811.22 47.02% 

27,951.49 556,995.86 1,391,324.14 71.41% 

71,690.66 -20,807.08 915,512.92 97.78% 

222,062.25 1,245,891.78 -2,328,983.22 65 .15% 

225,313.75 777,823.50 4,718,436.50 85.85% 

-3,251.50 468,068.28 2,389,453.28 124.36% 

283,498.60 2,094,122.73 -1,908, 752.27 47.68% 

15,066.58 2,632,867.46 1,928,442.54 42.28% 

268,432.02 -538,744.73 19,690.27 3.53% 

0.00 1,842,607.92 -1,327,062.08 41.87% 

1,500.00 1,500.00 2,044,500.00 99.93% 

-1,500.00 1,841,107.92 717,437.92 -63.85% 

37,691.63 320,769.84 25,769.84 8.74% 

1,214.40 25,048.62 514,151.38 95.35% 

36,477.23 295,721.22 539,921.22 221.10% 

25,043.32 119,852.01 -12,347.99 9.34% 

0.00 1,421.37 137,578.63 98.98% 

25,043.32 118,430.64 125,230.64 1,841.63% 

139,167.23 957,743.46 -1,019,221.54 51.55% 

138,378.02 981,186.23 3,065,838.77 75.76% 

789.21 -23,442.77 2,046,617.23 98.87% 

213,193.05 1,467,848.53 ·l,482,151.47 50.24% 

122,798.26 2,239,597.95 3,476,937.05 60.82% 

90,394.79 -771,749.42 1,994,785.58 72.10% 

lk 



Budget Report 

Account Type 

Fund: 420 - SOLID WASTE FUND 

Revenue 

Expense 
Fund: 420 - SOLID WASTE FUND Surplus (Deficit): 

Report Surplus (Deficit): 

4(26/)0. 2 L!J 09 ?9 AM 

For Fiscal: 2021-2022 Period Ending: 03/31/2022 

Variance 
Original Current Period Fiscal Favorable Percent 

Total Budget Tota I Budget Activity Activity (Unfavorable) Remaining 

3,036,400.00 3,036,400.00 219,694.63 1,162,748.98 -1,873,651.02 61.71% 

2,978,660.00 2,978,660.00 200,922.74 1,308,398.39 1,670,261.61 56.07% 

S7,740.00 57,740.00 18,771.89 -145,649.41 -203,389.41 352.25% 
==-==-=-=-==-===---~-==============~~~-~= 

-8,830,135.00 -10,348,730.00 401,000.01 123,496.83 10,472,226.83 101.19% 



Budget Report For Fiscal: 2021-2022 Period Ending: 03/31/2022 

Fund Summary 
Variance 

Original Current Period Fiscal Favorable 
Fund Total Budget Tota I Budget Activity Activity (Unfavorable) 

001- GENERAL FUND -1,657,155.00 -1,758,845.00 -71,611.43 -2,096,524.64 -337,679.64 

003 - LIBRARY FUND -60,480.00 -60,480.00 4,459.61 256,651.10 317,131.10 

004 - VOLUNTEER FIRE FUND -165,400.00 -274,825.00 -38,695 .79 330,750.25 605,575.25 

010 - VEHICLE & EQUIPMENT REP -730,900.00 -932,255.00 0.00 409,685.47 1,341,940.47 

250 - STORMWATER IMPROVEME -743,320.00 -936,320.00 71,690.66 -20,807.08 915,512.92 

260 - CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT SAi -915,875.00 -1,921,385.00 -3,251.50 468,068.28 2,389,453.28 

261-TRANSPORTATION SALES TA -64,425.00 -558,435.00 268,432.02 -538,744.73 19,690.27 

265 - COP FUND -209, 700.00 1,123,670.00 -1,500.00 1,841,107.92 717,437.92 

272 - DOWNTOWN TIF RPA-1 -131,600.00 -244,200.00 36,477.23 295,721.22 539,921.22 

274 - RHINE RIVER TIF RPA-2 200.00 -6,800.00 25,043.32 118,430.64 125,230.64 

400-WATER FUND -1,877,685.00 -2,070,060.00 789.21 -23,442.77 2,046,617.23 

410- SEWAGE TREATMENT FUND -2,331,535 .00 -2, 766,535.00 90,394.79 -771,749.42 1,994,785.58 

420 - SOLID WASTE FUND 57,740.00 57,740.00 18,771.89 -145,649.41 -203,389.41 

Report Surplus (Deficit): -8,830,135.00 -10,348,730.00 401,000.01 123,496.83 10,472,226.83 

l3e. 



JOIN THE . 
· WASHINGTON.OPTIMIST CLUB 

•; 

AND 

WASHINGTON POLICE.DEPARTMENT 
FOR THE 

46TB ANNUAL BICYCLE SJlfETY RODEO 
SATURDAY, MAY 21, 2022 

REGISTRATION 9:00 -I0:30AM ·, 

· WASHINGTON FAIRGROUNDS SWINE P-AVILION 
EVENTS t 

• OBSTACLE COURSE Ages 5-13 (Under 5 can participate) No 
training wheels. Bring your bike & helmet or 
receive a h~lmet at the event. Trophies to top 
winners in each age group and bikes for overall . ' 

girl .and b<;>y winners. - · 

• SAFETY TOWN Ages 5 and Under 

• CAR SEAT CHECK AND DISTRIBUTION EVENT: 9-11AM, 

ALL PARTICIPANTS WILL RECEIVE 
. ' 

• A PIZZA SLICE ·OR HOTDOG 
• COOKIE 
• ONE DRINK 

• HELMET GIVEAijAY ·.AND HElME1 'FITTING 
• POPCORN FOR EVER10Nt 

., • BALLOON TWISTERS . · .-
~ MISSOURI CHILD ID PROGRAM • BIKE. UCENSING 
• BIKE INSPECTIONS AND REPAIR 
• AIR[VAC HELICOPTER (weather permitting ;md availability) 

• FIRETRUCK ~ 

ATTENDANCE. PRIZES INCLUDE 
BIKES: BIKE ACCESSORIES AND 
BIKE-THEMED STORYBOOKS 

, 
Special thanks to the following businesses & individuals for their do1Jations to make this project a success. 

B,$_, Prlnl,i-1g. B+=•, ~:w·-? Hatlic1w:1y·CM..:·I We:-ar, Paul ~-!. r J,3 11 :::.,.:GJl'iig':!, '.)1an~. f,-1 A":,h t :.' ~ h?.;"i,: :i Ocmclvi r.. C~rri,9ge C9re -
~.·ar:: ,'3.! E'1t1 rb Tn~b~·cz =: -:k 1'i.'. Ju lie i: rd ~\~·.?nD1_: g , Giil l} e, Pe:;; \l\1ir;:~nb1. rgm, ·-,-rn.t Lari~. -:-1 ;c T11;e·; 1,,i r1:i F=in- il.y- F:~i Cler:ni1-..:1. 
C' -J ,TtJW' s Pizza . . ·f::;:"= L::cige ~,-25 • ;n,; -R~1.·;:i u,t ·c,n Cyci•?3. 


	05-02-22 Council Mtg Agenda
	4174_001
	4174_128



